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CORPORATE PROFILE
DA

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd. (“CMIC"” or the “Company”,
formerly known as TSC Group Holdings Limited) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
and its global subsidiaries (the “Group”) are primarily engaged in asset
investments and operations management of offshore platforms, design,
manufacturing and service of core equipment packages in the land and
offshore oil and gas exploration and development industry, and clean
energy and technology investments.

Together with our substantial shareholder, China Merchants & Great
Wall Ocean Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.) (the”Fund”), we provide
integrated financing and asset solutions to global clients. Our affiliated
joint venture, Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited (the “JV" or “WME")
(owned as to 50% by Alliance Offshore Group Limited (“AOG", a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and 50% by the Fund) concluded
transactions with Shelf Drilling (“SHELF”), the world’s largest operator
of jack-up rigs by amount of global contracts in hand in relation to jack-
up rigs according to CLARKSONS's Statistics as at 31 January 2020, for
sales of two units of jack-up rigs and subscription of shares in SHELF.
We deliver efficient and high-quality integrated solutions to enhance the
intrinsic value of our assets as well as to create value for our customers.
Our principal objective is to position the Group at the front of cyclical
opportunities as a means of completing a strategic layout of extension
from offshore core equipment manufacturing to offshore rig asset
investments, operations and management.

EBEHN

ERBEREFERMRZERERAR (BEERE
BRIk ARRE] - AT TSCEREZERBR AR NRF
SHEEMKY  ERERERXZMER AR ([H
RADERLET - KRR REZHKMBE QR (EREIA
SEDNEILEBREFIETREEREREY
B E RS RMRMRABETERORGERES
RET - BUEBRRY - LB REERMBRIRE %75
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ARRBERNREEIRARMEFRBHBEREE
*E2(EEIEFEE:D)  ZoMNAZENER
BIEFIEERART - BB TESE LT (Wealthy
Marvel Enterprises Limited * E§fB[ & B A F |8k
[WME] © BBANA Bl 2 B Hi 8 A B Alliance Offshore
Group Limited [AOG] 828 ¥ RHE E & B 1550% /% 15)
B2 PRE — K (RIZCLARKSONS 23k B 7 = & # F
AEFaNSBRERMAG - BE202091831H) B
FHa 8 HF 438 4 i Shelf Drilling (R78SHELF]) Rk
HE2EE AN EH T A RRBBSHELFRHR S - @
BEFHRAGERESFIEFEEESNSE
B RASENCEMS BAYARGRE - EA
HEERA  BERASEEFIEZORERE
MEFIRETaEEELEERERMEBREHRE -

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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After many years of development, the core offshore equipment and
packages businesses of the Group have became world leading. The
principal businesses include the design, manufacture, installation and
commissioning of onshore and offshore drilling rig equipment and
general packages. Specific equipment products include cranes, machine
rack pipes, jacking systems, power control and transmission systems,
tension adjustment and compensation devices and systems, etc. Rigs
maintenance, repair and operation (MRO) products and services include
oilfield expendables, accessories and parts manufacturing, sale and repair
services.

The Group pays close attention to the development of clean energy and
technology related industries, proactively looks for the opportunities for
investment and consolidation with marine energy science and technology
related industries to realise synergistic effects of each business segments
through investing in the undervalued opportunities along the industrial
supply chain to enhance the overall performance of our business and
maximise the interest of the shareholders and investors.

As for mid and long term development plans, the Company intends to
further strengthen its offshore engineering industrial value chain, with the
help of the extensive experience of the old and new teams, continue to
acquire high-quality offshore engineering platform assets and to enhance
effectiveness and efficiency of utilisation and brand influence on offshore
assets through investment in or cooperation with global leading offshore
rig operators and oil companies. By utilising our channels in accessing
capital, the Company will continue to expand its offshore assets operation
and management business and achieve full development in 2020.

CORPORATE PROFILE
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CORPORATE PROFILE | MILESTONES
ATEN | ERE

Emer International’s 2nd
manufacturing facility

EMER

Emer International started
business in Houston, Texas,
U.S.A. and took the lead to
introduce a number of advanced
equipment and technologies to
China’s oil and gas industry

R B S BN (R ETIE £
R - RHEDHRITESES A
B A BERBMRMm

founded in Qingdao, China.
It is a manufacturing plant for
hydraulic ends and accessories of
mud pumps
KREBRNTEEERYE 4
EEEM - BLERRRIR AL
1

Emer International acquired
Zhengzhou Highlight and
Zhengzhou GEAR, obtained solid
over control production line
and lifting system product line,
became the only company in
China that can provide research
and development, design and
manufacture of lifting device for
jack-up rigs

PR AR B i B U ES M A DR AN D
MER - BSEFEERTRE

RMEmMAR AT BIME—fElE
HEARNBEHFEAREER
- RETFEEN AT

1995 2001 2002 2005 2008

Emer International was listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange

REREENEBRIFR T

HHCT, Emer International’s first
manufacturing facility founded

in Xi'an, China, manufactured
power control and driving system
for onshore drilling

BRBROE — FEEMERE
Hi(HHCT)RA P BIFE ZpRSL - B
ek 3t #8444 B D 15 I AN BE B R 4

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

04 Annual Report 2019

Emer International acquired
GME (London AIM), and was
rebranded as TSC Offshore,
expanded the product line of
offshore drilling equipment and
acquired the whole package
capability of offshore drilling
rigs. It has become one of the
few global companies that can
provide the whole package of
offshore drilling rigs in parallel
with NOV and MH

25 B U EEGME(London AIM)
Wk B ABTSCEE  BATHEL
EFRBEMS  BET B
BEEES - ENOV ~ MHIEFIAK
BERVHREREE FEFER
HAREZ—



TSC Offshore transferred its
listing to the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange
TSCRFEZERBHIAER
il

2009 ;'2011

TSC Offshore rebranded as
TSC Group
TSCOBFE R RTSCER

In the same year, CIMC
became strategic shareholder
of TSC Group

A hEEEKRTSCEE
BB

CORPORATE PROFILE | MILESTONES

The Company allied with Zentech and
CSSC to construct high spec R-550D
jack-up drilling rigs and started the
development of investment and
operations management of offshore
engineering platforms

HiZentech XA EEM A ERE S
HI&R-550D B FHAEHF A - FIaE
EEFIIRTAREELTIRER

In the same year, the Company
established Qingdao equipment
manufacturing base

R - Y BEERBREEM

February 2018

2018%2A

The Fund became the controlling
shareholder of TSC Group

BRI R RRTSC SR B AR AR 3R

December 2018
2018128

In December 2018, two CJ46 drilling
rigs were bareboat chartered to SMS, to
provide services to Abu Dhabi National
Oil Company

2018512 A 2 FECI46EH F &4
SMS RIS FLEEBR AR A 7]

L

/3

aF
)
4

AREN | EE®

January 2019

2019%1A8

e The Company conducted
rights issue to introduce new
shareholders

HHRARIE 5| AZTAR R
e TSC Group Holdings Limited
was officially renamed as

CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding
Co., Ltd.

TSCEEZEKRARARERE

EBREBBRETFIRE

TR A A

e In February 2019, the
affiliated joint venture WME
entered into sales agreements
with SHELF, the world’s
largest operator of offshore
jack-up rigs, for two units of
CJ-46 jack-up rigs

* 201952 F - AERAIWME

HIRIRE— X FRA B

B E SR SHELF K 2£2 %

CIAGFUEHF B M E 1

ST

e In May 2019, the sales of two
units of CJ-46 rigs to SHELF
was completed. At present, the
rigs provide services to Saudi
Aramco

o WFSAH - 2B K E4SHELFE]
CHA6TIBIT ATk ZE] - BAT

ERBPOD A AERK AR A

=

e In September 2019, the
Company won the contract for
the offshore rig service project
of Pemex, the national oil
company of Mexico, in relation
to provision of two units of
JU2000E rigs to Pemex. The
rigs arrived Mexico in early
December

o FAFIA - HIEEFEFERAM
ARIPemex8 LI RISIEE -
FPemexi2 {2 A )U2000E 2 # H
FEEETARER12ALAE
ERPE

SEERSHERNEERERLA | )5
—T-NEER
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CORPORATE PROFILE | MAJOR EVENTS

DAEN | EEXEHE

MARCH 3 H

HHCT, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
orders in relation to several sets of electric control equipment and
services with CNPC Xibu Drilling.
2EFRAAT SRS AT AAANBRETSESERE
HARTGRTEE o

JULY7H

The two units of CJ46 rigs sold to SHELF started operation at the
operation site.

& 43 SHELFAI2 BECJA6 T S8 H+ T & I (ESE M R IR 1E 3£ -

OCTOBER 10H

The Company settled the debts by issuing to Jinghong Company
122,726,709 settlement shares at the issue price of HK$0.56
per settlement share, representing a premium of 115% over the
closing price on the last trading day.

LA0.56 /8 /AR B AR [ R R A B3 17122,726, 709 A H A (D A
BEER  RHERXSHBKRHEREI115% °

JANUARY 143

08

TSC Oil and Gas Services Group Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, was granted the contract in relation
of land rig equipment and accessories project of Tarim oildom in
Xinjiang.
2EFAAFTSREHREERBEHR A RENBEENHR
EREnEAREREGBBESR -

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

O)

FEBRUARY 2H

The joint venture WME signed agreements with SHELF with respect to
sales of two units of CJ46 rigs. Moreover, WME and the Fund jointly
increased their capital investment into SHELF and thus jointly hold
19.4% shares of SHELF, becoming SHELF's largest shareholder.
BERFWMEERZIRE—XE EBAREH; T QEERSHELPERK
H2BECIAGEIEH T AL S - RS BFRIRES KR
B SHELF » FEEMRDEN19.4% » BOAEE—KIRRE o

MAY 5H

An overseas subsidiary won the contract for the offshore rig
service project of Pemex, the national oil company of Mexico, in
relation to provision of two units of JU2000E rigs to Pemex. The
Company completed the delivery of two units of CJ46 rigs sold to
SHELF and the rigs were sent to the operation site.
BINFRARIHIERFETFEEKAM A A PemexE  #HREE
B REFIRHE2EIU2000EF #EH T & o 28 H B4 SHELFE)
ClACRIEH T AR EYMRE - BIER MRS, -

SEPTEMBER 9 H

The Company won the contract for activation of two units of
JU2000E rigs in Mexico which were delivered to Mexico on 16
September.

EPFHR2EIU2000ER EBHF AR AELIE - MEFAR
9A16 A B R I A IR AT 22 PR FF ©

DECEMBER 12 H

Two units of JU2000E rigs arrived Mexico in early December and
final inspection was conducted for the rigs before operation.
2BEJU2000ER EH T &0 12 A L AHE RS - ETEXEAD
RIEIRER ©



FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and

liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in notes.

EFMBHRE

AT RARERE T XM EMBEERRNEAR

B BERAEBEHE -

statements.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEeXEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—2-nE TN\ —TtF —T-R¥ —T-I1F
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TER TET TET =T TET
Revenue Wz 70,246 58,839 76,552 142,531 194,899
Cost of sales HEKA (46,210) (48,792) (67,331) (104,745) (140,543)
Gross profit E7 24,036 10,047 9,221 37,786 54,356
Other revenue and net income (including - f Iz RiF WA
reversal of impairment losses/ (RERERRE
provisions) e/ BB 14,404 934 2,411 5,685 3,842
Selling and distribution expenses HERSHAX (4,981) (5,635) (6,902) (5,170) (12,554)
General and administrative expenses —RRITBHAY (23,960) (27,693) (25,991) (33,409) (33,089)
Other operating expenses (including Hifg gy ( BRERE
impairment losses/provisions) B8/ %) (1,239) (6,609) (58,797) (111,841) (5,975)
Finance costs REKR (1,727) (2,450) (4,352) (4,363) (4,545)
Share of results of associates DIEBENAEE 36 1 4 = =
Share of result of joint venture PERERREE 3,728 = = = =
Profit/(loss) before taxation BBATER /(B518) 10,297 (31,405) (84,406) (111,312) 2,035
Income tax FTiSH (979) (10,381) 987 (264) (738)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to X2 AIRRAEARER1G
equity shareholders of the Company A, (E518) 9,701 (41,358) (82,790) (110,450) 2,097
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hF -\  ZE—+tF ZE5F —hEF
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$ 000
TEx TEL TEL TET TEL
Non-current assets FRBEE 97,587 52,774 73,355 86,057 115,591
Current assets mEEE 258,591 228,008 241,252 326,767 454,138
Current liabilities EU=VET (228,789) (245,183) (286,619) (275,359) (312,281)
Net current assets/(liabilities) nHEEFE/ (BF) 29,802 (17,175) (45,367) 51,408 41,857
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (6,975) (7,201) (14,321) (41,391) (38,453)
Total assets BEE 356,178 280,782 314,607 412,824 569,729
Total liabilities mEE (235,764) (252,384) (300,940) (316,750) (350,734)
Net assets BEFE 120,414 28,398 13,667 96,074 218,995
Notes: MiaE
1. The summary of consolidated results of the Group includes the results of the 1. ARENERE AABE S IEARE] L HMB A RIH 5
Company and its subsidiaries as if the current Group structure had been in 5 BIE Al IWEERER AR EZEAR®
existence throughout the financial periods, or from the respective dates of BEMARYERRAREERE) —BEFE - A5E
the incorporation where this is a shorter period. The consolidated results of BE-T— ﬂi‘?’ R=+—RIEFENGE FKEH
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are as set out on pages RIS ERMIBSREAMEI17TEE118E ©
117 to 118 of the audited financial statements.
2. The consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 2. AKER_T—AF+- A=+ —BNEAMHIRR
December 2019 are as set out on pages 119 to 120 of the audited financial 2%%63@&%*2%?%1&%5’]%1 191208 °

ERERSFREERNEERERAR

—T-NEER
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CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
EE®RE

The year 2019 was a critical turning point for CMIC and the first year for the Fund to improve its efficiency and
strengthen its control after its investment in CMIC.

“TSC Group”, CMIC's predecessor, is a product and service provider dedicated to the global offshore and
onshore oil and gas exploration and development and rig demolition industry. It has completed a total of 9 rig
turnkey projects, built the world's first R-550D offshore jack-up rig and started the offshore assets operation
and management business. It has rich industry resources and a service network spreading at home and abroad,
and highly tallies with the Fund’s original intention of strategic investment. In February 2019, after introducing
strategic investors, the Company was officially renamed as “CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.” and set sail
with a new look and a new strategic development direction. In the past year, the new team worked hand-in-
hand with the original team of TSC Group. In the context of the global economic downturn and the continuing
sluggish offshore engineering market, the Company achieved cash flow-back through revitalizing the operation
of rig assets; seized the Mexican oil market to gain business development space; exerted efforts to win orders for
land rig equipment and gained market recognition. In the end, thanks to the efforts of all parties, CMIC realised
a turnaround and turned in satisfactory results for shareholders.

At the beginning of 2020, Mr. Wang Hongyuan, chairman of the Board and CEO of the Company, resigned from
his positions in the Company due to other commitments. Mr. Lou Dongyang was appointed as the chairman
of the Board of the Company and Mr. Cong Yongjian was appointed as an executive Director and CEO of the
Company. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to Mr. Wang Hongyuan for his
hard work and outstanding contributions to the Company in the past two years. | believe that the new and old
members of the Board and senior management team can get along well with each other as soon as possible to
form a joint force to lead CMIC to keep progress and make great achievements.

At present, the successive outbreak of the new coronavirus epidemic at home and abroad has a huge impact
on the global economy. Russia and Saudi Arabia have released information on increasing crude oil production
since April, resulting in a drop in the price of Brent crude to below US$30 per barrel in mid March, which
undoubtedly “made the situation worse” for the downturn of the oil and gas industry. Of course, with the
gradual improvement of the epidemic situation, the global economy will gradually be on track, and | believe
that the oil and gas industry will be able to regain market confidence. At present and in the next stage, CMIC is
and will still be in a period of strategic opportunities with “promising prospect” in which opportunities coexist
with and outweigh challenges. We must have a clear understanding of the situation, seize opportunities, and
adopt innovative ideas to advance the work in more predictable and pertinent way. We have to plan ahead, seek
progress while maintaining stability, and get prepared for the future. In 2020, the CMIC shall leverage on the
global energy structure adjustment to seize the opportunity of rig asset integration which occurs once in 30 years
in the offshore engineering market and fully cooperate with the shareholder China Merchants Group in respect
of resources to consolidate the foundation and give play to advantages; At the same time, CMIC will continue to
deepen its transformation and development to achieve balanced development of the Company’s offshore asset
management, high-end equipment manufacturing, and oil and gas service business. A multi-layered and all-round
incentive mechanism will be built and improved for short-, medium-, and long-term development to energize the
Company through the mechanism and promote transformation with vitality. We will continue to jointly forge
ahead in a pioneering and innovative spirit, to serve all shareholders and global clients.

Low Lorgyary Sang ing Tlaa
Lou Dongyang Jiang Bing Hua
Chairman of the Board Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

'I 0 CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
f\nnuul Report 2019
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CEO’S STATEMENT
HREHITERS

The year 2019 was the first year for CMIC's business upgrade. In the context of the slowdown in global
macroeconomic growth and the fact that the offshore engineering market has not fully picked up, CMIC, firmly
adhering to the general principle of “striving for progress while maintaining stability”, cooperated with potential

strategic partners in a more proactive way and promoted its transformation and development through the
structural reform at the supply side.

In 2019, the Company'’s accumulated revenue, gross profit, net profit for the year and total assets amounted to
US$70.2 million, US$24.0 million, US$9.3 million, US$356.2 million, respectively, representing a year-on-year
increase of 19.4%, 139.2%, 122.3% and 26.9%, respectively. The Company’s total liabilities decreased by 6.6%
year-on-year to US$235.8 million and its net assets increased by 324.0% year-on-year to US$120.4 million. The
gearing ratio and interest-bearing debt ratio of the Company was 66.2% and 2.6% (excluding lease liabilities),
respectively. As of the end of December 2019, the balance of cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
deposits amounted to US$36.1 million, representing an increase of 75.0% over the same period of last year.
Throughout 2019, the new orders of the Company amounted to US$68.9 million.

In the past year, the Company mainly implemented its strategic transformation centering on “business
integration, structural optimization, cost reduction and efficiency improvement, and strict risk control”. To get
more benefits, the Company proactively integrated the offshore manufacturing elements of its shareholders of
China Merchants Group and CIMC Group, realised global leasing and sales of multiple offshore rigs through

“boosting production with finance”, and improved the offshore asset management business despite the "adverse
situation”.

In the first half of the year, the Company successfully integrated six jack-up rigs, of which two units of CJ46
rigs served the Abu Dhabi National Oil Company and started offshore drilling services; the Company signed
agreements with SHELF with respect to sales of two units of CJ46 rigs and together with the Fund, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, jointly increased their capital investment into SHELF and thus jointly hold 19.4%
shares of SHELF, becoming SHELF’s largest shareholder. This signifies a substantial breakthrough in CMIC's
offshore asset management business. The Company conducted in-depth cooperation with the international top
rig operation management company by way of exchange of shares with assets, which is an important step in
the Company's strategic transformation and beneficial to the expansion of the Company’s offshore rig asset
management business and the of the industrial chain and also generates synergistic pulling effects for the
offshore equipment manufacturing, spare parts supply and rig maintenance businesses.

Mexico is the current hotspot area of global offshore engineering. Leveraging on the resource advantages gained
in the development of the international market for many years, the Company and its partner CP Latina jointly
won the contract for drilling services of PEMEX, the national oil company of Mexico, and to provide them with
two units of JU2000E jack-up rigs. The CMIC team'’s successful access 1o the Mexican market indicates that the
Company's offshore asset management business has been recognized by the international mainstream market

again and is also conducive to the simultaneous expansion of the Company's offshore equipment manufacturing
and service business.

In terms of equipment manufacturing and oil service related businesses, sales orders still face severe challenges
as affected by the industry cycle. Upholding the principle of “development of offshore and onshore businesses in
an innovative model”, the Company proactively develops land rig projects. It got equipment orders from CNPC
through the innovative package solution model integrating “lease instead of sales + supporting service”; and

drilling equipment orders from Tarim oildom in Xinjiang by way of lease and sales. Thus, the Company has been
fully recognised by the market.

'I 2 CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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In"early 2020, the new coronavirus epidemic swept the world and cast a shadow on the global economy. Russia
and Saudi Arabia released information on increasing oil production, which caused a cliff-like drop in the Brent
crude index in March, and crude oil prices would be under great pressure in the short term. With the epidemic
under control, economic recovery and introduction of market rescue measures by the governments of al|

At present, as the offshore engineering market has not fully recovered, it poses a good opportunity which
occurs once in 30 years to integrate the offshore assets. Due to this opportunity, China’s shipyards have built
an inventory of more than 50 units of offshore assets, most of which are jack-up rigs, accounting for 70% of
China’s inventory of offshore assets, which is extremely beneficial to the integration of jack-up rigs.

In the context with both challenges and opportunities, in 2020, the Company must firmly adhere to the
balanced development concept of “quality first, benefit priority, scale moderate”, continue to improve |
the equity structure, and increase attempts for potential cooperation opportunities with strategic partners J
including exchange of shares with assets and equity swaps, and proactively introduce strategic investment

future potential development in terms of offshore engineering, technology and energy and achieve synergy
with equipment manufacturing industry. Focusing on its core values, it will look for opportunities to extend
the transformation to new areas and markets. The traditional sales model will gradually evolve to the method
in combination of “financial leasing + supply chain management”, to promote the proactive integration of
1 technological changes represented by “technicalization, intellectualization and networking” and promote the
' technological innovation and efficiency improvement in the field of marine energy by use of technological
breakthroughs in the fields of Al, big data, robotics, Internet of Things and others.

In the future, the Company will keep on innovation and development with an eye on opportunities for
integration of the energy market and the domestic offshore engineering, and focus on marine resources, with
a view to comprehensive development of high-end equipment manufacturing, asset management, engineering
operation and maintenance, and supply chain services and enhancement of the core competitiveness of its
businesses. Besides, it will gradually expand to and develop the value chain of the marine €nergy technology-
related industries in due course through industrial layout, value investment, and asset integrati

(;%ezjmzzykvz
Cong Yongjian
Executive Director & CEO

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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MARKET ANALYSIS OF THE INDUSTRY

Continued Growth of Global Energy Demand

The US Energy Information Administration (EIA) forecasts in its latest
International Energy Outlook 2019 Reference Case that the global
energy consumption will increase by nearly 50% by 2050. Much of
this growth will be attributable to non Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development (OECD) countries and focus on
the regions where strong economic growth drives demand. In
particular, in Asia, all end-use sectors including oil refining, mining,
manufacturing, agriculture and construction will account for the
largest share of energy consumption, representing more than half
of end-use energy consumption throughout the forecast period.
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By 2050, with the increase in commodity consumption, the energy
consumption of industrial sectors in the world will increase by
more than 30%, and the global industrial energy consumption
will reach approximately 315 quadrillion British thermal units (Btu);
transportation energy consumption will increase by nearly 40%
which is mainly driven by non-OECD countries, the transportation
energy consumption of which will increase by nearly 80% by 2050.
The energy consumption for personal travel and freight grows
much faster in these countries than that in many OECD countries.
By 2050, the global natural gas consumption will increase by over
40%, and the global total natural gas consumption will reach nearly
200 quadrillion Btu. In addition to natural gas used for power
generation, natural gas consumption in industrial sectors is also
increasing. Chemical industry and primary metal manufacturing, as
well as oil and gas extraction, account for most of the growth in
industrial demand.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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Changes in the proportion of global energy consumption
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For the oil market, the year 2019 was turbulent. In 2019, the
prices of WTI crude oil and Brent crude rose by more than 25%,
respectively, making them the best performing commodities. The
attack on Saudi Arabia’s oil facilities caused the country’s crude
oil output to halve. On 16 September, the price of Brent crude
soared by nearly 15%, the largest single-day increase. Although the
production in Saudi Arabia has returned to normal, the oil prices
were still at a high level following the easing of the international
situation and OPEC’s commitment for further production cuts.
Natural gas was the only GSCI energy commodity that experienced
a decline in 2019. Natural gas futures on the New York Mercantile
Exchange fell 26% in the past year, and it was at the bottom of the
S&P Goldman Sachs Commodity Index.

However, as affected by COVID-19 epidemic and the announcement
on increase in crude oil production in Russia and Saudi Arabia, the
price of WTI crude oil and Brent crude fell rapidly by about 54% in
three months since the beginning of 2020. The current crude oil
price is close to its lowest level in 20 years. In the future, the growth
pressure of shale oil will be huge, and there will a significant trend
of industry consolidation and elimination. OECD cut the forecast of
2020 global economic growth from 2.9% to 2.4%. The forecast is
based on the judgment that the situation of COVID-19 reached the
pandemic peak in the first quarter of 2020 and then began to ease.
OECD cut the forecast of U.S. economic growth for 2020 from 2.0%
to 1.9%, and down-regulated the growth rate of Eurozone, Japan
and UK from 1.1% to 0.8%, from 0.6% to 0.2%, and from 1.0%
to 0.8%, respectively.
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If the global spread of the COVID-19 cannot be effectively controlled HCOVID-19HTBREEERELNTE T
in the first quarter of 2020, the slowdown in global economic 2020 —Z=EEHBERIESH - 2B R
growth will further inhibit the increase in crude oil demand, and the AR - A — I FOR SRV - BF T
overall recovery of the offshore engineering industry may face more TRITER ISP R AEE R E Sl 3T o

twists and turns.

Slight Increase in Upstream Expenditure on the Oil SRR AT Bk W/ g

Industry

According to Bloomberg's forecast, the offshore capital expenditure IRIBRZ TR - 20206 « 2021 AB ARG
of oil companies will increase slowly in 2020 and 2021, with FHEARZ A/ NEESIE N - FEEHEINEE
expected increases of 2% and 3%, respectively. D RE2% 3% °

Slight increase in capital expenditure from global offshore oil
2IRE L AMER H/MEE F
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The Global Offshore Rigs Market

At the end of 2019, the utilisation rate of global jack-up rigs was
77%, a slight increase from last year, and the global average daily
rate was US$95,000. The increase was against the background
of the turbulent rise in oil prices in 2019. As of February 2020, as
affected by the COVID-19 epidemic, the drop in crude oil price had
offset the increase in 2019, and the price was even lower than that
in 2018. The transmission of the impact of crude oil prices on the
utilisation rate and daily rate of the rigs generally takes a period of
time. Therefore, no immediate impact has yet shown up. However,
if the global COVID-19 epidemic and increase in oil production
continue to deeply affect oil demand and crude oil price, it may
put more pressure on the current utilisation rate and daily rate of
rigs. At the end of 2019, the utilisation rate of floating rigs was
72%, a slight increase from last year, and the average daily rate
was US$163,000, a significant increase from last year. The reason
for the large increase in the daily rate was that, as the daily rate of
the floating rigs in 2018 dropped significantly as compared with
2017, the base for 2018 was low. The utilisation rate gap between
the old rigs (built before 2001) and the new ones (built after 2001)
has increased significantly, and the utilisation rate of the new rigs
has increased faster than that of old rigs. The old rigs are also
recovering, but in a slow pace, which will facilitate ship owners to
eliminate the old rigs, speed up the industry’s production capacity
clearance, and help the industry to recover. In particular, SHELF, an
offshore jack-up rigs operator, which the Company and the Fund is
the largest shareholder, stands out in the fierce market competition.
In the fourth quarter of 2019 alone, the amount of its contracts in
hand increased by approximately US$1 billion. At present, the total
amount of its contracts in hand is approximately US$2 billion and
the marketed utilisation rate of its rigs is close to 100%, retaining its
leading position among jack-up rigs operators worldwide.

Historical Statistics for Demand, Supply and Utilization Rate
of Global Jack-up Rigs

MARKET REVIEW AND PROSPECT
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Historical Statistics for Demand, Supply and

Utilization Rate of Global Jack-up Rigs Forecast

2REAXNFEAEREERAAZE LG AR

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Demand FoREE 348 305 316 325 375 414

Growth-y-o-y/y-t-d FER X -19% -12% 4% 4% 15% 10%

Active Supply AR EE 469 474 479 473 484 495

Growth-y-o0-y/y-t-d FEELE -5% 1% 1% 0% 2% 2%

Utilisation Rate RS 74% 64% 66% 69% 77% 84%

Source: CLARKSONS R+ CLARKSONS
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From 2016 to 2019, the demand for jack-up rigs increased slowly year by
year

From 2016 to 2018, the supply of jack-up rigs remained basically unchanged.
The supply increased slowly in 2019 and 2020
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The Middle East, Asia Pacific region and West Africa are the most
active areas in the world for using the jack-up rigs, with utilisation
rate and the number of rigs in operation much higher than other
regions. According to the 2019 statistics of CLARKSONS, the
hotspots of major demand for global shallow water jack-up rigs
concentrated in the Middle East, Asia Pacific region, West Africa and
Gulf of Mexico. In 2019, the largest demand for jack-up rigs came
from the Middle East, in which 123 rigs in operation with utilisation
rate of 85%. The number of rigs in operation and utilisation rate
ranked first in the world; the second was China with 57 rigs in
operation and utilisation rate of 83%.

PR mAMAFEAEZERAFARNEHFEER
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The number of jack-up rigs in operation and
utilisation rate of rigs in different regions of the world in 2019
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The top 10 operators in the world had received a substantial
number of market orders, and their rigs are aging seriously with an
average age of 21.4 years and a strong demand for replacement.
According to the 2019 statistics of CLARKSONS, the top 10 jack-
up rigs operators in the world in 2019 had 242 rigs, accounting for
43% of the global rig assets.
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HEFAFHMEE21.4F  ZILBEE BHBK
3B o HRIECLARKSONSHI20194F 5t 8% -
2019F 2IRATIOR B AR FREE R HEA242
BFE  h2M4AB%NTEEEEHE -

No. of Global Jack-up Rig Fleet (as at the end of 2019)
2R TN BESR (BIL2019F K)

North Sth West NW

Yard

Med & Middle Asia  Stay/
America America  Africa Europe Caspian East/India  Pacific Off Hire Stacked Avg.Age  Total

Owner/ il RR/ KB B+ T4

Top Owners % EES [iE T8 RER g YN eyl BB T S 1)
Valaris 2 1 1 17 4 2 13 18.0 50
Shelf Drilling 5 4 16 2 2 7 3122 36
CNOOC 1 3 25 1 3 18.0 33
Borr Drilling 3 5 3 2 2 13 9.0 28
ADNOC 18 2 224 20
Perenco 3 15 39.2 18
CNPC 11 1 4 84 16
Aban Offshore 2 3 5 5 23.8 15
ADES 6 6 1 41.3 13
Maersk Drilling 9 1 3 10.2 13
Total Top 10 AT ABE 3 2 15 23 10 64 48 13 64 242
Share of Total BhE 1% 1% 6% 10% 4% 26% 20% 5% 26% 43%

Source: CLARKSONS Top 10 jack-up rig owners hold 43% of the global rigs

We have full confidence in the development prospects of the
offshore engineering market. In the short term, the rising demand
in markets such as India, the Middle East and Mexico will further
promote the Group to seize opportunities and open up new market
areas. In the medium and long run, with the continued growth of
global energy consumption in the future, the offshore engineering
market will also fully recover.

The Group will continue to adhere to a balanced development
concept of “quality first, benefit priority, scale moderate” as the
fundamental development strategy, focuses on”Offshore as the
base, Energy as the value driver, Technology as the accelerator,
Capital as the incubator and Globalization as the foundation”,
and is committed to creating a “world class global marine energy
technology industry chain value integration operator”. Based on
its insight and grasp of the changing global industry, it will revise,
optimise and continuously improve the ability to implement its
strategies.
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THE COMPANY’'S DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Development Strategy of Offshore Asset
Management Business

The Group will continue the counter-cyclical layout of the offshore
engineering industry and integrate low-cost and high-quality
offshore assets to expand the size of asset management. First, the
Group will keep on strengthening market-oriented operations in the
future and take advantage of the general trend of offshore asset
mergers and acquisitions and industry restructuring, to introduce
and undertake the advantageous resources of domestic strategic
shareholders and partners; Secondly, it will proactively seek for
advantageous resources in the global marine industry and explore
new opportunities in offshore energy and other fields; Thirdly, the
Group will further promote strategic cooperation with SHELF, China
Merchants Group and CIMC Group to form a mutually beneficial
and win-win cooperation model.

In 2020, the Group will continue to take offshore asset management
business as an important part of its strategic upgrade. We believe
that the increase in the value of offshore assets and utilization
rate and daily rate of rigs will further promote the development of
offshore asset management business.

Development Strategy of the Core Offshore
Equipment Manufacturing and Service Business

The core offshore equipment manufacturing and service business of
the Group mainly comprises the sales and services provided relating
to the core offshore and land rig equipment, drilling packages and
oilfield spare parts and consumption parts sales. We believe that the
number of global land rigs will show a steady upward trend. With
the increase in demand for land rig products, we will continue to
increase investment in sales and market development, especially in
high-end markets including North America, the Middle East, and
Xinjiang and Sichuan in China, and strengthen cooperation with
land rig factories.

The offshore rig market is affected by the manufacturing of offshore
rigs. In the short term, offshore rigs are still oversupplied. However,
as the utilisation rate of offshore rigs increases, the demand for
drilling equipment maintenance services and spare parts supply
will also gradually increase. The Group will continue to explore
opportunities for comprehensive cooperation with the shipyards of
CMIH and CIMC Group and other strategic shareholders, and rely
on the market position of SHELF as a world-class offshore drilling
service company to strengthen alliance with partners and achieve
coordinated development.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

Z DREIBRKRE

BFIREEEEXBRREER

AEBBBESFTIRITEYBERGE  BE
BEEELASFIREE HREEETEMRME -
B AREARFGEEMRTISHERE - M
FRFIREAEHBNITREANABS - 5
AMFAZBEASRERRNAIETHREE
B HR BREGSREEFEENESD:
R RRELERSERNTKE  £= K
EE G FHEHEESHELF - BEREE &
SENBREAE  WREDENERNEFE
7 o

2020%F  AEEEHESSEIREETEE
BIERBBALRNEE —& - HMERERKRE
ENFTIREEEE FEARRRAERY
R BE—TSHEEFIREEETEERD
R o

EFIRROEFRENREELRR
SRR
AEBEROEBERENREEB I ERE L
L ERRE  BABE AR EER
Y HEMARTS - RIBEEHEMEREE
BERRSH B  HEEHEHERT R
MIRELRT - BAPIESE MR EEMTISH TR
B - FRldESE - IR - REIETIE )1
Ho YR AR T A5 o SR B ok SRR O A BT
=

BEERTSXEE LEFTFERENTE
REA - B EEFFADMBRK - BREES
EFEFFEMBEROEN - HEHREEER
BREFHENTLBEETIER - AREHK
RERREFAERIE  TEKEETHEL
HEtBBEERN2HAFHE - EASHELFE
B—mE LR A RN TG - SRR
& HEEE -



For overseas business, the Group will continue to use the
Houston headquarters in the United States as a base to manage
and coordinate overseas outlets. Relying on the brand, talent,
technology, quality and project management capabilities
accumulated in the oil and gas and offshore engineering industries
for many years, it will develop marketing services to fully stimulate
endogenous power and extend its presence to global marine
engineering and oil and gas hotspots, especially the key areas
including the North Sea, Gulf of Mexico, Caspian Sea, and the
Middle East, to improve quality and efficiency and achieve balanced
development.

Development Strategies for Nurturing, Innovation
and R&D of New Business

In 2019, the Group carried out the research and development of
more than ten new products including the intelligent folding arm
crane for ships, mechanized equipment for land rigs, technology
upgrade for offshore cranes, domestic design of offshore crane
control system, heave compensation boarding ladder, development
of welding process for mud pump crankshaft, and optimized design
of iron roughneck. In the future, we will continue to cultivate
the internal “innovative investment and development platform”
through “capital financing” and utilise technological breakthroughs
in areas of Al, big data, robotics, and the Internet of things to
promote technological innovation and efficiency improvements
in the marine energy field and explore opportunities in the clean
energy and technology fields. A number of projects with certain
development potential will be reserved after long-term tracking and
in-depth research of marine energy technology-related industries
and businesses, e.g. offshore fishing and breeding, marine ranching,
LNG clean energy, offshore wind power, hydrogen energy and
other fields, to enrich business types and seek for investment
opportunities.
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MARKET REVIEW AND PROSPECT
i E R R E

ADVANTAGEOUS RESOURCES FOR CMIC

The Group has deep historical accumulation and rich resources in
the industrial or financial field. The largest shareholder is the Fund, a
joint venture established by two major state-owned enterprises, i.e.
China Merchants Group and China Great Wall Asset Management
Co., Ltd. After the Fund became the largest shareholder, the new
and old management teams accelerated integration to improve
finance, operation, risk control, system, performance and other
aspects, accelerate business transformation, and pool resources
from all parties to build an offshore asset management platform.
The Fund and other strategic shareholders have an in-depth
layout in terms of offshore engineering manufacturing and capital
operation and have extensive experience in the integration of
industry and finance, project investment and risk control. They are
complementary with CMIC in respect of business development and
strategic transformation, and have great collaborative advantages in
interactive development.

The core team of the Group is experienced in the industry, and has
a good international vision and the ability to operate globally. After
years of technology accumulation and refinement, the Group's
Qingdao Research Institute, Xi‘an TSC-HHCT and Zhengzhou
Company have already possessed a professional product R&D and
design team, which has good performance and reputation in terms
of R&D and design of products including power control products,
jacking systems, offshore cranes, drilling equipment, and drilling
packages.

CMIC is a comprehensive enterprise that integrates four major
elements of offshore engineering manufacturing, asset operation
management, finance and national power. It has the ability to seize
the opportunity of the industry downturn to proactively use financial
forces to leverage more resources to build the “offshore asset
management platform”, thus to achieve a high ground layout in the
global offshore engineering industry.

For reference only, all market and strategy analysis presented in this
annual report is from the Group’s perspective, for which the Group
does not assume any legal liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CMIC IS AN OPERATOR DELIVERING THE
INTEGRATED CHAIN VALUE OF OFFSHORE ENERGY
TECHNOLOGY

OVERVIEW

The year 2019 was a crucial and special year for CMIC. Based on the
development of high-end equipment manufacturing, operation and
maintenance and supply chain services for oil and gas and offshore
engineering, the Company accelerated the expansion of offshore asset
management business. Facing the severe market environment, the
Company achieved good performance, mainly in the following three
aspects. First, the Company completed the rights issue in February 2019
which successfully raised approximately HK$657 million and introduced
new strategic shareholders, laying a solid foundation for the Company to
develop new businesses, further proceed with strategic transformation
and seek for long-term development. Second, the Company proactively
expanded the offshore asset management business. In March, two
units of CJ46 jack-up rigs were leased through the joint venture WME
to serve Abu Dhabi National Oil Company. The Company entered into
an agreement with Shelf Drilling Ltd. (“SHELF") for sales of two units of
CJ46 jack-up rigs. The two sold rigs were delivered in early May 2019.
In addition, the Company, together with its partner CP Latina, was
granted with the drilling service contract by Pemex Perforacion y Servicios
("PEMEX"), the national oil company of Mexico, pursuant to which the
Company shall provide PEMEX with two units of JU2000E jack-up rigs
which were delivered in September 2019. At present, CMIC’s offshore
asset management business has begun to take shape and provided
the Company with stable cash flow. Third, in terms of oil and gas and
offshore engineering equipment, operation and maintenance, and supply
chain business, the Company seized the opportunities in the hotspot
drilling markets in Mexico and western China by increasing marketing
efforts, expanding its businesses including power control equipment,
high-power high-pressure mud pumps, modification of drilling rigs and
supply of drilling accessories, and developing financial lease and sales
business for professional equipment, and achieved gratifying results.

In 2019, under the leadership of the Company’s core management team,
the Company turned losses into profits and achieved revenue of US$70.2
million throughout the year, representing a year-on-year increase of
19.4%, and net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of US$9.7 million.

BEEBNWR DN

CMICRBFRRNMRzERBEEER
REEH

BE

2019%F - WHRNEMBRK R - SBEBREABERE®RE
EN—F RRAAEERBEIMEE IR HERR
i EENHERRGESNER L NRIEEE
FIREETEER BEREOHMISIRE - S
TREMESE  FERBEAAT=ZEF@E - —=2
NEIR20195F2 At e ARELE - KIIEE 496.57
BB - SIEFHNBERE - ARARMBHIERH
HE—SEBEED  ERRRBERETTERENE
e _—2 BBILEEIIREESTEX%-3A7M
BBAEATWMELTH2ECI46R A AREFF &
ARAE AP FLLL B A A A » EShelf Drilling Ltd.
(TSHELFD @R 2 BECl46R B AR EH F L EH
3o 2B ENTAR2019F5 AYITRAE - HE
YEREFECP Latinalift & R IR TE ST BISK A H 2 7lPemex
Perforacion y Servicios(TPEMEX]) K& H RIS A R
AEREMHE2EIV2000ER EAXEH TS - FEER
201959 AR » BRIl - EBENEF IEEES
BEBCOARE  ARRREETEENRESR -
“RCEARMEFETIREE  BEHNEEEER
5 BB T ET AN R B 7 R b S R B T IS
B MAMEEENE  BABEEERE K5
NEFERHER  EMSUSMEF R HEER - I
FREXRENRERSEY - BUSATEMMKE -

2019%F » HERAZLEEEBMEET AFER
BEAR 2FERWRTIO2AEET  REER
19.4% + BRFFAHO.7THEEET -

EHERSEERNEERERAT
—ZT-NEFFR

25



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN
FINANCIAL REVIEW M & B
2019 2018 Change
—E-hFE ZT-N\F )
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FER FET FET %
Revenue ION 70,246 58,839 11,407 19.4
Gross Profit EM 24,036 10,047 13,989 139.2
Gross Profit Margin EFE 34.2% 17.1%
Profit/(loss) from operations R, (EE) 8,260 (28,956) 37,216 128.5
Net profit/(loss) attributable to [ AR R A 2
Equity Shareholders w A, (B 18) 9,701 (41,358) 51,059 1235
Net profit/(loss) Margin Fom A, (E5HE) = 13.8% (70.3%)
Earnings/(loss) per Share GREF, (&) US$0.35 (US$2.98 US$3.33
(Basic and diluted) (EAR K #E) centEAL centsZE1Il) centsZE1IL 111.7
Revenue KA

The Group's revenue increased from US$58.8 million in 2018 to US$70.2
million in 2019. The increment of such revenue was mainly due to the
increase in orders as a result of significant increase in upstream capital
expenditure from land drilling rigs in China.

Segment Information by Business Segments

AEBRAMR T — N\FHS8.8EBETTLEME—
E-NEFWN702BBET - WAINEZHRFTEH
Bt $E M FORFE AN HORIEIE R imaT BE4E 0 -

BEBIBEDEZDHER

2019 2018 Increase/(decrease)
—E-hF —E-N\F #m Od)
UsS$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FER % FE1 % FET %
Capital Equipment and B R KA
Packages 39,296 55.9 32,724 55.6 6,572 20.1
Oilfield Expendables and i F#EM & ¥kt
Supplies 28,873 411 24,604 41.8 4,269 17.4
Engineering Services THERRTS 2,077 3.0 1,511 2.6 566 37.5
Total revenue IWAEET 70,246 100.0 58,839 100.0 11,407 19.4
Capital Equipment and Packages EXREREAR

Revenue recognised in Capital Equipment and Packages projects increased
by 20.1% from US$32.7 million in 2018 to US$39.3 million in 2019. The
addition of drilling related equipment of US$6.6 million was mainly driven
by the pick-up of land rigs market and increase in orders in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Oilfield Expendables and Supplies

The increase of 17.4% from US$24.6 million in 2018 to US$28.9 million
in 2019 for Qilfield Expendables and Supplies was due to the increase in
orders of oilfield expendables and supplies from the markets in the PRC
and Mexico with the increase in drilling operations in both countries.

Engineering Services

Engineering Services revenue increased from US$1.5 million in 2018 to
US$2.1 million in 2019 mainly due to the increase in management fee for
lease of offshore rigs.

Segment Information by Geographical Regions
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2019 2018 Increase/(decrease)
—E-hE —ZE-N\F #m Ord)
Us$ 000 US$'000 US$'000
FEx % FE=T % FE=T %
Mainland China R A 40,615 57.8 29,118 49.5 11,497 39.5
North America it 9,562 13.6 10,175 17.2 (613) (6.0)
South America EES 10,614 15.1 11,003 18.7 (389) (3.5)
Europe B 4,622 6.6 5,307 9.0 (685) (12.9)
Singapore N3 559 0.8 94 0.2 465 494.7
Indonesia U 554 0.8 48 0.1 506 1,054.2
Others Hit 3,720 5.3 3,094 5.3 626 20.2
Total revenue WAEF 70,246 100.0 58,839 100.0 11,407 19.4
Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin ERNRERE

The Gross Profit of US$24.0 million for the year of 2019 increased by
139.2% from US$10.0 million in the previous year. Gross Profit Margin
increased from 17.1% in 2018 to 34.2% in 2019. The increase was
mainly due to high profit margin contribution from the increase in sales
of oilfield expendables and land rigs supporting equipment in America
and PRC.

Other Revenue and Net Income

The increase in Other Revenue and Net Income from US$0.9 million
in 2018 to US$3.9 million in 2019 was mainly due to interest income
of deposits and finance income from lease receivables. In 2019, the
unutilised proceeds from rights issues were deposited into the licensed
banks in Hong Kong as the main interest-bearing deposits, resulting in an
increase in the total interest income of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DM

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and Distribution Expenses decreased by US$0.6 million from
US$5.6 million in 2018 to US$5.0 million in 2019. Selling and Distribution
Expenses mainly comprised of sales staff salaries, commissions, marketing
expenses including travel costs and other sales and promotional
expenditure. The decrease of Selling and Distribution Expenses was due
to the decrease in selling expenditures under cost control.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and Administrative Expenses decreased from US$27.7 million
in 2018 to US$24.0 million in 2019. The decrease was mainly due to
decrease in research and development cost and professional fee.

Other Operating Expenses

The decrease in Other Operating Expenses from US$4.2 million in 2018
to US$1.2 million in 2019 was mainly due to decrease in amortisation of
intangible assets as well as one-off cost provision, which incurred in the
last year, in 2019.

Finance Costs

Finance Costs, primarily interest on bank loans and other borrowings and
interest on lease liabilities, amounted to approximately US$1.7 million
in 2019. The Group repaid bank loans in order to reduce interest cost in
2019.

Group'’s Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group carried tangible assets of
approximately US$49.2 million (2018: US$51.1 million) being property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, interest in leasehold land
held for own use under operating leases and non-current assets classified
as held for sale.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's intangible assets was approximately
US$0.3 million (2018: US$0.4 million). The reduction in intangible assets
was due to amortisation charge for the year. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group's interest in associates was approximately US$0.3 million (2018:
US$0.3 million), interest in joint venture was approximately US$42.5
million (2018: US$Nil) and deferred tax assets was approximately US$1.8
million (2018: US$2.5 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current assets amounted to
approximately US$258.6 million (2018: US$228.0 million). Current assets
mainly comprised of inventories of approximately US$149.0 million
(2018: US$145.9 million), trade and other receivables of approximately
US$64.8 million (2018: US$56.3 million), contract assets of approximately
US$1.3 million (2018: US$2.0 million) and lease receivables (current) of
approximately US$3.6 million (2018: US$Nil).

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2019, amount due from a related company amounted
to approximately US$0.1 million (2018: US$0.1 million), pledged bank
deposits amounted to approximately US$1.1 million (2018: US$0.8
million) and cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
US$35.0 million (2018: US$19.8 million).

As at 31 December 2019, current liabilities amounted to approximately
US$228.8 million (2018: US$245.2 million), mainly comprised of trade
and other payables of approximately US$189.5 million (2018: US$201.3
million), bank loans of approximately US$5.0 million (2018: US$10.3
million), and current tax payable of approximately US$4.2 million (2018:
US$4.1 million). The decrease in short-term bank loans was mainly due
to the repayment of the bank loans. Contract liabilities amounted to
US$29.0 million (2018: US$29.4 million) and lease liabilities amounted to
US$1.1 million (2018: US$0.1 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had non-current liabilities of
approximately US$7.0 million (2018: US$7.2 million), which comprised
of bank loans of approximately US$4.2 million (2018: US$7.1 million),
lease liabilities of approximately US$2.8 million (2018: US$0.1 million)
and deferred tax liabilities of US$Nil (2018: US$0.1 million). The Group
monitors capital with reference to its debt position. The Group’s strategy
is to maintain the gearing ratio, being the Group’s total liabilities to total
assets, under 100%. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019 was
66.2% (2018: 89.9%).

Capital Structure

At 31 December 2019, there were 3,069,039,117 shares issued and the
Company carried a share capital of approximately US$39,190,732. On 4
February 2019, the Company increased 1,473,156,204 issued shares by
way of Rights Issue. On 29 October 2019, the Company entered into the
Deed of Settlement with the creditors, pursuant to which the Company
issued 122,726,709 settlement shares.

Charges on Assets
To secure the loans from banks, the Group has charged certain assets to
banks. Details are set out as follows:

(i) Land and Buildings and plant and machinery with aggregate net
book value of US$18.9 million (2018: Interest in leasehold land held
for own use under operating leases, building, inventories, trade
receivables and plant and machinery with aggregate net book value
of US$19.7 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DM

(i)  Corporate guarantees given by Zhengzhou TSC Offshore Equipment
Co. Ltd. and TSC Oil and Gas Services Group Holdings Ltd. to the
extent of banking facilities outstanding of US$Nil (2018: US$3.8
million) as at 31 December 2019.

(i)  Corporate guarantees given by the Company to the extent of
banking facilities outstanding of US$2.2 million (2018: US$3.6
million) as at 31 December 2019.

Certain bank loans of the Group are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to statement of financial position ratios of certain subsidiaries, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions.
The drawn down loan balances would become payable on demand if the
covenants are breached. The Group regularly monitors its compliance
with these covenants. As at 31 December 2019, none of the covenants
relating to the Group’s bank loans had been breached.

Bank loans of US$3,619,000 outstanding as at 31 December 2018 which
the Group did not meet certain covenants had been fully settled during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Foreign Currency Exchange Exposures

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The Group has foreign
exchange exposure resulting from most of the Group'’s subsidiaries in the
PRC carrying out production locally using Renminbi while approximately
50% of the Group’s revenue was denominated in United States dollars.
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, no related hedges
were made by the Group.

In order to mitigate that foreign exchange exposure, the Company may
utilise foreign currency forward contracts to better match the currency of
our revenues and associated costs in the future. However, we do not use
foreign currency forward contracts for trading or speculative purposes.
The Group will actively explore ways to hedge or reduce currency
exchange risk in future.

Staff Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 458 full-time staff
in the United States, the United Kingdom, Brazil, Mexico, United Arab
Emirates, Singapore, Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group's remuneration
policy is basically determined by the performance of individual employees
and the market conditions. The Group also provides other benefits to
its employees, including medical schemes, pension contributions, share
award incentive scheme etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the subscription of shares amounted to
HK$505.07 million. Such proceeds have been used for the intended uses
as set out in the circular of the Company dated 19 January 2018 and
the clarification announcement of the Company dated 29 March 2018
in relation to subscription of shares under specific mandate. As at 31
December 2019, there were no remaining unutilised net proceeds from
the subscription of shares.
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As at 31 December 2019, the use of net proceeds from the subscription #HZE—-ZT—AF+-_A=+—HB AL - REFMEX
is as follows: EHFEABREAT :
Amount for Utilised Unutilised
intended use amount amount
RERAZEH CEASH REALHE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
BE(ER) BE(ER) BE(ER)
Expansion of the Group’s existing EAREMMERHWEER
business and/or potential W iE R B EE TS
acquisition and repayment of debts 237.56 237.56 -
Repayment of the unsecured notes {18 7 &£ [ 2677 A ZE 4L 4
issued by the Group ZE 217.00 217.00 -
General working capital of the Group AEEZ —REEED 50.51 50.51 -
Total 3 505.07 505.07 -
The proceeds from the rights issue amounted to HK$657.3 million. Such ¢ HEAEATEFHIBA657 3B EB T ° ZSHKEEIRE

proceeds have been used for the intended uses as set out in the circular
of the Company dated 11 January 2019. The unutilised proceeds have
been deposited into the licensed banks in Hong Kong as interest-bearing
deposits.

As at 31 December 2019, the use of proceeds from the rights issue is as
follows:

ARBEMR-ZE-NF— A+ HOBHAEY
BRERZER - RPAWAF/RECHFARETER
FERITIE R BIFK o

BE_Z-NAFT+-_A=1t—RRL HEFAEX
HERERBERMT

Amount for Utilised Unutilised
intended use amount amount
REEBHAEE CERAEHE FEASHE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
BE(ER) BE(ER) BE(ER)

Subscription of shares of joint venture RIESE A FRMOKEE
or other investments wE 460.1 320.5 139.6
Repayment of debts of the Group BERALEER 131.5 126.0 5.5
General working capital of the Group ANEEZ — KL EES 65.7 63.0 2.7
Total #Et 657.3 509.5 147.8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DM

STRATEGY AND PROSPECTS

Market Review

In 2019, the global economy contained many uncertainties, and the
world economic situation was bewildering. Despite signs of temporary
pacification of the Sino-U.S. economic and trade frictions, it is difficult
to reach a package solution in the short term. It is expected that
negotiations may still be repeated, and further upgrades will not be ruled
out and will spread to the fields of science and technology, finance, law
and politics. Affected by the global economy, the downward pressure on
China’s economy has increased. The manufacturing industry has entered
a critical period of “climbing”. The overall market slump and unstable
orders may last for a period of time.

For the energy market, in 2019, the international oil price rose first and
then declined, and experienced a sharp shock. The price of Brent crude
oil increased from US$54 at the beginning of the year to US$68 at the
end of the year, an overall increase of approximately 26%. However,
due to the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic and the increase in crude
oil production in Russia and Saudi Arabia, in early 2020, the prices of
WTI crude oil and Brent crude oil fell rapidly by approximately 54% in
three months. The current price of crude oil is close to its lowest level
in 20 years. There will be huge pressure on the growth of shale oil in
the future, and there will a significant trend of industry consolidation
and elimination. The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development cut the forecast of 2020 global economic growth from 2.9%
to 2.4%. If the global spread of the COVID-19 cannot be effectively
controlled in the first quarter of 2020, the slowdown in global economic
growth will further inhibit the increase in crude oil demand, and the
overall recovery of the offshore engineering industry may face more
twists and turns. The global natural gas supply and demand will continue
to be loose, prices will remain low, and the game between the supply
and demand sides and between traditional and emerging countries will
continue to intensify. China is proactively pursuing the transformation
of its energy structure and is vigorously promoting the use of clean
energy. There is a large demand in the clean energy market dominated
by LNG, hydrogen energy, photovoltaic and offshore wind power. The
development potential and investment direction of such clean energy will
remain the focus of our future business transformation.

From the perspective of global supply and demand of offshore assets,
offshore rigs are still oversupplied. In the short term, construction orders
for new rigs remain in serious shortage. The global offshore engineering
equipment has experienced two construction peaks since the 1960s. The
second global construction peak was also the process of the transition
of offshore engineering equipment manufacturing to China, which
objectively also created a good opportunity for China’s offshore asset
management companies to integrate assets. At present, China’s shipyards
have built an inventory of more than 50 units of offshore assets, most
of which are jack-up rigs, accounting for 70% of China’s inventory
of offshore assets. If these stagnant offshore assets can be obtained
at an appropriate market price, it will be a rare historical opportunity
for companies committed to offshore asset integration and operation
management.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the past few years, the upstream capital expenditure of the oil and gas
industry continued to decrease, and the current capital expenditure shows
an obvious growth trend. According to the analysis of RYSTAD ENERGY,
the total expenditure on global offshore oil services in 2019 increased
by 6% over the previous year to US$208 billion, which is expected to
increase by 14% in 2020. CNOOC announced that it will invest US$13.8
billion at the upstream in 2020 to drill more than 200 exploration wells.
In respect of utilisation rate of drilling rigs, it has increased gradually.
According to the analysis of CLARKSONS, the utilisation of floating rigs
and jack-up rigs will continue to rise in 2020 and 2021. In February 2020,
the utilisation rate of global MODU (floating drilling rig) reached 75%, an
increase of 8% from 2019. The utilisation rate is expected to reach 80%
by the end of 2020 and 84% by the end of 2021. In February 2020, the
utilisation rate of jack-up rigs reached 77%, an increase of 8% compared
to 2019. The utilisation rate of the jack-up rigs is expected to reach 82%
by the end of 2020 and 86% by the end of 2021. The daily rate of jack-
up rigs is rising. As of the end of January 2020, the daily rate of high-spec
jack-up rigs had increased by 19% compared to 2019. In some regions,
such as China, the North Sea, the Middle East, Brazil, and Mexico,
offshore drilling and development activities have become increasingly
active.

Strategy and Prospects

The offshore engineering market gradually picked up in 2019. Looking
forward to 2020, we will continue to adhere to the concept of “Offshore
as the base, Energy as the accelerator, Technology as the incubator,
Capital as the value driver and Globalisation as the foundation”, striving
to build the strategic positioning of building a brand as the ”
class operator delivering the integrated chain value of offshore energy
technology”. The focus of implementation and advancement will be
placed on the following aspects:

world-

In terms of strategic business collaboration, in 2020, the Company
will continue to strengthen the collaborative development with strategic
shareholders and business partners including the Fund, CIMC Group,
Minsheng Trust, Jinghong, SHELF, etc. to seek for business development
opportunities for integration of industry and finance, rig asset investment,
lease and sales, equipment sales and project financing to achieve
collaboration and extension on the industrial chain.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DM

In respect of offshore asset management business, good results
had been achieved in 2019. In 2020, the Company will continue to seek
opportunities to integrate high-quality offshore assets and for integration
with upstream and downstream enterprises through sharing of and
cooperation with internal and external strategic resources, to obtain more
synergy benefits from the extenstion of industrial chain to the upstream
and downstream while seeking for potential asset appreciation in the
future. On the other hand, we attach great importance to and develop
the light asset management business model. At present, the Company
manages a total of six units of jack-up rigs and it has improved the
offshore asset management system with a high-quality global offshore
asset management team. In the future, in the international market, in
addition to managing its own assets, it will seek for other offshore assets
in the global market and carry out professional management of offshore
assets.

High-end offshore engineering and oil and gas equipment
business, in 2020, on the basis of high-end equipment manufacturing,
the Company will proactively explore transition from the traditional
drilling accessories supply business to provision of supply chain and
operation and maintenance services to global oil and gas and offshore
engineering customers; the development in concert with offshore asset
management business will provide customers with efficient and long-term
equipment maintenance and spare parts; the Company will proactively
try new business models, such as a new sales model that combines core
equipment including drilling equipment, power control equipment, lifting
equipment and cranes with financial leasing.

As to key regional markets, the Company will continue to focus on
oil and gas and offshore engineering hotspots in 2020, such as Mexico,
the North Sea, the Middle East, West Africa, Brazil, North America and
China. Mexico is currently a hotspot area for global offshore engineering
and has a strong demand for drilling rigs. Last year, the Company was
successfully granted the contract from PEMEX, the national oil company
of Mexico, for lease of two units of jack-up rigs. The Group will use this
opportunity to tap deeper into the resources in the Mexican market and
leverage on the resource advantages accumulated over many years of
development to drive the sustainable development of business orders of
offshore asset management and equipment. As the Chinese government
attaches greater importance to energy security, it has stepped up its
investment in oil and gas upstream, in particular more investment in and
acceleration of oil and gas exploration and development in the western
region, to proactively increase reserves and production. The Company will
adopt a variety of flexible sales and service models to fully meet customer
needs, help customers increase production capacity and achieve improved
performance.

In 2020, the Company will continue to strengthen and standardise
the management process, further implement measures to improve
quality and efficiency to further control costs and reduce expenses, and
formulate an incentive system in line with the short, medium, and long-
term development of the Company to arouse the enthusiasm of directors,
management, employees and strategic stakeholders to the greatest
extent.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLANS FOR FUTURE MATERIAL INVESTMENTS,
ASSETS AND CAPITAL INTEGRATION

The Group strategically positioned itself as “a world-class operator
delivering the integrated chain value of offshore energy technology”.
The Group will seek potential resource integration and investment
opportunities around the marine, energy and technology industry chain.
The Group will place its investment focus on the following potential
opportunities: opportunities for investment in high-tech technology and
intelligent manufacturing fields that are synergistic with the Group's
original high-end equipment manufacturing; it will leverage on the
capital financing advantages of the Fund and listing as well as asset
lease and sales to seek potential opportunities to expand offshore asset
management business projects and for integration of upstream and
downstream enterprises; the Group will proactively explore investment,
integration and acquisition opportunities in fields of clean energy
including LNG, artificial intelligence, big data, and Internet of Things.

In assessing the potential investment or acquisition targets, the Company
considers a combination of factors such as alignment with the Group’s
strategic plans, synergies, market position and strengths, management
team capability, valuation, track record, financial performance and
potential growth. The Group will gradually improve its financial
performance by expanding its business direction and creating a new
profit model, so as to provide a firm basis for future growth expansion.

RESIGNATION AND APPOINTMENT OF
THE CHAIRMAN AND CEO

o Mr. Wang Hongyuan resigned as the chairman of the Board and
CEO of the Company with effect from 19 February 2020.

o Mr. Lou Dongyang was appointed as the chairman of the Board
with effect from 19 February 2020.

o Mr. Cong Yongjian was appointed as the CEO of the Company with
effect from 19 February 2020.

RESIGNATION AND APPOINTMENT OF

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

e Mr. Wang Hongyuan resigned as an executive Director of the
Company due to other commitments with effect from 19 February
2020.

o Mr. Cong Yongjian was appointed as an executive Director of the
Board of the Company with effect from 19 February 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

o Ms. Fu Rui has been appointed as a non-executive Director with
effect from 1 June 2019.

o Mr. Qian Zewei has been appointed as a non-executive Director
with effect from 1 October 2019.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

o Mr. Sun Dongchang has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 12 November 2019.

CHANGE OF BOARD COMMITTEES MEMBERS

e On 19 February 2020, Mr. Wang Hongyuan resigned as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

o On 19 February 2020, Mr. Lou Dongyang was appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

CHANGE OF COMPANY SECRETARY

On 1 July 2019, Ms. Cheung Wai Sze, Candy ceased to serve as the
company secretary of the Company and was replaced by Ms. Koo Ching
Fan.

CHANGE OF AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

On 1 July 2019, Ms. Cheung Wai Sze, Candy ceased to be the authorised
representative to accept service of process and notices on the Company's
behalf in Hong Kong and was replaced by Mr. Zhao Yinan.

SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company adopted a share award plan (“Share Award Plan 1”) on 16
January 2015 (the “Adoption Date”). The Share Award Plan 1 does not
constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules and is at discretion of the Company. The purpose of the Share
Award Plan 1 is to recognise the contributions of officers and employees
of the Group (the “Eligible Persons”), excluding any Directors and any
other connected persons of the Group, towards the development of the
Group in the past or as incentives to selected grantees to achieve higher
than target profits for the Group and to align the interests of the selected
grantees with sustainable growth and development of the Group.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The total number of Shares purchased under the Share Award Plan 1
shall not exceed 3% of the issued Shares (i.e. 21,147,456 Shares) at the
Adoption Date. A trust has been set up and Treasure Maker Investments
Limited has been appointed as the trustee. Pursuant to the Share Award
Plan 1, the trustee may purchase Shares from the public market out of
cash contributed by the Company from time to time. Shares purchased
under the Share Award Plan 1 will be held in trust for the Eligible Persons
until such Shares are vested in accordance with the provisions of the
rules relating to the Share Award Plan 1. The Share Award Plan 1 will
be effective for a period until 15 January 2025 unless terminated at the
discretion of the Board at an earlier date.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the trustee purchased
16,052,456 Shares on the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Share Award
Plan 1 at a total consideration of approximately HK$6,376,530. At the
end of the responding period, there are 21,147,456 shares held by the
trustee. The purchase of the shares under the Share Award Plan 1 has
completed and no grant was made (representing 0.7% of the issued
share capital of the Company).

The Company adopted a new share award plan (“Share Award Plan 2")
on 31 October 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). The Share Award Plan 2
does not constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules and is at discretion of the Company. The purpose of the
Share Award Plan 2 is to recognise the contributions of officers, Directors
and any other connected persons or consultants of the Group (the
“Eligible Persons”) towards the development of the Group in the past or
as incentives to selected grantees to achieve higher than target profits
for the Group and to align the interests of the selected grantees with
sustainable growth and development of the Group.

The total number of Shares purchased under the Share Award Plan 2
shall not exceed 3% of the issued Shares (i.e. 92,071,174 Shares) at the
Adoption Date. A trust has been set up and Treasure Maker Investments
Limited has been appointed as the trustee. Pursuant to the Share Award
Plan 2, the trustee may purchase Shares from the public market out of
cash contributed by the Company from time to time. Shares purchased
under the Share Award Plan 2 will be held in trust for the Eligible Persons
until such Shares are vested in accordance with the provisions of the rules
relating to the share award plan. The Share Award Plan 2 will be effective
for a period until 30 October 2029 unless terminated at the discretion of
the Board at an earlier date.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the trustee purchased
15,852,544 Shares on the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Share Award
Plan 2 at a total consideration of approximately HK$5,495,184 and no
grant was made (representing 0.5% of the issued share capital of the
Company).
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Subsequent to 31 December 2019, pursuant to the terms of the rules
and trust deed of the Share Award Plan 2, the trustee of the share award
plan purchased 4,110,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at a total
consideration of about HK$1,148,857. As at the date of this report, the
trustee held a total 19,962,544 Shares (representing 0.7% of the issued
share capital of the Company) under the Share Award Plan 2.

SHARE AWARD INCENTIVE SCHEME

The Company adopted a share award incentive scheme (“Share Award
Incentive Scheme”) on 27 May 2016 (the” Adoption Date of Share Award
Incentive Scheme”). The purposes of the Share Award Incentive Scheme
are (i) to align the interests of Eligible Persons with those of the Group
through ownership of Shares, dividends and other distributions paid on
Shares and/or the increase in value of the Shares; and (ii) to encourage
and retain Eligible Persons to make contributions to the long-term
growth and profits of the Group. The Share Award Incentive Scheme is a
separate scheme from the Share Award Plan adopted by the Company on
16 January 2015, which is specifically for granting Share awards sourced
from existing Shares purchased from the stock market. The Share Award
Incentive Scheme will give the Company flexibility in granting Awards of
new Shares. The Share Award Incentive Scheme will be effective for a
period until 26 May 2026 unless terminated at the discretion of the Board
at an earlier date.

The Company has approved the adoption of the Share Award Incentive
Scheme on 27 May 2016 by the shareholders by poll at the AGM,
pursuant to which new Shares of not more than 3% of the total number
of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date of Share Award Incentive
Scheme (i.e. 21,213,606 new Shares) will be allotted and issued to
the Trustee by the Company, and will be held on trust by the Trustee
for the Selected Participants before vesting. For details, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 7 April 2016 and the Company’s
circular dated 8 April 2016.

No grant was made for the year ended 31 December 2019. As at 31
December 2019, the total number of shares that may be granted under
the Share Award Incentive Scheme is 21,213,606 Shares, representing
0.7% of the issued share capital of the Company.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION - SUBSCRIPTION
OF NOTES

On 9 December 2019, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement in respect of the subscription, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for or procure the subscription by
its nominee(s) of, and China Tonghai International Financial Limited (the
issuer) has conditionally agreed to issue to the Company or its nominee(s),
the notes in the principal amount of HK$50,000,000 for a term of six
months with an interest rate of 5.3% per annum payable on the maturity
date and the extended maturity date (if applicable).

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION - DEED OF
SETTLEMENT AND PROPOSED ISSUE OF
SETTLEMENT SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 29 October 2019, the Company entered into the deed of settlement
with JH Oilfield Equipment & Technology LLC (“JH Qilfield”) and
Heilongjiang Jinghong Petroleum Equipment Manufacture Limited
("Jinghong”) (the creditors), pursuant to which the Company has agreed
to settle the debts by issuing 122,726,709 settlement shares at the issue
price of HK$0.56 per settlement share to Mr. Zhang Baoyou (the nominee
of the creditors). The settlement shares are to be issued under the general
mandate.

Information of the Nominee
The nominee, Mr. Zhang Baoyou, is the chairman of Jinghong who holds
59.62% of the equity interest in Jinghong.

Information of JH Oilfield

JH Qilfield is a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of
the U.S. Its ultimate beneficial controllers are Xu Hong and Li Liangxiong.
JH Qilfield is principally engaged in the sales and service of top drive and
petroleum equipment.

Information of Jinghong

Jinghong is a company established under the laws of the PRC with
limited liability. Zhang Baoyou, Zhang Baoguo and Zhang Chunrong
are the ultimate beneficial controllers of Jinghong. It is engaged in the
manufacturing, leasing, overhauling, technical consultation, technical
service, mechanical processing, rubber product processing, general
equipment, electrical machinery, steel, hardware products wholesale,
retail and import and export of oil drilling industry.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREER

Executive Directors
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Mr. Cong Yongjian, aged 44, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Board and CEO of the Company with effect from 19
February 2020. He is an attorney admitted in the PRC and New York,
the United States of America. He has over 15 years of special situations
investments and legal practice experience and extensive experience
in cross-border acquisitions, private equity investments, mezzanine
financing, debt restructuring, asset restructuring and other special
situations investments. Mr. Cong has been the person in charge of China
Merchants Capital Marine Industry Fund (BERBERNEFEEES)
since 2013. From 2011 to 2013, he was one of the founding members
of China Development Bank International Holdings Ltd (“CDBI"), where
he served in the Investment Committee and was in charge of fund
department and legal department. At CDBI, Mr. Cong led the equity
investment amounting to US$200 million to Alibaba Group as well as
many privatization transactions of Chinese concept stocks listed overseas.
In addition, as the person in charge of the fund department of CDBI, he
directly led the foundation of certain USD or RMB funds with a total size
over US$5 billion. From 2005 to 2010, he worked in the special situations
investment department in J. P. Morgan, Standard Chartered Bank and
other foreign financial institutions, and mainly engaged in private equity
investments, real estate investments, mezzanine financing, acquisition
and disposal of non-performing assets and other special situations
investments. During that period, he participated in debt restructuring,
financing and acquisition transactions of a number of real estate projects
in Beijing, Shanghai, Dalian, Chongging, etc., and as the key person in
charge participated in stripping, restructuring and acquisition of non-
performing assets of financial institutions such as China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd and Maybank in Malaysia. Mr. Cong obtained
degrees of Master of Laws from both University of International Business
and Economics in PRC and Cornell University in the United States of
America. Moreover, he was an independent non-executive director of
Sunway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 00058HK) from 14
August 2015 to 6 June 2019.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGREEE

Mr. JIANG Bing Hua, aged 69, is the Co-Chairman of the Company. He
is a co-founder of the Group. He is an executive Director of the Group
and he is responsible for the Group’s overall strategy planning and
business development. He obtained his bachelor’s degree in offshore
structure engineering from the Tianjin University (K}ZAXZ) in the PRC
in 1980 and acquired his master’s degree in business administration
from the University of Dallas in the U.S.A. in 1993. He has 44 years of
experience in the oil and gas industry. Prior to founding the Group, he
worked for the Sinopec group, the group of China National Petroleum
Corporation and China National Offshore Oil Corporation in various
positions such as driller, drilling superintendent, drilling manager,
operation manager and company representative.
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Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan, aged 61, is a co-founder and has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Group since 22 June 2017. He
obtained his bachelor’s degree majoring in drilling engineering from the
China University of Petroleum (FF B1/A)HAER) in 1982 and acquired his
master’s degree in petroleum engineering from the University of Alaska-
Fairbanks in the U.S.A. in 1989 and he received an executive master’s
in business administration (“EMBA") from China Europe International
Business School in 2012. He has 35 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. Prior to founding the Group, he worked for a subsidiary of the
group of China National Petroleum Corporation in China and for Cook
Inlet Region Inc. in Alaska. He currently is a member of several oil industry
associations and professional organizations including the Society of
Petroleum Engineers and the American Drilling Engineers.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEE

Non-executive Directors

FHTES

Mr. WANG Jianzhong, aged 46, has been appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 4 July 2016. He graduated from
Beijing Normal University in China with a Master degree in Management,
Business Administration in 1998. He started working in 1998 and he
is currently the president of CIMC Raffles Offshore (Singapore) Limited
("CIMC Raffles”). From 1998 to 2006, he was senior manager of capital
operation department of China Ocean Shipping (Group) Corporation
(“COSCO"). From 2006 to 2007, he was deputy general manager of
Taicang CIMC Container Co., Ltd. From 2007 to 2014, he was general
manager of the enterprise management department of CIMC, where
he notably created and promoted the CIMC “LEAN ONE” management
model -based on the LEAN concept which significantly improved the
group’s annual revenue. The LEAN ONE Concept attracted favourable
reviews from the “Harvard Business Review” and “Tsinghua Business
Review”. From 2010 to 2014, he acted as secretary general of group
leadership council of CIMC (FEEEFAHEEZEE) to promote
upgraded changes for CIMC. From June 2014 to December 2015, he
was vice president of CIMC Raffles. From December 2015 to date, he has
been president of CIMC Raffles.
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Mr. LOU Dongyang, aged 44, has been appointed as the chairman of
the Board of the Company with effect from 19 February 2020 and as a
non-executive Director with effect from April 2018. He is also the chief
financial officer of China Merchants Industry Holdings Co., Ltd. Mr. Lou
has served as an assistant engineer in the Chemical Engineering Office
of the Institute of Standardization of Nuclear Industry and as secretary-
general for the National Technical Committee for Standardization of
Radioisotopes (& BIntaT 1* E 7 RIZE(L =2 TZ 8 €) from July 1997
to October 2001, as an engineer in the Planning Department in China
Isotope Company from October 2001 to August 2003, as a specialist
of the board of supervisors for Key Large State-Owned Enterprises
under the State Council from August 2003 to August 2004, as principal
staff member of the board of supervisors for Key Large State-Owned
Enterprises under the State Council from September 2008 to September
2012, as the assistant to the department director of the intellectual
property administrative department of China Merchants Group Limited
("CM Group”) from September 2012 to May 2015, as the assistant to
the department director of the finance department (intellectual property
department) of CM Group from May 2015 to October 2015, and as the
deputy general manager of the finance department (intellectual property
department) of CM Group from October 2015 to November 2017. Mr.
Lou obtained a bachelor’'s degree in applied chemistry from Peking
University in 1997 and a master’s degree in business administration also
from Peking University in 2002.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGREEE

Ms. Fu Rui, aged 38, is an intermediate economist. She was appointed
as a non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 June
2019. Since June 2016, she has been the deputy general manager of the
asset operations department of the shipping investment management
headquarters of China Minsheng Trust Co., Ltd.. From April 2007 to June
2016, She worked as a senior director of China Classification Society.
Ms. Fu obtained a bachelor’s and master’s degree in Maritime Law from
Dalian Maritime University, in the PRC in 2004 and 2007 respectively.
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Mr. Qian Zewei, aged 44, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 October 2019. He is currently
a member of the Business Decision/Investment Decision Committee,
Managing Director and Head of Special Assets Department of China
Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings Company Limited (" Great Wall
International”). Mr. Qian had served as Head of Private Equity Investment
Department and Head of Bay Area Investment Department of Great Wall
International. From 2014 to 2016, he was the Investment Director of
the Investment Management Department of China Everbright Limited.
From 2008 to 2014, he served as Vice President and Director of the
Private Equity Investment Department of Daiwa Capital Markets Hong
Kong Limited. From 2001 to 2005, he worked as a senior research and
development engineer at the Beijing R&D Centre of Huawei Technologies
Co., Ltd. Mr. Qian holds a master’s degree in finance from London
Business School and a master’s degree in computer application from
Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

BAUFHITES

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny, aged 55, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director since October 2005. He is a partner
and founder of Kenny Chan & Co., a firm of Certified Public Accountants.
He has over 30 years' experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and
corporate finance and has been involved in several mergers, acquisitions
and initial public offering projects. He holds a bachelor of commerce
degree from the University of New South Wales and is a member of
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand, the Association of
International Accountants, CPA Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
He is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He served as president of the Hong Kong Branch of the Association of
International Accountants in the years 2012-2015. He is an independent
non-executive director of Zhongyuan Bank Co., Ltd., Minsheng
Education Group Company Limited, Pak Tak International Limited, Hebei
Construction Group Corporation Limited and Kingland Group Holdings
Limited, all are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. ZOU Zhendong, aged 50, has been appointed an independent non-
executive Director since May 2018. He is also serving as the independent
director of Bestsun Energy Co. Ltd., an A share company listed in the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, the senior partner of Sinowing Law LLP, Legal
Representative of Sinowing (Beijing) AMC Co., Ltd., and further and
concurrently as a member of the High-tech and E-Commerce Committee
& International Business Committee of All China Lawyers Association. Mr.
Zou used to work as the officer for the Chinese People’s Association for
Friendship with Foreign Countries, as the staff for China Native Produce
& Animal By-Products Import & Export Corp., as the director of the 4th
Department for China Commercial Foreign Trade Corporation, and
as the partner in charge of international business department and IPR
department for Beijing Dacheng Law Firm (aka Dentons for the moment).
Mr. Zou was awarded a Bachelor Degree by the Renmin University
of China in 1992, with major in international politics and minor in
international economics. As being jointly elected by the Ministry of Justice
of the People’s Republic of China and Lord Chancellor’s Office of the
United Kingdom, Mr. Zou has worked and trained himself in London.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEE

Mr. CHEN Weidong, aged 64, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from June 2018. Mr. Chen has over
30 years’ experience in offshore oil and gas industry. He supervised and
organised 4 published books on petroleum economics and geopolitics.
Mr. Chen is now serving as Guest Professor at Renmin University of
China, Invited Researcher at Energy Security Center of Graduate School
of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, Dean of Minde Institute and
Chair of DFS Energy Consultant (Beijing) Ltd. Mr. Chen used to work as
Chief Energy Researcher of CNOOC Energy Economics Institute Executive
Vice President, Secretary of Board of Directors, and Chief Strategy Officer
of China Qilfield Services Limited (a H-share company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 2002, stock
code: 2883). Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in geophysical
exploration studies from Ocean University of China (formerly as Shandong
College of Oceanology) in the People’s Republic of China in 1982 and
an MBA from Peking University in July 2001. He graduated from China
University of Political Science and Law with a master diploma in July
2005.
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Mr. Sun Dongchang, aged 66, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 12 November 2019.
He is currently a professor-level senior engineer of Shengli Petroleum
Administration Bureau (B5%/A B E ), oil field senior expert, expert
on “government special allowance” of the State Council, senior expert
of the Drilling Technology Institute, Shengli Petroleum Administration
Bureau (5 F1|#& #B%), and consultant of State Oil Drilling and Exploitation
Equipment and Tool Standardization Committee (% Bl #& K 3% B
T HEE({LEZEE). He was the deputy secretary general of Chinese
Society of Naval Architects and Marine Engineers during the period from
2003 to 2013. During the period from 2001 to 2013, he served as a
professor-level senior engineer, the chief engineer, the vice president
and an oil field senior expert at the Drilling Technology Institute, Shengli
Petroleum Administration Bureau (75 h & 12 B H T2 556).
During the period from 1996 to 2001, he served as a senior engineer and
the chief engineer at the Drilling Technology Institute, Shengli Petroleum
Administration Bureau (B4 hE 12 B H TEMH5hT). During the
period from 1987 to 1996, he worked as an engineer, senior engineer
and the director at the Marine Research Branch of Drilling Technology
Institute, Shengli Petroleum Administration Bureau (B5%|f & 2 B
$&H T E A8 )8)¥ A7), During the period from 1975 to 1987, he
worked as a technician, assistant engineer and the deputy director at the
Shallow Sea Office of Drilling Technology Institute, Shengli Petroleum
Administration Bureau (57| A H & 12 B ¥ H TEMFRFLEZEE). Mr.
Sun holds a degree majoring in oil field equipment from Department of
Mechanics, China University of Petroleum and a master degree in naval
architecture and ocean engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEE

Senior Management
SREEE

Mr. Cong Yongjian, aged 44, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Board and CEO of the Company with effect from 19
February 2020. He is an attorney admitted in the PRC and New York,
the United States of America. He has over 15 years of special situations
investments and legal practice experience and extensive experience
in cross-border acquisitions, private equity investments, mezzanine
financing, debt restructuring, asset restructuring and other special
situations investments. Mr. Cong has been the person in charge of China
Merchants Capital Marine Industry Fund (BERBERNEFEEES)
since 2013. From 2011 to 2013, he was one of the founding members
of China Development Bank International Holdings Ltd (“CDBI"), where
he served in the Investment Committee and was in charge of fund
department and legal department. At CDBI, Mr. Cong led the equity
investment amounting to US$200 million to Alibaba Group as well as
many privatization transactions of Chinese concept stocks listed overseas.
In addition, as the person in charge of the fund department of CDBI, he
directly led the foundation of certain USD or RMB funds with a total size
over US$5 billion. From 2005 to 2010, he worked in the special situations
investment department in J. P. Morgan, Standard Chartered Bank and
other foreign financial institutions, and mainly engaged in private equity
investments, real estate investments, mezzanine financing, acquisition
and disposal of non-performing assets and other special situations
investments. During that period, he participated in debt restructuring,
financing and acquisition transactions of a number of real estate projects
in Beijing, Shanghai, Dalian, Chongging, etc., and as the key person in
charge participated in stripping, restructuring and acquisition of non-
performing assets of financial institutions such as China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd and Maybank in Malaysia. Mr. Cong obtained
degrees of Master of Laws from both University of International Business
and Economics in PRC and Cornell University in the United States of
America. Moreover, he was an independent non-executive director of
Sunway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 00058HK) from 14
August 2015 to 6 June 2019.
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Mr. JIANG Bing Hua, aged 69, is the Co-Chairman of the Company. He
is a co-founder of the Group. He is an executive Director of the Group
and he is responsible for the Group’s overall strategy planning and
business development. He obtained his bachelor’'s degree in offshore
structure engineering from the Tianjin University (K}#ZAXZ) in the PRC
in 1980 and acquired his master’s degree in business administration
from the University of Dallas in the U.S.A. in 1993. He has 44 years of
experience in the oil and gas industry. Prior to founding the Group, he
worked for the Sinopec group, the group of China National Petroleum
Corporation and China National Offshore Oil Corporation in various
positions such as driller, drilling superintendent, drilling manager,
operation manager and company representative.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan, aged 61, is a co-founder and has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Group since 22 June 2017. He
obtained his bachelor’s degree majoring in drilling engineering from the
China University of Petroleum (R EI/AHAZR) in 1982 and acquired his
master’s degree in petroleum engineering from the University of Alaska-
Fairbanks in the U.S.A. in 1989 and he received an executive master’s
in business administration (“EMBA") from China Europe International
Business School in 2012. He has 35 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. Prior to founding the Group, he worked for a subsidiary of the
group of China National Petroleum Corporation in China and for Cook
Inlet Region Inc. in Alaska. He currently is a member of several oil industry
associations and professional organizations including the Society of
Petroleum Engineers and the American Drilling Engineers.
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Mr. WANG Yong, aged 57, is the President of the Group with effect
from 28 April 2016. He is responsible for the daily operations and business
activities of the Group. He is also the director and chief executive officer
of a subsidiary, OIM Pte. Ltd. He joined the Company in April 2012 as
the senior Group vice president and Group chief operations officer. Prior
to joining the Company, he was the general manager for Weatherford
International China. In his 17 years with Weatherford International,
he held several managerial roles including global business alignment
manager and business development manager. He started his career
in the oil industry as a drilling engineer for China National Petroleum
Corporation after graduating from the China Petroleum University in
1982. He also spent five years in the China Petroleum University teaching
drilling engineering courses before completing his first master's degree
in petroleum engineering from the Louisiana State University in 1993. He
also holds an EMBA from the China Europe International Business School.
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Mr. XIE Shaohua, aged 49, has been appointed as chief financial officer
of the Company with effect from 1 July 2018. Mr. Xie graduated from
Central University of Finance and Economics in 1993 and received master
degrees at the University of International Business and Economics and The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2003 and 2005 respectively. Mr. XIE
is a Chinese senior accountant. In 2016, he was awarded by the Ministry
of Finance as a national leading accounting talents. From November 1998
to October 2002, he worked in the finance department of SINOTRANS
& CSC Group Company. From November 2002 to May 2007, he served
as the deputy general manager of the finance department of Sinotrans
Limited (H shares, stock code: 00598). From September 2007 to June
2018, he was appointed as deputy general manager and chief financial
officer of Sinotrans Shipping Co., Ltd. (red chip, stock code: 00368).
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Mr. YANG Guohui, aged 46, appointed as an executive Director and
chief operating officer of the Company with effect from 9 February 2018
and he has resigned as an executive Director with effect from 1 April
2018 due to work reallocation. Mr. Yang remains as the chief operating
officer of the Group. He is also an executive director of China Merchants
Capital Management (International) Limited. He worked for various
positions such as an engineer, a manager in workforce planning and a
manager in assets transactions under the group companies of Transocean
Ltd. during the period from 2001 to 2013. He then worked as the general
manager of ESSM Pte Ltd. from September 2013 to October 2014 and
chief operating officer for Scott & English Energy Pte Ltd. in Singapore
from August 2015 to 2017. He obtained a master’s degree in engineering
from University of Petroleum in 1999. He also obtained a master’s degree
in business administration from Nanyang Technological University,
Singapore in 2017. He is part of the management team of China
Merchant Great-Wall Capital Management Ltd, which holds in aggregate
81% beneficial interests in Meris Global Investments Limited. Meris
Global Investments Limited is a coinvestment vehicle of the management
team of China Merchant GreatWall Capital Management Ltd.
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Mr. Chen Yungqiang, aged 54, has served as the chief executive officer
of TSC (China) since 2005 and has been appointed as the vice president
of the Company with effect from 15 February 2020. Mr. Chen is also
in full charge of the Group’s operations in the PRC and is responsible
for the sales and promotion of the Group’s products in the PRC market.
Mr. Chen studied industrial enterprise management at the Hangzhou
University of Electronic Science and Technology (fi/H & FRIH A Z2). Mr.
Chen joined the Group in August 2001 as a general manager of HHCT, a
subsidiary of the Company, in Xi‘an, China till 2005. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chen worked with Xi'an Petroleum Exploration Instrument
Complex (AL A MR EES 4 M) for 14 years in various positions
including assistant factory head, supervisor of electric driven production
lines and manager of its sales branch for drilling rigs.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The board of the Directors (the “Board”) hereby presents their report and
the audited financial statements of the Company for the Year.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Subsequent to the approval of the change of company name by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 3 January 2019, the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name
and the Certificate of Secondary Name were issued by the Registrar of
Companies in Cayman Islands on 11 January 2019, and the Certificate
of Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong
Company was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 29
January 2019 both certifying the change of English name of the Company
from “TSC Group Holdings Limited” to “CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding
Co., Ltd.” and the adoption of the Chinese name "ZER BB & F AL R R
IR ERR AR as the dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company.
Further details regarding the Change of Company Name were set out in
the announcements dated 23 November 2018 and 13 February 2019;
and the circular of the Company dated 4 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements. It will expand to the offshore asset management
and operation business continuously. Save as disclosed above, there were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities
during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Company’s results for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in
the financial statements on pages 117 to 242.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends in respect
of the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy is adopted by the Company which aims at setting out
the principles to be followed for paying dividends to the shareholders of
the Company. When considering the dividend payment, the Board shall
take into account the factors including but not limited to the Company’s
financial results, general business conditions and strategies, and statutory
and regulatory restrictions. There is no assurance that dividends will be
declared or distributed in any particular amount or in any form for each
year or in any year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Company for the five financial years ended 31 December 2019, are
extracted from the audited financial statements of the relevant annual
reports of the Company, and are set out on page 9. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements of the Company for the
Year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES

CMIC considers a high degree of social responsibility, environmental
protection, safety and sustainable economy as key factors in ensuring
business continuity and success. The Company has introduced effective
tools to ensure full implementation of social, safety and environmental
policies within the Company to ensure compliance with the relevant legal
and regulatory requirements as described in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing and Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Details of the Company’s ESG performance for the Year can be found in
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” as set out on pages 82
to 106 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE
AWARDS

The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued share capital
during the Year are set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements. In
particular, details of the rights issue and issuance of settlement shares are
set out in notes 31(b)iii) and (iv), respectively. Details of the Company’s
share option schemes and share award schemes are set out in notes 29
and 30 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities, except that the trustee of the Share Award Plan, pursuant
to the terms of the rules and trust deed of the Share Award Plans 1 and 2,
purchased on the Stock Exchange a total number of 31,905,000 Shares
at a total consideration of about HK$11,871,715.

Subsequent to 31 December 2019, pursuant to the terms of the rules and
trust deed of the Share Award Plan 2, the trustee of the Share Award
Plan 2 purchased 4,110,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at a total
consideration of HK$1,148,857. As at the date of this report, the trustee
held a total 41,110,000 shares (representing 1.3% of the issued share
capital of the Company) under the Share Award Plans 1 and 2.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 31(a) to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 121,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company as at 31 December 2019, as computed in accordance
with the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands amounted to
$88,761,000 (2018: $26,012,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Year under review, sales to the Company’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 42% of the Company’s total sales for the
Year and sales to the largest customer included therein accounted for
approximately 15% of the Company’s total sales.

Purchases from the Company’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 31% of the Company'’s total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 9% of the Company’s total purchases.

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS” and note 34 to the financial statements, none of the
Directors, or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any beneficial interest in the Company'’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. WANG Hongyuan (resigned on 19 February 2020)
Mr. JJANG Bing Hua

Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan

Mr. CONG Yongjian (appointed on 19 February 2020)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. WANG lJianzhong

Mr. LOU Dongyang

Ms. FU Rui (appointed on 1 June 2020)

Mr. QIAN Zewei (appointed on 1 October 2019)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny

Mr. ZOU Zhendong

Mr. CHEN Weidong

Mr. Sun Dongchang (appointed on 12 November 2019)

In accordance with Articles 86 and 87 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Cong Yongjian, Mr. Jiang Bing Hua, Mr. Zhang Menggui,
Morgan, Ms. Fu Rui, Mr. Qian Zewei, Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny and
Mr. Sun Dongchang will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Jiang Bing Hua has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 28 November
2005 and expiring on 27 November 2008, renewable automatically for
successive terms of three years from 28 November 2008, 28 November
2011, 28 November 2014 and 28 November 2017 and respectively unless
terminated by either party giving to the other not less than three months’
prior written notice. Mr. Jiang is entitled to an annual remuneration of
US$250,000. Mr. Jiang is entitled to variable remuneration comprising
of ex-gratia annual bonus, which is subject to his performance and the
performance of the Company and the approval of the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Cong Yongjian has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from 19 February 2020
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company. He has waived entitlement to annual remuneration.

Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan has entered into an appointment contract
with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing on 22 June 2017
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association, unless and until terminated by not less than 3
months’ prior notice in writing served by either party to the other. Mr.
Zhang is entitled to an annual remuneration of US$250,000. Mr. Zhang is
entitled to variable remuneration comprising of ex- gratia annual bonus,
which is subject to his performance and the performance of the Company
and the approval of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Wang Jianzhong has entered into an appointment contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 4 July 2016
and expiring on 3 July 2019, renewable automatically for successive
terms of three years from 4 July 2019 subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless
terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three months’
prior written notice. Mr. Wang is entitled to receive emoluments of
HK$120,000 per annum.

Mr. Lou Dongyang has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from 1 April 2018 subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Mr. Lou has waived entitlement to annual remuneration.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Ms. Fu Rui has entered into an appointment contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 1 June 2019 and expiring
on 31 May 2022 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated by giving
either party to the other not less than three months’ prior written notice.
Ms. Fu Rui has waived entitlement to annual remuneration.

Mr. Qian Zewei has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 1 October 2019
and expiring on 30 September 2022 subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless
terminated by giving either party to the other not less than three months’
prior written notice. Mr. Qian Zewei has waived entitlement to annual
remuneration.

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny has entered into an appointment contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 20
October 2005 and expiring on 19 October 2008, renewable automatically
for successive terms of three years from 20 October 2008, 20 October
2011, 20 October 2014 and 20 October 2017 respectively subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles
of Association, unless terminated by giving either party to the other not
less than one month’ prior written notice. Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny is
entitled to receive emoluments of HK$120,000.

Mr. Zou Zhendong has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 18 May 2018 and
expiring on 17 May 2021 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated by giving
either party to the other not less than three months’ prior written notice.
Mr. Zou Zhendong is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$120,000.

Mr. Chen Weidong has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 5 June 2018 and
expiring on 4 June 2021 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the Articles of Association, unless terminated by either
party giving to the other not less than three months’ prior written notice.
Mr. Chen Weidong is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$120,000.

Mr. Sun Dongchang has entered into an appointment contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 12 November
2019 and expiring on 11 November 2022 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association,
unless terminated by either party giving to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice. Mr. Sun Dongchang is entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$120,000.

Except for Mr. Jiang Bing Hua and Mr. Zhang Menggui, no other
Directors are entitled to any variable remuneration.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory obligations.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in the information of directors since the publication of the
2018 annual report is set out below pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the
Listing Rules:

RESIGNATION AND APPOINTMENT OF
THE CHAIRMAN AND CEO

o Mr. Wang Hongyuan resigned as the chairman of the Board and
CEO of the Company with effect from 19 February 2020.

e Mr. Lou Dongyang was appointed as the chairman of the Board
with effect from 19 February 2020.

o Mr. Cong Yongjian was appointed as the CEO of the Company with
effect from 19 February 2020.

RESIGNATION AND APPOINTMENT OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

° Mr. Wang Hongyuan resigned as an executive Director of the
Company due to other commitments with effect from 19 February
2020.

o Mr. Cong Yongjian was appointed as an executive Director of the
Board of the Company with effect from 19 February 2020.

APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

o Ms. Fu Rui has been appointed as a non-executive Director with
effect from 1 June 2019.

o Mr. Qian Zewei has been appointed as a non-executive Director
with effect from 1 October 2019.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

o Mr. Sun Dongchang has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 12 November 2019.

CHANGE OF BOARD COMMITTEES MEMBERS

e On 19 February 2020, Mr. Wang Hongyuan resigned as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

e On 19 February 2020, Mr. Lou Dongyang was appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent companies was a party or were parties and in
which a Director or his/her connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year under
review or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Under the Company’s articles of association, every director or other
officer of the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses or liabilities which
he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his
office or otherwise in relation thereto. A directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance is in place to protect the directors and officers of the Group
against any potential liability arising from the Group’s activities which
such directors and officers may be held liable.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Performance and Key Financial Indicators

In 2019, the Company successfully integrated 6 units of jack-up drilling
rigs. In particular, the joint venture bareboat chartered two drilling rigs
to SMS to provide services to Abu Dhabi National Oil Company and
entered into agreements with SHELF in relation to sales of two rigs.
Moreover, it and the Fund jointly increased their capital investment into
SHELF and thus jointly hold 19.4% shares of SHELF, becoming SHELF's
largest shareholder. An overseas subsidiary and its partner CP Latina
jointly won the contract for the offshore rig service project of Pemex, the
national oil company of Mexico, in relation to provision of two units of
JU2000E jack-up drilling rigs to Pemex. In the same year, the Company
proactively developed land rig projects, and it entered into orders in
relation to several sets of electric control equipment and services with
CNPC and was granted the contract in relation of land rig equipment
and accessories project of Tarim oildom in Xinjiang. In October 2019, the
Company settled the debts by issuing to Jinghong Company 122,726,709
settlement shares at the issue price of HK$0.56 per settlement share,
representing a premium of 115% over the closing price on the last
trading day.

The key financial and business performance indicators comprise
profitability growth, return on equity and gearing ratio. Details of
profitability analysis are shown in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section of this annual report. The Group’s return on equity,
based on Profit/(Loss) to Equity Shareholders to Total Equity to Equity
shareholders, was better from -144.3% to 8.0% in the year under
review as compared to the previous year, which was mainly due to the
substantial write downs of assets and provision for receivables in 2018 as
a result of the challenging business environment in the O&G industry. The
Group's gearing ratio, calculated based on total liabilities to total assets,
decreased from 89.9% in 2018 to 66.2% in the Year under review; the
Group will continue to safeguard its capital adequacy position, whilst
maintaining a balance between business growth and risk management.

A review of the business of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the sections of “Chairmen’s and
CEQ's Statements”, “Market Review and Prospect” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Risk Management

It is the Company’s development strategy to establish a risk management
system covering all the business segments to monitor, assess and manage
various risks in the Company’s activities. The management has identified
the top risks and conducted regular review of industry, policy, operational
and currency risks.

Major Risk Identified

Industry risk: In an over-supply market environment, O&G companies
have been facing increasingly fierce competition, and lower demand will
have impact on the operating results of the Company to a certain extent
in the future. In light of this, the Company will enhance the operational
efficiency, enrich its product portfolio, raise its product quality and put
emphasis on value maximisation and increase its competitiveness. In
addition, the Company has diversified its business from Oil and Gas E&P
industry to P&A and Decommissioning industry.

Government Policy risk: The O&G industry is one of the industries that
the PRC Government supports in its 5 year development plan. The
development of the Company will be affected by the direction of such
policies which will have some impact on the level of support from PRC
Government.

Operational risk: As stated in the annual report, the Company is relying
on a few customers. If the Company fails to secure new contracts
from such customers, the Company’s operating results will be affected
significantly. In light of the above, the Company has established
certain level of alliance with these customers for maintaining long term
relationships and to enhance the Company'’s future development.

Currency Risk: The value of Renminbi is affected by the global economic
and political environment which has led to a significant depreciation
recently. As an international company, sales contracts are usually signed
in US currency while production costs are denominated in Renminbi
as the major production center is located in Mainland China. Given
the nature of our business, the Company will use more domestic bank
borrowings in order to mitigate its currency risk.

Sustainability Initiatives

The Company is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a positive framework for motivating
staff and promoting sustainable relationships with customers, suppliers,
service vendors, regulators and shareholders, and contributes to the
community in which we conduct our businesses for creating a sustainable
return to the Company. The Company has implemented energy saving
practices in offices and branch premises where applicable.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Sustainability Initiatives (Continued)

The Company has compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated
with the continuing responsibility to monitor adherence and compliance
with all significant legal and regulatory requirements. These policies and
procedures are reviewed regularly. As far as the Company is aware, it has
complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

Further discussion and analysis of the Company’s principal activities as
required by schedule 5 the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be
found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out in pages 25 to
39 of this Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO™)), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors
as referred to in Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

Long Position in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company:
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Name of Directors interests interests interests interests Total capital
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Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan 64,679,100 - - - 64,679,100 2.10%
SREESE

Mr. Jiang Bing Hua 25,665,240 - - — 25,665,240 0.84%
BRELE

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny 500,000 - - - 500,000 0.02%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long Position in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company: (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as referred
to in Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES” above “Share Award Plan” and “Share
Award Incentive Scheme” contained in Management Discussion and
Analysis” section of this annual report and note 29 to the Financial
Statements, and in the share option scheme disclosures in note 30 to the
financial statements, at no time during the Year under review, no rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company was granted to any Director or their respective spouse
or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER FERRREMA TR G K AERRKR G
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN PHERE KRR
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons had interests or short W-—Z—AF+_A=+—H U FTALTRAQA
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which as B R ABEEMD T - HERIE B HF LS 555336
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company B2 AR QB EEMAERSRSAR

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

(i) Long Positions in Ordinary Shares and Underlying () RERAEBERREBBRONGTR :
Shares of the Company:
Approximate
Approximate  percentage
percentage of the
of the shareholding
shareholding if the
asat  Repurchase
the Latest ~ Mandate is
Capacity and Number of Practicable exercised
Name of Shareholders nature of interest shares Date in full
RE# fe B
AfTAfe  REERE
BREY  TEZER
BERE/ 8 BORERNE RIDHE BAL BRESH
China Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings Company Limited (Note 1) Corporate 1,530,372,000 49.86 55.41
HE R EE (BB ERER D (1) AT
China Great Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd. Corporate 1,530,372,000 49.86 55.41
HRE R EEERRG R A(Note 1)
RERBEEERRNBRA R (1) AR
China Merchants & Great Wall Ocean Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.) Corporate 1,530,372,000 49.86 55.41
(Note 1)
China Merchants & Great Wall Ocean Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.) /NG|
(PrizE1)
China Merchants Great-Wall GP Limited (Note 1) Corporate 1,530,372,000 49.86 55.41
BERAAZABRAR (1) NG|
Great Wall International Investment V Limited (Note 1) Corporate 1,530,372,000 49.86 55.41
Great Wall International Investment VV Limited (FfzE1) NG
Prime Force Investment Corporation (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 1,530,372,000 49.86 55.41
Prime Force Investment Corporation (Fff31) ESBEEA
China Merchants Group Limited A% /55 A IR 2 B(Note 1) Corporate 1,530,372,000 49.86 55.41
BEREEERAR K1) A7
Minyun Limited Beneficial Owner 284,751,000 9.28 10.31
Minyun Limited ERBEEA
China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Corporate 185,600,000 6.05 6.72
BB S EREM(RE) RHERA R (H:2) NG
China International Marine Containers (Hong Kong) Ltd. (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 185,600,000 6.05 6.72
HEERSEREREE)ERAR () EREEAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i) Long Positions in Ordinary Shares and Underlying

Shares of the Company: (Continued)
Notes:

1. Prime Force Investment Corporation (“Prime Force”) is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is whollyowned by Fund LP
and Fund LP is therefore deemed to be interested in the 1,530,372,000
Shares that Prime Force is interested in under Part XV of the SFO.

Fund GP is the general partner of Fund LP and is therefore deemed to
be interested in the 1,530,372,000 Shares that Fund LP are interested

in under Part XV of the SFO.

China Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings Company Limited
("GWAMC International”) holds 25% of the equity interest in China
Merchants Great-Wall GP Limited (“Fund GP"”) and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of China Great Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd. ("GW

Asset Management”).

Great Wall International Investment V Limited holds approximately
39.986% of the limited partnership interests in Fund LP and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the 1,530,372,000 Shares
that Fund LP are interested in under Part XV of the SFO. Great Wall
International Investment V Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary
of GWAMC International, and GWAMC International is a wholly
owned subsidiary of GW Asset Management. Therefore, GW Asset
Management is deemed to be interested in the 1,530,372,000 Shares
held by Great Wall Ocean Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.) (“Fund

LP").

China Great Bay Area Fund Management Company Limited holds 30%
of the equity interest in Fund GP and is a wholly owned subsidiary of
China Merchants Capital Management Co. Ltd., which in turn is wholly

owned by China Merchants Capital Investment Co., Ltd.

China Merchants Union (BVI) Limited holds approximately 9.996%
of the limited partnership interests in Fund LP and 15% of the equity
interest in Fund GP, and its 50% of equity interest is held by China
Merchants Holdings (Hong Kong) Company Ltd. which is wholly
owned by China Merchants Steam Navigation Company Limited.
China Merchants Industry Holdings Co., Ltd. (“CM Industry”) holds
30% of the equity interest in Fund GP and approximately 29.989%
of the limited partnership interests in Fund LP, and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of China Merchants Steam Navigation Company Limited
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Merchants Group Limited*
(BEREEABMRAR]) ("CM Group”). Therefore, China Merchants
Steam Navigation Company Limited and CM Group are deemed to be
interested in the 1,530,372,000 Shares that Fund LP are interested in

under Part XV of the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRRHEMA T RARG R EER G

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN PHEZRAR @

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

(i) Long Positions in Ordinary Shares and Underlying () REQAEBRREBRONER © (@)
Shares of the Company: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) MeE - (&)

2. China International Marine Containers (Group) Company Limited 2. FEEBERSESEMEBE)RGERAR(H
(“CIMC Group”) holds the entire issued share capital of China SEBEDEATRBEBRESEERBEBER
International Marine Containers (Hong Kong) Limited (“CIMC HK"). NRI([FEFEDNEBEBITRA - Atk -
Therefore, CIMC Group is deemed to be interested in the 185,600,000 RIEEHF LB EEAIEXVE  PEEERRA
Shares held by CIMC HK under Part XV of the SFO. REFEEEEHE2185,600,0000 (5 HEE

s -
(i) Long Positions in Shares of Subsidiaries of (i) RELTMBRARNRGOER :

the Company:

Name of substantial Percentage of
Name of subsidiary shareholder shareholding
MEARER TERRHE B ERAESH
Jurun Limited Xingbo Limited 21%
EEAR AT EBARAT
CMIC Manufacturing and Supply De Colombia S.A.S Independence Drilling S.A. 40%
ATS Energy LLC Axion Services Inc. 33%
Petromax Industry Inc. 16%
Texas Unconventional Resources LLC Mr. YANG Anping 20%
HEFEE
OIM Pte. Ltd. Offshore CC FZE 5%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, there was BRENXEREN RZE-—NF+ZA=+—

no person (other than the Directors and chief executives of the B REERESNBERIEIKETEZ

Company whose interests are set out under the paragraph headed EfMeast  SEAMALT(ERZERLX

“DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT [BEMERTRAERKRG - BERS RES

POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” HEER AR | —REAFINEERARAER

above had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying FTIRA BERIN RAZN A BRI AR 1 25048 78 A7) 1 7

shares of the Company as recorded in the register to be kept under BREmIOARE ©

Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 11 January 2019, Qingdao TSC Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd. (&
EXEEERAMEFBBRAR) (“TSCOE”), an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale agreement
(the "Sale Agreement”) with China Merchant Heavy Industry (Jiangsu)
Co., Ltd. ("CMHI (Jiangsu)”) pursuant to which TSCOE agreed to sell
and CMHI (Jiangsu) agreed to purchase pump(s) at the consideration of
RMB7,490,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$8,493,660.00), which
was determined after arm’s length negotiations between the parties to
the Sale Agreement with reference to the market prices of comparable
pumps. The Company expects that the transaction will provide positive
revenue growth to the Group.

CMHI (Jiangsu) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Merchants Industry
Holdings Co., Ltd. (“CM Industry”), whereas CM Industry is ultimately
wholly-owned by China Merchants Group Limited (“CM Group”). China
Merchants & Great Wall Ocean Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.) (the
"Fund”) is a controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore a
connected person of the Company. The Fund is indirectly controlled by
CM Group. CMHI (Jiangsu) is therefore an associate of CM Group, CM
Industry and the Fund, and is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. As a result, the Sale Agreement constitutes a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) are of
the view that the transaction contemplated under the Sale Agreement
is on normal commercial terms, the terms contained therein are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio (as defined under the Listing
Rules) in respect of the transaction value relating to the Sale Agreement
is more than 0.1% and less than 5%, the connected transaction shall be
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules, but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Details of the Sale Agreement are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 January 2019.

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements also fall under the definition of connected transaction
within the meaning of the Listing Rules, and the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Share Award Plan” and
“Share Award Incentive Scheme” contained in “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section of this annual report and note 29 to the financial
statements, “Share Option Scheme” contained in note 30 in the financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in note 34
to the financial statements. Save as disclosed therein, there were no other
transactions to be disclosed as related party transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates has
engaged in any businesses that competes or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group, as defined in the Listing
Rules, or has any other conflict of interests with the Group during the
Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 64 to 81 of this annual report.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

LOU Dongyang
Chairman

JIANG Bing Hua
Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRER/RE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present this “Corporate
Governance Report” for the Year.

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Group's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate
to the needs of its business. Therefore the Company continued to
incorporate the essence of corporate governance into its management
structure and internal control procedures, as we strove to maintain the
highest standard in integrity and ethics in all aspects of our business
activities, and to ensure the full compliance of our operations with
applicable laws and regulations. By achieving high standards of corporate
governance, the Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the rapid growth of the Group
and for safeguarding and maximising the Company and its shareholders’
interests as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board is of the view that,
the Company has complied with the code provisions on the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, save for the deviations which are explained below.

Code A.2.1

The roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer should
be clearly established and set out in writing.

During the year, Mr. Wang Hongyuan took up the posts of executive
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. This deviated from
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulated that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Wang has extensive experience
in strategic planning, mergers and acquisitions, capital operations and
investments in sectors such as offshore marine and shipping, port and
bonded logistics. Mr. Wang has high standing within the Group together
with his extensive experience in the offshore industry. Mr. Wang is well
versed with the business models and development of the Group and
the development of the gas and oil industry. The Board, after due and
careful consideration, was of the view that Mr. Wang was the single most
suitable person for the positions of the executive chairman and chief
executive officer of the Group.

On 19 February 2020, the Company appointed Mr. Lou Dongyang as the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. Cong Yongjian as the Chief Executive
Director. Subsequent to this date, the Company has complied with
provision A.2.1 of the Code.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (continued)

Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules

For the period from 1 October to 11 November 2019, after the
appointment of Mr. Qian Zewei, the Company failed to fulfill the
requirement under Rule 3.10(A) of the Listing Rules that the number
of independent non-executive directors must represent at least one-
third of the board. Upon the appointment of Mr. Sun Dongchang as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 12 November
2019, the Board is comprised of three executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors.
Therefore, the Company has complied with the requirement under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standards of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
forth in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and
the required standards of dealings as set out in the Model Code by the
Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf
of shareholders. The Board is of the view that it is the Directors’
responsibilities to create value for shareholders and safeguard the best
interests of the Company and the shareholders by discharging its duties
in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on the principle of good
faith. The Board is also responsible for decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Group’s business. Responsibilities in relation
to daily and execution of the strategic business plans are delegated to
each of the executive Directors and management.

Details of background and qualifications of the executive chairman of
the Company, other Directors and senior management are set out under
the “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. The executive Directors have sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out their duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board comprises eleven Directors up to the date of this annual report,
including three executive Directors, namely Mr. Cong Yongjian, Mr. Jiang
Bing Hua and Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan; four non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lou Dongyang, Mr. Wang Jianzhong, Ms. Fu Rui and Mr.
Qian Zewei; and four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny, Mr. Zou Zhendong, Mr. Chen Weidong and
Mr. Sun Dongchang. As over half of the members of the Board being
non-executive and they have not participated in the management of
the Company, the Board is able to exercise independent judgement
on corporate affairs and provide the management with a diverse and
objective perspective on issues. The Board believes that current board size
is appropriate based on the Company’s present circumstances and will
periodically evaluate the need for increasing or decreasing its size.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board had at all times
complied with the requirement of the Listing Rules, except the deviation
of Rules A.2.1 and 3.10A per disclosed above, of having at least three
independent non-executive Directors sit on the Board (more than one
third of the Board members) and at least one of them has appropriate
professional accounting or related financial management expertise. To
the knowledge of the Directors, the Board members have no financial,
business, families or other material relationships with each other.

The Articles state clearly the procedures for the appointment of new
directors, re-election and removal of directors. Under the Articles, the
Board may from time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any such new director shall hold
office until the next following general meeting of the Company (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next annual general meeting
of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) and shall then
be eligible for re-election at the same general meeting.

All Directors (including non-executive Directors) have entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years, are subject
to retirement by rotation once every three years, and re-election in
accordance with the Articles, unless and until terminated by not less than
three months’ prior notice in writing served by either party on the other.
Pursuant to Articles 86 and 87, Mr. Cong Yongjian, Mr. Jiang Bing Hua,
Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan, Ms. Fu Rui, Mr. Qian Zewei, Mr. Chan
Ngai Sang, Kenny and Mr. Sun Dongchang will retire, and being eligible
for election, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 22 May 2020.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

The primary functions of the Board include:

o deciding on the overall strategies, overseeing operational and
financial performance and formulating appropriate policies to
manage risk exposure associated with realising the strategies and
goals of the Group;

o being held accountable for the internal control system of the Group
and responsible for reviewing its effectiveness;

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

o being ultimately responsible for preparing financial statements and
discussing the performance, financial conditions and prospects of
the Group in a balanced, clear and comprehensible manner. These
responsibilities are applicable to interim and annual reports of the
Company, other price sensitive announcements published according
to the Listing Rules and disclosure of other financial information,
reports submitted to regulatory bodies and information discloseable
under statutory requirements;

e whilst executive Director, who oversees the overall business of the
Group, is responsible for the daily operations of the Group, the
Board is responsible for affairs involving the overall policies, finance
and shareholders of the Company, namely financial statements,
dividend policy, significant changes to accounting policies,
annual operating budgets, material contracts, major financing
arrangements, principal investment and risk management strategy.
Implementation and execution of such decisions are delegated to
the management; and

o regularly reviewing its own functions and the powers conferred
upon executive Director to ensure appropriate arrangements are
in place. The management is well informed of its powers and
duties with clear guidelines and instructions, in particular regarding
situations under which reporting to the Board is necessary and
matters that require the approval of the Board before any decisions
or commitments can be made on behalf of the Company.

Members of the Board held a total of six meetings during the Year. The
Directors are given sufficient time and information relating to the matters
to be discussed in the Board meetings in advance, or except in special
circumstances, consent to short notice is sought at times of urgency.
In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the Directors
to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense in discharging their duties to the Company.
Moreover, the Company Secretary prepares minutes and keeps records
of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings. The
Company Secretary also keeps the minutes, which are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Matters considered and approved by the Board during the Year mainly
related to (i) reviewing of the Company’s business; (ii) the approval of
annual results of 2018, appointment of independent non-executive
Director and non-executive Directors; (iii) the approval of interim results
of 2019; (iv) connected transactions; (v) disclosable transactions; (vi)
adoption of share award plan; and (vii) change of company secretary.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Directors have complied with the Code for the convening of Board
meeting which should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals, to review the financial performance, results of each
period, material investments and other matters of the Group that require
resolutions of the Board. Simultaneous conference calls may be used to
improve attendance when individual Director cannot attend the meeting
in person.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the executive chairman of the
Company held a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of the other Directors.

Mr. Lou Dongyang is the chairman of the Board and Mr. Cong Yongjian is
the chief executive officer of the Company. The divisions of responsibilities
between the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company are clearly divided to ensure a balance of power and authority
and to reinforce their independence and accountability.

Mr. Lou Dongyang, being the chairman, is responsible for providing
leadership to the Board and ensuring that the Board functions effectively;
that directors receive in timely manner adequate information which is
complete and reliable and that all directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at board meetings. The chairman also encourages directors to
participate actively in and to make a full contribution to the Board'’s
affairs so that the Board can act in the best interest of the Company.

Mr. Cong Yongjian, being the chief executive officer of the Company,
is responsible for the daily operations of the Company, execution of
business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as formulated and
adopted by the Board and leading the management of the Company.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Group
continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. Circulars or guidance notes are issued to Directors and senior
management where appropriate, to ensure awareness of best corporate
governance practices.

During the Year, the Directors were committed to complying with
the Code A.6.5 on Directors’ training. Some Directors have attended
seminars and conferences, which covered topics including the Companies
Ordinance, taxation, quality control, and corporate governance issues,
and provided a record of training they received for the Year to the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
(Continued)

A summary of training received by the Directors during the Year is as
follows:

Name of Directors

EspR

TEERRE
=30
EECRERIRBR@®
BEEFANEIIBENT
Type of

Trainings

b= <Pzl

Executive Directors:

BITES

Mr. WANG Hongyuan (resigned on 19 February 2020)
THREEER =S =_FF =+ NLBET)

Mr. CONG Yongjian (appointed on 19 February 2020)
BXKBEEMRZ_ZF_ATNBEEZE)

Mr. JJANG Bing Hua

BRELRLE

Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan

SREFESE

A B

N/A i F

A B

A B

Non-executive Directors:

FHTES !

Mr. WANG Jianzhong

TRk sE

Mr. LOU Dongyang

ERGEE

Ms. FU Rui (appointed on 1 June 2019)
BHRZLT(WZZT—NFAA—BEEME)

Mr. QIAN Zewei (appointed on 1 October 2019)
BWEEAERZZE—NE+A—AEZRME)

Independent non-executive Directors:

BYFHTES :

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny

PRER A4 S

Mr. ZOU Zhendong

IR E

Mr. CHEN Weidong

BRETR A&

Mr. SUN Dongchang (appointed on 12 November 2019)
BRREAEMR_ZE-—NF+—AT-BEZRD

Notes:

A:  attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relating to directors’
duties or other relevant topics

B: reading seminar materials, newspapers, journals and updates relating to
economy, the latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements
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SRERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development

(Continued)

EEgs
BEECREEIIRBEE

During the Year, the Board, audit committee, remuneration committee, RAFE » ARRIFBRITHNEES - EZXEZET -
nomination committee and compliance committee meetings and the HMWEZE® - REZEeRERTESSZ UMK

general meetings of the Company were held, with details as follows:

Name of Directors

Board

BExnE Exg

Audit
Committee
B

Z88g

RAEWT :

Meetings attended/held
HEBTEBERY
Remuneration Nomination Compliance General
Committee = Committee = Committee = Meetings
i R"E BER RER

Z88 Z88g 3k PN

Executive Directors:
HITES:
Mr. WANG Hongyuan
(resigned on 19 February 2020)
FHRAEAE
R-Z-Z&E- A+HhBEED
Mr. JIANG Bing Hua
BRERE
Mr. ZHANG Menggui, Morgan
REFERE
Non-executive Directors:
FHITES !
Mr. WANG Jianzhong
FRPEE
Mr. LOU Dongyang
BRBRE
Ms. FU Rui
(appointed on 1 June 2019)
B+
(RZE-NFA—BEZME)
Mr. QIAN Zewei
(appointed on 1 October 2019)
BRESE
(RZZB-NE+H-BEZMD)
Independent non-executive
Directors:
BIYFHTES
Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang, Kenny
PBRER A SR
Mr. ZOU Zhendong
IR &
Mr. CHEN Weidong
PRETER e
Mr. SUN Dongchang
(appointed on 12 November 2019)
BREEE
RZBE-—NF+—ATZHEZD)

4/6

6/6

4/6

1/6

3/6

3/3

2/2

5/6

6/6

6/6

172

2/2

2/2

2/2

4/4 4/4 171

4/4 171

44 ”n

1”71

171 1”71

4/4 4/4 171 1”7

4/4 4/4 171

4/4 4/4 17 171
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of the
legal action against the Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During 1 January 2019 to 30 June 2019, Ms. Cheung Wai Sze, Candy was
the Company Secretary of the Company, who was a full-time employee
of the Company, has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update her skills and knowledge in 2019.

Ms. Koo Ching Fan has been appointed as a Company Secretary of
the Company with effect from 1 July 2019. Ms. Ching Fan KOO of Fair
Wind Secretarial Services Limited, an external service provider, has been
engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary. The primary contact
person of the Company with Ms. KOO is Mr. ZHAO Yinan, the Secretary
to the Board. Ms. KOO attended no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 20 October 2005 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. It comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zou Zhendong
(being the Chairman), Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny and Mr. Chen
Weidong; and one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Lou Dongyang
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Jiang Bing Hua.

The role and function of the remuneration committee include the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits-in-kind, pension
rights and compensation payments (including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment), and make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of Directors. The
remuneration committee will consider and give due regard to both the
performance levels of, and a fair reward for, the chairman, executive
Directors and the senior management and to the interest of all the
shareholders of the Company in light of the financial and commercial
circumstances of the Company from time to time. No Director shall be
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The remuneration committee
also made recommendation to the Board on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.

During the Year, four meetings of the remuneration committee were held
and the remuneration committee of the Company proposed to consider
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors’ salaries.
The chairman of the remuneration committee has reported the findings
and provided recommendations to the Board after the meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the Code
Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out
below:

FMEER @
EEMEFBIHIRERAMEHRERMTET o toh -
BIEFANEXEBASGK  BHE-E—hLEF+=-A=
+—HLEFE =2RETEASFEMESAIIM
T

Number of
Remuneration band (US$) individuals
<5 &R (Ex) AE
Less than 100,000 2
> #100,000
100,000 to 200,000 3
100,000%200,000
200,001 to 300,000 -
200,001%300,000
300,001 to 400,000 2

300,001 %400,000
400,001 to 500,000
400,001%500,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established on 5 June 2009 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code. A majority of its current
members are independent non-executive Directors. Currently, the
members of the committee are Mr. Lou Dongyang (being the chairman),
Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan, Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny, Mr. Zou
Zhendong and Mr. Chen Weidong.

Prior to the establishment of the nomination committee, the executive
chairman and chief executive officer were mainly responsible for
identifying suitable candidates for members of the Board when there is a
vacancy or an additional director is considered necessary. The executive
chairman or chief executive officer would propose the appointment of
such candidates to the Board for consideration and the members of
the Board would review the qualifications of the relevant candidates
for determining the suitability to the Group on the basis of his skills,
qualifications, experience, background, leadership and personal integrity.
The decision to appoint a director might be approved by majority of the
members of the Board.

The nomination committee has adopted the Diversity Policy, which
sets out the approach to diversity of Board members. In determining
the Board composition, the Company considers a range of diversity
elements, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
appointments of the Board will be made based on merit and objective
criteria while taking into full account of the interest of Board's diversity.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE(Continued)

The selection of candidate will be based on a range of diversity elements.
The final decision will be made according to the strengths of the
candidate and his/her contribution that would bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eleven directors. Four
of them are independent non-executive Directors and four of them are
non-executive Directors thereby promoting critical review and control of
the management process. The Board is also characterised by significant
diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, nationality, professional
background and skills.

During the Year, four meetings of the nomination committee were held.
The nomination committee reviewed and discussed the appointment of
non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors, and
made recommendations to the Board. The chairman of the nomination
committee has reported the findings and provided recommendation to
the Board after the meeting.

Under the remit of the nomination committee, it assesses the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, identify candidates
for appointment to the Board, review the structure, size and composition
of the Board and to monitor the implementation of the Board diversity
policy and the Nomination Policy. Before an appointment is made, the
nomination committee evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board and, in the light of this evaluation, prepares
a description of the role and capabilities required for a particular
appointment. If deemed appropriate, external consultants may be used to
identify suitable candidates.

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The compliance committee was established on 20 October 2005 with
written terms of reference. The constitution of the Committee shall
comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules from time to time.
It comprises three Directors, namely, Mr. Lou Dongyang (being the
chairman), Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny, Mr. Chen Weidong and one
other member, namely, Mr. Ma Yaohui.

The general responsibilities of the committee are to ensure the Company
to comply with all relevant laws and regulations and the Listing Rules
("Relevant Regulations”). It shall fulfill other responsibilities as required by
the Relevant Regulations from time to time.

During the year, one meeting of the compliance committee were held
and the compliance committee reviewed and monitored the annual report
disclosure which were in compliance with the Relevant Regulations. The
chairman of the compliance committee then reported the findings and
provided recommendations to the Board after the meetings.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group. The Directors ensure that the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 107 to 116 of this annual
report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing non-audit functions
(if any) performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on
the Company. During the Year under review, the Company has to pay
an aggregate of approximately US$530,000 (2018: US$530,000) to the
external auditor for its audit services. The Company has paid an aggregate
of approximately US$6,000 (2018: US$209,000) to the external auditor
for its non-audit services in the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Code. To ensure on- going compliance
with the Code, the audit committee’s terms of reference takes into
account the Board’s responsibility for reviewing the adequacy of staffing
of the financial reporting functions and the oversight role of the audit
committee. According to rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit
committee comprises a minimum of three members with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny
(being the chairman), Mr. Zou Zhendong and Mr. Chen Weidong, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors; and at least one member
has the appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related
financial management expertise in compliance with Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers these Directors to be independent
under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The main duties of the audit committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting functions,
compliance officer or external auditors before submission to the
Board;

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings to consider
and review the interim and annual results of the Group, to discuss the
risk management and internal control system with management, to
discuss the audit plan and strategy, to discuss compliance with applicable
accounting standards and requirements and to ensure adequate
disclosure has been made. The audit committee also met the external
auditors twice without the presence of the executive Directors to discuss
the audit plan and scoping and identified significant risks and other areas
of focus to be addressed by the external auditors.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the audit committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019, has
been reviewed by the audit committee.
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INDEPENDENCE OF THE COMPANY FROM ITS
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN RESPECT OF
BUSINESS, PERSONNEL, ASSET, ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE AND FINANCE

The direct substantial Shareholders of the Company are China Great Bay
Area Fund Management Company Limited and China Merchants Industry
Holdings Co., Ltd. (their controlling shareholder are China Merchants
Group) and Great Wall International Investment V Limited (it is wholly-
owned by GW Asset Management). The Company has an independent
and complete business system and has the capacity for independent
operation in the market. The Company is independent from its substantial
Shareholders in respect of our business, personnel, asset, organisational
structure and finance, and they independently proceed with audit and
assume the responsibilities and risks.

M

Business: The production system, purchase system, auxiliary
production system and sales system of the Company are
independent. The Company owns the intangible assets such
as industrial property, trademark, non-patent technology
independently.

Personnel: The labour, personnel and salary management institutions
of the Company are independent. The system is complete. The
Company and the substantial Shareholders do not share staff
or senior management. All of the Company’s staff and senior
management are paid by the Company. The financial personnel of
the Company have no part-time job in affiliates.

Assets: The property rights between the Company and the
substantial Shareholders are clear, with complete procedures. The
property rights are managed by the Company independently. The
substantial Shareholders do not occupy or govern the assets of the
Company nor interfere in its operation management of the assets.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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INDEPENDENCE OF THE COMPANY FROM ITS
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN RESPECT OF
BUSINESS, PERSONNEL, ASSET, ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE AND FINANCE (continued)

(4) Organisational structure: The Board, the Supervisory Committee and
other internal institutions of the Company are complete and operate
independently. The substantial Shareholders perform their rights
according to the law and assume the corresponding obligations
without directly or indirectly interfering with the business activities
of the Company by overstepping the general meeting.

(5) Finance: The finance department, financial accounting system,
financial management system and bank account of the Company
are independent and it pays taxes independently.

During the Reporting Period and as at date of this annual report, the
Company has not provided undisclosed information to the substantial
Shareholders and the de facto controllers, and there was no other non-
compliance governance problem.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for risk management and internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensuring
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Board, through the established internal audit function, has conducted
annual reviews on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system, including risk management and internal control, as well as
the resources of the Company’s financial and accounting reporting
departments, in accordance with the applicable legal requirements and
other internal control regulatory requirements. The reviews include
evaluation methods of the Company Qualifications and experience, as
well as staff training and management budget.

During the year the Group has implemented a series of internal control
system procedures and measures to strengthen internal controls. The
Board believes that there are no material internal controls deficiencies
that may affect the Shareholders and an effective and adequate risk
management and internal control system is in place to safeguard the
assets of the Group. The Group will continue to enhance the system to
cope with the changes in the business environment.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the general meetings
will be voted by poll. Representatives of the share registrar of the
Company are appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll
votes cast at each general meeting. The results of poll were published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the
Board. Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors.
The chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the remuneration
committee and audit committee or, in their absence, and where
applicable other members of the respective committees together with the
external auditors are available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated Directors or senior management maintain
regular dialogues with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are
dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at www.cmicholding.com, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information and other information are posted.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Annual reports and interim reports offer comprehensive information
to the Shareholders on operational and financial performance whereas
annual general meetings provide a forum for the Shareholders to
exchange views directly with the Board. The general meetings of the
Company provide an opportunity for communication between the
Shareholders and the Board. The executive Chairman and board members
of the Company attended the general meetings held on 24 May 2019 to
answer questions at these meetings.

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the re-election of the retiring Directors.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company (hereinafter referred to as
“the requisitionist(s)”) shall at all times have right by written requisition
to the board of directors or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be called by the Board
for dealing with relevant requirements and any matter specified; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty- one (21) days of such deposit, the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) of the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

Save for the following, Shareholders do not generally have a right
to propose new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to propose a resolution may request the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting following the procedures set out
in “Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting” above.

Where notice of a general meeting includes the election of directors of
the Company, any shareholder of the Company may propose the election
of any person as a director of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the
“Director”) at the general meeting. Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles
of the Company, if a shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election as a Director at any general meeting
(including the annual general meeting), the shareholder should lodge a
written notice (hereinafter referred to as the “Nomination Notice”) at
the Hong Kong Share Registrar or the head office of the Company and
the minimum length of the period during which such notice is given
shall be at least seven (7) days. If the Nomination Notice is submitted
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election, the period for lodgment of the Nomination Notice shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting. The Nomination Notice must
be accompanied by a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected as a Director and such notice must also state the
proposed person'’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERRE

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS
(Continued)

For purposes of the above, the following are head office in Hong Kong
and the Hong Kong Share Registrar of the Company:

Unit 2706-2709, 27/F

One Harbourfront 18

Tak Fung Street

Hunghom, Kowloon Hong Kong

Head Office in Hong Kong:

Hong Kong Share Registrar: Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update the latest business development and financial
performance to maintain a high degree of transparency and to ensure
that there is no selective disclosure of inside information.

The company has always adopted a positive attitude to communicate with
investors, the media and potential investors to increase the Company’s
brand recognition, strengthen investors’ understanding and recognition
of the Company, and achieve the value of shareholders ultimately.

Below are our communication methods, but not limited to:

Annual and interim report

Online annual report

Annual general meeting and extraordinary general meeting

Investors’ Roadshow: In 2019, the company organised four roadshows,
and introduced the Company to more than 20 potential investment
institutions and existing shareholders.

Announcements, press releases and circulars

Voluntary announcement

Media Press Conference

Investors’ Conference: 5 times investors’ meetings were organised in
2019 in order to communicate with investors in a face-to-face format

Industry analyst communication: The Company encourages analysts
to publish their analysis reports actively to help investors evaluate the
Company and its development opportunities and challenges.

Investor Relations Email: ir@cmicholding.com

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

The Company's website: www.cmicholding.com, the Company’s website
is the Company’s main market promotion media, fully displaying the
business and activities of CMIC.

Social Media: WeChat public account, the company uses the WeChat
public account to publish company news, industry news, short films,
photos and major events.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Due to the change of name of the Company, the Memorandum and
Articles of Association containing the new name of the Company was
uploaded on the website of the Stock Exchange on 2 April 2019. Save
as aforesaid, the Board is not aware of any significant changes in the
Company’s constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December
2019.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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STANDARDS OF THE REPORT

This Environmental, Social, and Governance report (the “Report”)
provides an annual update on the various aspects of environmental,
social, and governance performance by CMIC Ocean En-Tech
Holding Co., Ltd. (the “Group”) in the year 2019.

The content of this Report was compiled in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as set
out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as well as the actual
conditions of the Company. This Report is published annually in
each financial year together with the Annual Report of the Company
for the year on the website of the Company and HKEx.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON THE
COMPANY

The Group and its global subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the asset investment and operations management of offshore
engineering platforms, clean energy and technology investments,
and the design, manufacture, installation and operation of the
products and services of onshore and offshore drilling industries,
including rigs, oilfield expendables and engineering services.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
VISION, ASPIRATIONS, POLICIES AND
STRATEGIES

The Group is dedicated to becoming an outstanding corporate
citizen in each of the communities it operates in around the world.

“The Group recognises a high degree of social responsibility and
awareness in environmental sustainable development as key factors
to the enterprise’s persistent growth and success.”

The Group pursues the values of tolerance, openness, reliability
and cooperation in both business development and social activities,
and has introduced effective measures to ensure full fulfilment of
its social responsibility and implementation of its environmental
policies. These areas of work involve the Group’s employees,
business associates, supply chain partners, and community groups
related to the Group’s business.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

lll. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
VISION, ASPIRATIONS, POLICIES AND
STRATEGIES (continued)

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to
adhering to ethical standards and carries out the concept of
corporate social responsibility through 5 policies in behavioural
management, which requires all the Group’s employees to
participate and support. To this end, Part VIII of this Report
describes the Group's performance at the environmental, social and
governance aspects for the Year.

Business Ethics

Environmental
Sustainability

BANTRERE (@]

Supply Chain i
Management Behaviours
R a2 SEARTH

IV. STATEMENT OF THE BOARD

To manage various ESG aspects effectively and efficiently, we
have built a solid governance structure for ESG management of
the Group, i.e. the ESG governance structure for which the Board
assumes the ultimate responsibility and the professional ESG
working group (the “Working Group”) implements comprehensive
supervision.

Corporate Citizenship
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IV. STATEMENT OF THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board and the ESG working group (“Working Group”) are
fully responsible for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting,
including the formulation of the Company’s overall ESG
strategy, identification and evaluation of ESG risks, review of
ESG management policies, review of ESG plans and goals, and
consideration of ESG performance assessment; the Working Group
is responsible for execution of daily operations and reporting major
ESG issues to the Board. With this ESG management framework
and clear governance procedures, the Board can effectively monitor
ESG-related opportunities and risks within the Group.

From time to time, we obtain regularly updated information on
environmental, social and governance trends and regulations and
industry practices. Based on the external social and economic
macro-environment and the Company’s development strategy,
we have always given priority to stakeholders’ views, opinions and
suggestions on environmental, social and governance management,
and will conduct a materiality assessment and discussion on the
formulation of environmental, social and governance strategies,
determine the Company’s risks and opportunities in respect of
environment, society and corporate governance, and take the
management and improvement of key issues as sustainable
development strategy. Through the abovementioned efforts,
we have been able to better understand and manage our
environmental, social and governance risks, and achieve our goal of
creating higher value for all stakeholders.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

The content of this ESG report summarizes the Group's performance
in terms of corporate social responsibility based on the reporting
principles of “importance”, “quantification”, “balance” and
“consistency”. In order to optimize the reporting process and
expand the scope of disclosure of the ESG report, the Group
has been proactively formulating effective ESG related policies,
recording relevant data and implementing and monitoring various
measures. This report illustrates the ESG performance of the Group
in achieving future sustainable development.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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VI.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE OF THE REPORT (continued)

This ESG report covers the main operating activities that the Group
deems significant (i.e. the environmental, social and governance
conditions in Qingdao, the principal place of operation). The
Group's operating sites in Qingdao are as follows:

(1) Qingdao TSC Offshore Equipment Company Limited (TSC-OE);
and

(2) TSC Oil and Gas Services Group Holdings Limited (TSC-QD).

Unless otherwise specified, this ESG report covers the environmental,
social and governance progress and performance in the period from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Year”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The sustainable operation of the Group requires the joint efforts and
support of all stakeholders. The interests, expectations and concerns
of all parties are inseparable from the performance of the Group.
Therefore, the Group’s goal is to create a sustainable development
environment that is beneficial to enterprise development and the
well-being for stakeholders.

The Group is striving to promoting communication with its
stakeholders. The Group maintains open and continuous
communication with relevant stakeholders including stakeholders
and investors, employees, customers, community groups, media and
government bodies through various means to achieve transparency
and develop mutual understanding of each other’s aspirations
for corporate social responsibility. Through communication with
stakeholders, the Group is committed to identifying, assessing and
managing environmental, social and governance-related risks, while
ensuring that there is an effective internal monitoring system in
place to deal with the risks identified, so that the Group can achieve
sustainable development.

f.

BR - HERERERE

WMESHE

AESGREMEAEEREEZEANETEK
EEHRAETELEHEEEMNIRE HEgk
AR - REBMNRSEMLEMIMT ¢

(1) BFERESFLHEFEERQR(TSC-OF)
&

(2 BFERRHHREERBEBRMNERAF]
(TSC-QD) °

R EPEHRBAN  AESGHRENANREE
Z-NE—HA-BE-ZT—NE+=-A=+—
HHB(AFEDBBRE e RERNE
EYNE S

. BHENSHE

REEUFELEFTEMA RN EHXRE M
XFF o BITENE - REIMBEEEAEENRK
BB - At - AKEHERERE—E
HEXBRMFNDEBULEANNATHERR

B o

AEE-BEBRNEDEFNHEEER -  AEEB
EEBZTEREEMBRENE - EERRR
KREE BB BP  #HEAK  SERBFA
BASREFABRMNSENER  UERARE
B WEMRTHEHCRMERENHE - &
BEFNEBRBE  ARERIHR - FE
REBERE  wHE@REAABERR - REREE
7178 B R R B 1R ) LA BE I AT B ER A L
R REEEEAEINCEAHERRNAE

TB_E o
N

FHERTFRN ERRERA T
—T-NEER

85



86

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BiR - HEREREKSE

VI. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

N BOENSRE

Key stakeholders

EFRFOE FRRBRERE

Main communication channels

Customers Visits and meetings
ES R BH
Telephone conferences
EoE
Customer questionnaires
EREEEHRAE
E-mails
BFEM4
Employees Employee newsletters
8T 8 T
Group intranet
SENEP B
Volunteer activities
e r:0)
Charitable activities
BRELD

Community organisations

A [ AR A

Unscheduled meetings with each organisation

HEAM T THEHE
Shareholders and investors
R REEE MEREEEA
Annual reports
FERE
Company website
NGIFER
Circulars
78 BK

Press release/business newsletter

Conference and communications

S REA

VII. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

All executive Directors of the Group recognise that good corporate
governance is an indicator of company modernisation, as well as a
prerequisite to the sustainability of business. Since inception, the
Group has invested large amounts of resources and manpower into
developing appropriate business management practices according
to the needs of the business. The Group continually enhances the
essence of corporate governance into its management structures
and internal control procedures. The Group is striving to maintain
the highest level of ethics, to achieve highest standards or best
practices in all aspects of business activities, and to ensure that
the Group’s operations are fully compliant with relevant laws
and regulations. All Directors believe that implementation of
comprehensive and high-standard corporate governance allows the
Group to achieve greater efficiencies in all aspects of sustainable
development, and to safeguard and maximise the interests of
stakeholders.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND RIGEHSREBNEN

SOCIAL ASPECTS

(1) Human Resource Management

(1) ADERER

Employment Policies

The Group has been striving to maintain the equality in
employment opportunity. Every vacancy in the Group is
publicly advertised online or via other appropriate channels.
A fair selection process is conducted on each applicant’s
competence, skills, etc. The Group will not refuse the job
applications because of the attributes such as race, skin colour,
gender, language, religion and/or political reason, etc.

In order to strengthen the attractiveness of various positions,
the Group’s remuneration system is based on job grade and
performance. The wages paid by the Group and its other
subsidiaries have reached the minimum wage standards of the
regions in which the Group is operating. In addition to assuring
employees’ stable income from the basic salary, the Group
also provides bonuses in association with the employee’s
performance for recognition and retention of outstanding
employees.

Furthermore, the Group purchases additional commercial
insurance (covering critical illness, traffic accident, etc.) for
those employees who have reached a certain level of seniority
for offering them additional coverage. In addition, each
mainland Chinese employee is entitled to sick leave benefit
better than the statutory requirement. While the statutory
requirement allows the employees’ wages to be deducted by
30% during sick leave period, the Group provides employees
with 6 days of paid sick leave in a year during which no wage
deduction is required. Other employee benefits include free
shuttle bus for pick-up, transport allowances, and call-time
allowances, etc.

The Group is striving to promotion of the balancing between
work and family and hence does not encourage overtime
work. The Group strictly controls the number of overtime
hours by requiring a review and approval process when
overtime work is required, under which all overtime work must
be approved by department managers and abide by the local
labour laws.

The Group strictly complies with legal requirements relating
to bilateral termination of employment contracts in each of its
operating locations.
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Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N REREMSRERNER D

SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)

(1) Human Resource Management (Continued)
Employment Policies (Continued)
During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
legal violation or complaint relating to discrimination or other
employment practices.

As of 31 December 2019, the Qingdao operation sites covered
by this Report had 208 employees, all of whom were full-time
employees, there was no part-time employee and 62% of
them ranged in the age group of 31 to 45.

No. of employees per gender
RUEFESTHETAH

(1) ADEREE )

ERBER (&)
EREHA - NEE AL EEFE R AR
Sk H bR BARRDA DM E R IR -

HZE2019F12A318 » AREFMEEN
SEXEMBEM208LZET FiIEE A
PHET - EEBET  62%METER
31E45 R F AR o

No. of employees age group
RERABEIHNETIAH

16.83%

§ o

W 1830
| EIEE)
Femal
. é@a e 1 73 ?Tg\%vees o 46-60

128587

61.54%

50 g3

24.04%

employee
HRT

——— 0.48%

29 erploress
3 ZET
13.94%

The average monthly employee turnover rate for the Year,
which represented a slight increase as compared with 2018,
was summarised as below.

REENFATHREE RARBROT -
E2018FELLER - AFEM B TR KRR
B -

2019 2018
Average Monthly Average Monthly
Employee Employee
Turnover Rate Turnover Rate
(%) (%)
20194 20184
BR¥HY BAH¥H
BERKE(%) EEREE(%)
Gender gl

Male S 1.36 0.97
Female eg 1.30 1.55

Age group BETIFR
18-30 18-30 1.31 1.31
31-45 31-45 1.16 1.29
46-60 46-60 1.75 0.28
> 60 > 60 2.08 0
Overall average: By 1.35 1.07

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R -HERERRSE

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N BEEHEdEREENENE
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(1) Human Resource Management (Continued) () AHEREE®)

Employment Policies (Continued)

Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with the employment laws and
regulations in each of its operating locations pertaining to
child labour and forced labour. As a result, all job applicants
are required to provide personal identification documents for
verification. Prior to confirmation of employment contracts,
the Group allows sufficient time for employees to read and
understand the relevant terms and conditions, and contracts
are to be signed only when employees fully understand the
content.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
complaint or legal violation relating to child labour or forced
labour.

Career Development of Employees

The Group fulfils the principle of meritocracy and regularly
provides its employees with the opportunity for promotion,
which is based on a comprehensive evaluation of both
employee’s work performance and competence. In addition,
the Group also emphasises on training of potential talent, and
internal training team is appointed with the responsibility for
talent development.

The Group is implementing two major training programs:

1. Cedar program: This program is designed to develop
talents of high potential and establish teams of high
performance. This program offers systematic training
courses, and trainees are developed into two roles
(managerial and technological) and four types of talent
(namely, high potential talent, global key talent, local key
talent and technical expert). After accumulation of three
to five years of working experience, trainees will develop
into the backbone of the Group.

2. Spring rain program: This program is designed to develop
the internal training team within the company and to
inherit effectively technology and corporate culture of
the Group. Through systematic training, the Group firstly
trains up a group of influential staff through sharing
by a ratio of 1 to 3 mentoring model. They will then be
developed to become high performance training team
after accumulation of three to five years of experience.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BiR - HEREREKSE

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(1) Human Resource Management (Continued)
Employment Policies (Continued)
Career Development of Employees
In 2019, the total number of trained employees reached 184
at the Qingdao operation sites covered by this Report, with a
total of 789 training hours.

The following tables set forth the enhancement in
performance achieved by the Group in terms of proportion of
employees trained and the average number of training hours
per employee during the Year as compared with the last year:

N BREMERERNENR @

() ANEREE®E)
ERBER(E)
BETB¥EZE
R2019F E A REMRENES S EH
B BEREIIMBETBANE184 A
789MEIE FI/ N o

RTRABRAFEEREZIIEERD
Lo B B 1955 )l B 855 R U7 T O 4B S A
FEFRFHRBEERTT

Monthly Average Proportion of
Trained Employees (%)
EZRINEENE A FHERMNLL (%)

2019 2018 Change (%)

2019 20184 (%)
Gender % 5l
Male Bk 6.56 6.46 1.55%
Female i 7.00 7.19 -2.64%
Employee Rank BE&R5
Senior management SRERE 6.79 1.92 253.65%
Middle management FAREEE 8.47 10.78 -21.43%
Junior employee R ET 6.41 6.31 1.58%
Overall average #¥E g 6.65 6.58 1.06%

Monthly Average Training Time of

Each Employee (hour)
BEEENS A LHEIEE ()
2019 2018 Change (%)

20194 20184 B{(%)
Gender % Bl
Male Bk 0.28 0.30 -6.67%
Female gk 0.42 0.32 31.25%
Employee Rank EE& R
Senior management SEEE 0.62 0.15 313.33%
Middle management FREEE 0.78 0.49 59.18%
Junior employee MHET 0.23 0.29 -20.69%
Overall average By 0.31 0.30 3.33%

90 CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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R -HERERRSE

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N BEEHEdEREENENE
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(2) Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) (2) BERENZZR

For continued mitigation of the occupational health and safety
impacts incurred from the operations, the Group is committed
not only adherence to laws, regulations and industry standards
as the baseline, and but also striving to achieve the corporate
safety target of “Zero Occupational Disease” and “Zero
Incident of Casualties”.

All the Group’s employees at managerial level or above, labour
union chairperson and OHS employee representatives are
members of the Safety Committee which is responsible for
the relevant occupational health and safety matters within
the Group. The Group adheres to the “Stop Work” policy:
whenever employee is subject to safety risk, all individuals
are empowered the right to stop work for preventing the
occurrence of work-related incidents.

The Group attaches great importance to employees. As an
employer, we are committed to protecting the health and
safety of all employees. We have comprehensive safety
policies and measures to provide protection for employees.
The Group is striving to identify various opportunities for
prevention of occupational disease through enhancement of
work environment. The Group also actively responds to advice
given by employees in relation to occupational health and
safety, recognises and rewards those employees who have
contributed to the continual improvement in those topics. In
addition, the Group also maintains close communication with
all employees and relevant stakeholders on occupational health
and safety, and establishes multiple communication channels
and models to ensure the health and safety of all employees.

The Group provides suitable personal protective equipment
(PPE) free of charge to its employees including helmets,
safety goggles, protective masks, safety gloves, safety belts
and purifying respirators. Employees exposed to hazards of
occupational diseases, including those who work in painting
and shot blasting processes, are arranged annually for free-of-
charge physical examinations by qualified medical institutions
for assuring the health conditions of employees. During
the Year, the Group has arranged a total of 67 employees
to undertake physical examination, from which no case of
occupational disease was diagnosed.
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VIll. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
(2) Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)

(Continued)

In addition, the Group is striving to raising the safety
awareness of its employees through promotion on bulletin
boards and posting of safety signs. More importantly, the
Group has also established safety training and education
system and developed an annual training plan at the beginning
of the Year. Occupational health and safety training courses
are conducted regularly to its employees, training topics
include general occupational health and safety education,
correct usage of personal protective equipment, and safety
precautions for various hazardous work, such as safe handling
of dangerous chemicals, safe use of gas, safety of welding and
measures for prevention of heatstroke in working environment
of high temperature. Taking into consideration of various
health and safety training programmes, the total number of
the Group’s employees trained in the Year was 297, reaching a
total of 580 training hours. Moreover, the Group considers the
mental well-being of employees to be valuable assets for the
enterprises, and has alleviated employees’ working pressure
through arrangement of various activities such as mental well-
being courses and group sharing.

Some of the subsidiaries within the Group (such as Qingdao
TSC Offshore Equipment Company Limited), have established
and achieved the certification for OHSAS 18001 safety
management system. In accordance with the requirements
of the management system, the Group has identified clearly
the origins of dangers in the workplace and conducted risk
assessment at those areas. Relevant companies have evaluated
the workplace on the occupational hazards in plants in
October 2019 for assuring appropriate controls in all positions
identified with hazards. In addition, the Group has established
a 6S inspection system for regular check of workplaces
and inspection of fire and electrical equipment, as well as
formulation of plans for regular maintenance of equipment.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group neither identified
any legal violation against the key regulations relating to
occupational health and safety, nor any incident of work-
related fatality. However, a total of 49 working days lost was
recorded due to work-related injury.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R -HERERRSE

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N BEEHEdEREENENE
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(3) Supply Chain Management (3) HEEER

The Group adopts QHSE criteria for supply management,
through which its suppliers are selected with their performance
of corporate social responsibility as one of the evaluation
criteria. Suppliers are required to sign and comply with the
Group's stipulated code of supplier's conduct, which contains
clauses relating to environmental protection, anti-bribery,
etc. The Group also actively encourages communication with
the suppliers through multiple channels (including telephone,
e-mail, questionnaire, and training, etc.) to elaborate the
Group's requirements of corporate social responsibility
by promoting the mutual benefits from fulfilment of the
responsibility.

The process of manufacturing onshore and offshore rig
equipment is extremely complex and tedious, involving
the assembly of fine and complex parts, which requires
standardized work processes and stable supply chains to
ensure consistency. In order to ensure that the quality of
equipment produced is consistent and maintained at a high
level, we must have effective supply chain management and
maintain it a high level, and establish a sustainable relationship
with suppliers of materials, electronic parts, equipment,
services, etc. Therefore, the Group strictly follows internal
procedures to communicate with suppliers and ensure that the
required goods and services are purchased in a competitive,
fair and transparent manner. As quality, environmental
protection, service and cost performance are the key indicators
for the Group’s assessment of suppliers. Therefore, the Group
has developed a systematic supplier management system
to manage its supply chain to identify, analyze, select and
manage suppliers based on clear criteria.

Distribution of Suppliers

The Group has the qualified supplier quality assurance
personnel (SQA) to evaluate various aspects of suppliers on
regular basis, and to conduct audits on specified suppliers
for assuring their operations in compliance with the Group's
requirements. As of 31 December 2019, there was a total of
117 qualified suppliers for provision of materials to the Group,
and they were mainly based in China (111), the United States
(5) and Ireland (1).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BiR - HEREREKSE

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

)]

4

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Evaluation of Social Responsibility/Environmental
Performance Aspects

Apart from considering the aforesaid scope of evaluation
scope, and also for supporting the reduction in emission
of greenhouse gases, the Group will give priority to local
suppliers possessing the same conditions. The proportion of
local suppliers currently accounts for approximately 95% of
the total supply base, overseas procurement will be made only
when suitable local suppliers are not available. Moreover, some
suppliers are subject to the evaluation of social responsibility/
environmental performance aspects, and approximately
18% of the Group's suppliers have fulfilled those evaluation
requirements in the year.

Achievement of Supplier Evaluation

During the year, the Group has engaged 4 new suppliers. They
had passed through the evaluation prior to procurement, and
some of them were additionally required to go through on-site
assessment for assuring compliance with the requirements of
the Group and its customers. Moreover, each of the Group's
existing suppliers is also subject to annual evaluation for
continued monitoring of their performance. Those existing
suppliers which may have significant impact on the Group’s
operations are even subject to on-site assessment. In 2019,
2 new suppliers and 41 existing suppliers passed the on-site
assessment.

Environmental Sustainability

In response to the environmental risks faced by the country
and the national policies, the Group is committed to being a
responsible enterprise to implement policies for prevention
of environmental pollution, despite the industry in which the
Group operates does not cause significant pollution.

The Group’s environmental protection policy includes the 3R
principle, namely Reduce, Reuse and Recycle, as well as the
effective use of materials and energy.

The Group actively responds to employees’ opinions on
environmental issues, and recognises and rewards those
employees who have made continuous improvement or
contribution to environmental protection, thereby raising
the awareness and sense of responsibility of employees and
stakeholders towards the surrounding environment.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued)
Emission Reduction Policy

I

1.

Reduction of Exhaust Gas Emissions
Environmentally-friendly materials were used when
the Group renovates its office buildings, and indoor air
quality testing was performed before commissioning
of the office. Office operation would commence only
when the air quality test results fulfilled the specified
standards. In addition, spray-painting and shot-blasting
facilities represent the main sources of exhaust gas in the
operation process. For mitigating the pollution from the
exhaust gas, spray-painting and shot-blasting facilities
are equipped with system for ventilation, dust-removal,
poison-removal and filtration. The spray-painting facilities
adopts water curtain + activated carbon + filter cotton to
filter exhaust gas in three stages, and the shot-blasting
facilities adopt bag dust removal + cyclone dust removal.
The exhaust will be discharged after meeting standards.
Moreover, exhaust emissions from the operation are
tested on a regular basis.

Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions
Meanwhile, the Group recognises that the emission of
GHG is one of the main causes of the current global
warming, and energy consumption is key source of GHG.
In order to mitigate the situation of global warming,
the Group has adopted various policies and measures
to control the consumption of energy, thereby reducing
GHG emissions:

1. Prioritise the use of equipment and products of low
energy consumption and high efficiency;

2. Consider the use of renewable energy, whenever
appropriate;

3. Avoid unnecessary business trips to reduce carbon
emission generated by transportation;

4.  Prioritise the engagement of local suppliers to
reduce energy consumption resulting from the
transportation of cargoes;

5. Promote the importance of “Reducing Carbon
Emissions” along the supply chain.
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VIll. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N REREMEREBENEN @
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued) (4) RENURERRE)
Emission Reduction Policy (Continued) WA B BER ()
. Reduction of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions I L BREREE(GHG)HK (&
(Continued)
Through achievement of the aforesaid measures, the FREBALEE  TRETKEF
following table sets out the emission volume from the EEBERABREMBENTEEE
main GHG emission sources of the Group's operating B A EZREREIREMNBER
sites in Qingdao covered by this Report during the year: £
GHG Emission
Volume (tonnes
Consumption carbon dioxide
GHG Emission Sources in 2019 equivalent)
BERBHHE
BEREHHERIR 20195 %8 (HM-F{HmES)
Diesel consumption (litres) Mobile source SaiEE ()RR 4,830 13.39
Fixed source Ehvab 1,500 3.39
Gasoline consumption (litres) Mobile source  JSMFEE (AFH) RENE 19,663 53.24
Natural gas consumption (cubic metres) RARFEE (LK) 3,150 5.29
Acetylene consumption (kg) LBEFEE(RT) 4,068.50 13.77
Power consumption of manufacturing SLEN RS (T RE) 3,023,515 2,444 81
facilities (kwWh)
Total GHG emissions AERBHHERES 2,534.43
Production volume (tonnes) HE= () 1,260.70
GHG Emission Intensity AERBHERERE 2.01

(tonnes carbon
dioxide equivalent/

tonnes)

(g — &b Tx

B2 1)

il Reduction of Wastewater Discharge o LK
The processes and technology adopted in the Group’s RAEEZERFAERANIRER
operations do not involve significant water consumption fir » WS R AE R KKEKEE
nor discharge of wastewater. Water is reused in W EREREREREMEANE
exhaust gas treatment system in spray-painting process. BERBAK: Bt - SEAEKE
Therefore, the Group's discharge of wastewater mainly REBPRBAENRAZTEE B
involves daily office operations. In view of this, water EBEEFHE - RXKE - REN
conservation signs are put up in washrooms, pantries, MEIREERRAKRERAIETL
canteens and dormitories to raise employees’ awareness BXIE:s  UAREEIMNENE
of resource conservation for reducing sewage generation. BoORmADIEKESE -

96 CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued)
Emission Reduction Policy (Continued)

V.

Reduction of Solid Wastes

The Group has maintained a high degree of management
to reduce leakage of various oil products, thereby
reducing generation of the related wastes. Lean
production was adopted to change paints of low
consumption in small packages for reducing the amount
of hazardous wastes such as waste paint residues and
paint containers used. In addition, the Group also
advanced the technology for reducing the generation of
hazardous wastes, such as the adoption of centrifugal
casting process to fully prevent the release of asbestos
wastes.

The operating sites covered in this report generated a
total of 46.45 tonnes of non-hazardous waste during
the year of 2019, the types and distributions of these
wastes were set out in the following table. Currently, the
main identified hazardous wastes included: waste paint
residues, scrap paint containers and waste mineral oils.
The cumulative volume of all such wastes reached 4.38
tonnes. The Group recovers waste paint residues through
the water curtain system, and reduced waste paint
residues by 1.85 tonnes in 2019. The Group also uses
cyclone dust removal and bag dust removal to reduce
exhaust gas and dust particles. The total amount of waste
reduced in 2019 was 3.83 tonnes. In addition, the Group
also assisted in waste reduction through improvement
of processes/technologies. The total amount of waste
reduced in 2019 was 1.01 tons.
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Total volume  Emission Intensity

in 2019 per tonne of

Type of Waste (tonnes) production unit
2019 BWMEEEN

BEYESE ZHEHE (M) K BE B
Hazardous wastes BEEEY 4.38 <0.010
Scrap steel 3k 19.63 0.016
Scrap paper cartons REAR SR BLE 2.29 <0.010
Scrap wooden boxes BER B AR 2.35 <0.010
Domestic wastes ATERIIR 22.18 0.018
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  HERER

|E

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued)
Emission Reduction Policy (Continued)

V.

Reduction of Solid Wastes (Continued)

Handling of Hozardous Wastes

The Group develops the plan for hazardous waste
management on an annual basis, and establishes waste
quantity targets for all relevant departments. Regular
assessment is conducted and appropriate control
measures are implemented for waste reduction where
necessary. To cope with relevant management efforts,
the Group arranges the classification of hazardous
wastes, put up signs of hazardous wastes in the storage
area, and engages the qualified subcontractors for proper
handling.

Reuse of Wastes

The Group keeps strengthening quality control to reduce
wastes that resulted from non-conforming products, and
is striving to extract steel materials from wastes for “non-
production” usage. Through this approach, a total of
3.94 tonnes of steel materials was reused throughout the
year. In addition, scrap iron chippings generated during
the processing stage was also reused by the Group for
casting production, and amounted to a total of 56.63
tonnes for reuse in casting throughout the year.

Recycle of Wastes

For effective handling of recyclable wastes, the Group
requires employees to classify relevant wastes and affix
them with appropriate labels, which facilitates collection
and periodic delivery to the qualified subcontractors for
recycling and disposal. One of the examples was the
handling of scrap product packaging cartons, the Group
follows the abovementioned principle to engage qualified
agencies for collecting and recycling of such paper
wastes. The total amount of such wastes recycled during
the year was 2.12 tonnes.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued)
Effective Use of Resources
The Group consumes resources mainly through material
procurement, product manufacturing and office operations,
and has formulated the respective policies for managing
effective use of resources and reducing wastage:

BR - HERERERE

N BREMERERNENR @

(4 BRENTHFEBRE)
BERERAEIR
AEENEREAEIZRENYERE B
mBGEMMATEE YN =TTE - &

=] 1 E AE B BOR

VAR 8 & TR B A R

ROADRE

Green Procurement Policy:

RERBHXK

Green Manufacturing Policy:

RESUEBR

Environmental safety assessments shall be conducted before
procurement of chemicals. Toxic and hazardous products shall be
substituted by products that are non-toxic or of low-toxicity;

KB ERE  BEXETRREZEME  AESHESHER
PRESHAEER

The manufacturing process mainly involves consumption of energy,
use of raw materials and use of water for exhaust gas treatment.
In view of this, the Group has formulated corresponding policies to
address issues in these three aspects:

iii)

SEBIREEW REROFER - EM G A KEREEN A
K BULERERE EE = EEm

Newly purchased equipment shall meet the national
energy consumption level, and purchase of high energy
consumption equipment listed in the national phase-out
catalogue is prohibited;

Technological processes shall be optimised for improving
utilisation of steel plates and reducing the amount
of scrap steel materials. In 2019, the Group further
improved the utilisation rate of steel plates and extruded
profiles as follows:

Utilisation rate

HRENRBETAEERNERS
Ao BIERBEZAABEENS
BEFERRE ¢

BEIERRE REaWiRERR
BOBEEHMAERE  R2019F 4K
EEEIRFA T MM AR KB F
A=

Steel plates Extruded profiles

FA= S8 AR A% Eidk )
2019 94% 96%
2018 86.5% 92.5%
Annual comparison FEEMLER 17.5% [3.5%

In addition, for the use of materials, the Group is striving
to recycling of scrap product packaging cartons. This
approach achieves reduction in both waste generation
and consumption of paper resources.

In the spray-painting process of the Group's factories, the
exhaust gas treatment system currently in use is designed
to absorb exhaust gas through water recycling, thereby
reducing the use of fresh water supply. This saved 105.2
cubic metres of fresh water throughout the year.

iii)

BoN - EYMROER L KEERS
BRANABEZRNEMBRAN 1t
e — 77 EOR D BEREEY) - R IR
AHEREER -

FEEIHNERMAIEFR - BRIE
EERANEREERG  #FEKE
REAARKESR - B A R
HoK - REFZHEE 105.237 KA
FEEK -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BiR - HEREREKSE

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND N RIREHSREBNERE

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued)
Effective Use of Resources (Continued)
Green Office Policy:
HREPRNEBR

(4) BRENTHERR@E)
BRERERE)

Reduction in use of office resources includes: (i) using double-sided
printing of paper instead of single-sided printing, and priority to
consider paperless office operation; (ii) using water-saving devices
as much as possible amongst office facilities, such as high efficient
flushing toilets and automatic sensor switch faucets, and reminding
employees to save water in daily operations; (iii) improving interior
design to make full use of natural lighting, such as the use of
transparent tiles, and maximising the use of energy-saving devices
including LED lights, adoption of acoustic automatic control and
solar power supply for public lighting. The current office buildings
adopted LED lights during construction. Solar panels are used for
street lighting in new factories, light and acoustic automatic controls
are used in public area lighting, and newly purchased equipment
must meet the national energy consumption level. It is prohibited
to purchase high energy consumption equipment in the national
phase-out catalog.
BROWAENERER - B : (WRRERTHNRERLHEIT
B WEEZEEELPRERE  (MHARERSHRAEKE
B0 sREAKERANE B RERBENKESE  WEABE
ERREES TEHAOMK : (NBEEAR - REFNABAEK
W RAEARS  WREIRAHEEE - o0 EALEDE - A
FREALRAE X B EiEH - KIS ESE - BRI BRI ER
RAILEDIE - ¥ TRk B ARAAER A KI5 eE MR - N H = R A
RAXEMERE  HREXETREERNERSR - BILRE
BIZEK B SR E) = AR RERR M o

During the reporting period in the year, major resources RAFENMEEA - SEMEENEZE
consumed by the Group were listed as follows. Electricity BRBINMT  EANEZTEEANE
remained as the main resource consumed. IR e

Intensity of
consumption

Consumption per tonne of

Resources in 2019 production unit

2019 BMEEEN
&R 2EHRE WREABE
Municipal Electricity (kWh) & (F k) 3,023,515 2,398.28
Natural gas (cubic metres) RARGLITK) 3,150 2.50
Fresh water (cubic metres) HFEEHOK (I K) 22,918 18.18
Packaging materials (tonnes) BEE R () 117.91 0.09

'I 00 CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R -HERERRSE

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND REHEYSREENEN &
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(4) Environmental Sustainability (Continued) (4) BENTHEZRE®E)

Mitigation of Significant Impacts to Environment and
Natural Resources

Green Operating Processes

In addition to the aforesaid policies and measures for reduction
of emissions and effective use of resources, all products from
the Group have achieved the strict certification by Classification
Societies for fulfilment of the environmental protection
requirements for offshore products. Moreover, TSC Offshore
has established and obtained certification of the 1SO14001
Environmental Management System, and has formulated
effective procedures to assure minimising environmental risks
in its operations.

Environmental Protfection Training fo Employees

To cope with implementation of the environmental policies and
measures, the Group has formulated training programme to
employees for continued enhancement of their environmental
awareness and competence in the implementation of relevant
measures. In the year, the number of employees participated
in the environmental protection trainings and trainings on
identification, collection, transfer and storage of hazardous
wastes reached 176 persons with a total of 350 training
hours, this figure is about 24% higher than that achieved in
previous year which was 282 training hours, which will reduce
environmental risks imposed by the relevant operations in a
more effective way.

Promotion of Environmental Protection along the
Supply Chain

Suppliers are important partners with the Group. The Group
intends to enhance the environmental awareness of its
suppliers by taking advantage of its influence in the supply
chain. Consequently, environmental performance has also
become one of the evaluation criteria during the supplier
selection and approval process, thereby enhancing suppliers’
awareness of environmental protection and reducing carbon
emissions to the environment.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
operating site with any legal violation or complaint relating to
environment.

BOHBRERAREREREAGE

HEEELE

PR T 3l P B A ISR B e DARL R B
REJERER SEHZERNEREH
BEMAARNERRRE  ARes EES
EIRIRAEMESK - fkoh - TSC Offshore
(BERHEFAREERRARELK
BERISO14001 B3R ERBRRE  fIEHE
W MEREEEBRERRDYEIRIES
PR B @Bz

ETRREH

RTEAKRERRBRARENERE - K
SESESEIIFE - TERF B THIRE
ERLABERNAITL  AFEETS

HRRENRECREZDHE - WE -
B B EEIIE176 AR 0 A #3508

ANEE - W EFEM282ERRE I
B - 3BIN%)24% - B E B RO D AR IR IE
PR M IRIE R ©

HERRRES

HEBRAEENEZAERH - ~%E
%%%%ETK%*W%@ﬁ RAHE
BEEIRRER - Rt EERERRER
HIBREH %%ZﬂmEW%TTﬁm%
BEAz — BUERTHEBRHREROE
o B EIRIB AV BRI IA ©

FEREHA - REEWEEREALEN
B8 KB RIRS AR EA DI SR BRI AR -
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BiR - HEREREKSE

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(5) Business Ethics

Product Management

The Group has established and implemented the I1SO 9001
Quality Management System, and has formulated appropriate
monitoring procedures to address corresponding potential
product quality risks. All products are required to pass
through relevant quality inspection, whereby their design,
manufacturing process, installation and testing shall all
conform to relevant standards, specifications and technical
requirements, as well as satisfy relevant design parameters. In
addition, all products are subject to rigorous certification and
safety verification by Classification Societies.

The product quality assurance process of the Group is
controlled through the following four aspects:

1) Inspection of Materials
All raw materials must undergo incoming inspection
based on their drawings, standards, specifications
and technical agreements. Only materials passing the
inspection are allowed for storage.

Raw materials, that are going to be used in products
requiring classification, are subject to certification by
Classification Societies, and they are allowed for storage
and use only after approval.

2) Manufacturing Process
Verification and testing are conducted during the
manufacturing process. Semi-finished products can only
proceed to the next stage after pass result attained.

Manufacturing process for products requiring
classification must undergo certification by Classification
Societies, and can only proceed to next stage after
approval.

3) Inspection of Finished Products
Finished products are subject to final inspection and
comprehensive FAT testing.

Products requiring classification must undergo
certification by Classification Societies and are only
allowed for delivery after approval report has been
issued.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
(5) Business Ethics (Continued)

Product Management (Continued)

4

Nonconforming Product Conftrol

Whenever nonconformities are identified during the
quality verification process, the nonconforming product
is analysed and processed, and they would be segregated
from the manufacturing process.

Apart from monitoring of product quality, the Group is
also concerned on the protection of intellectual property.
The Group has signed confidentiality agreement with
employees for prohibition of employees disclosing
product information to unauthorised personnel. For
electronic information relevant to customers and own-
branded products, such as specifications and drawings,
they are encrypted for protection from leakage. Where
appropriate, the Group will apply for patents to seek
protection from the relevant authorities. The relevant
patents obtained by the Group in the year are listed as
follows:

Name of product/technology patent
B/ BirEFA8

BR - HERERERE

N BREMERERNENR @

(5) BmEEE®E)

EREEGE)

4) T EEBES
ERBRARPRETEEE 1T
ERBETONMER » ZIFFE
BHEMERERIEFEERSE -

RTEZEMASNEGE  ~&H
TRRERBERNEE - REEE
BIRFTRE WS LB THIF
BRENALTEBREREE  BEP
K B ZREE an ) A7 16 E2 8] 4K <5 4 B A9
ETEE  HEETMBEIENAR
SEE  BREMER  ARBER
HERERFENRE  UTEAR
FEEERBRMBHEELER

Registration authority

A

A type of intelligent remote control ship deck crane
used for ocean engineering

—RARESFTENSRICEEMMATR B

State Intellectual Property Office

BB R MR EE R
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BiR - HEREREKSE

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(5) Business Ethics (Continued)
Product Management (Continued)

4

Nonconforming Product Confrol (Continued)
Despite the implementation of robust quality
management, the Group still attaches importance to
customer feedback and has established a comprehensive
complaint handling system. Sales and project
management team will firstly communicate with
customers to identify the details of nonconforming
situation, then the quality management team will
convene the relevant departments for cause analysis
and proposal of corrective actions. Eventually the sales
and project management team will reply to customers
with relevant solution and the implementation status
thereof. During the reporting period, the Group did not
identify any legal violation or complaint case relating to
product responsibility. In the same period, no product
was recalled for safety and health reasons. In addition,
the Group was awarded from various institutions in the
year for recognition of the Group’s product quality and
technological achievements:

Name of Product Award

EmBEEH

N BREMERERNENR @

(5) BEER®

EREEE)

4 TAESEHE
BERARENUEED  A%H
BEREF 8 R B E 0
FT - AEHEREEEESAE
HEZVPRN  BRIFEHEA
BIERL: AREEEEHBEHAHE
PSR EN R A EEE 8
ERBEEEIMEHATERIMT
MARBEEE - REBEHA - K
SEYWERIRTMNERERETHE
B8 A B s W ENME (] R AR EZR - [
B bl EEMRLTE2HRERIER
MAEEM - Jr5h - &M AKEE
FESHEBMERERE  BRE
B EmKFEREMBAR

Issuing Authority
A HE

Certification of intellectual property management
system

Huazhi Certification Co., Ltd. (ZEAREB R A7)

MBERETEEBRRE EHREERAR]
Anti-corruption Measures Vi=gpi

Being a responsible enterprise, the Group has always
maintained “zero tolerance” attitude towards critical violations
of business ethics such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(5) Business Ethics (Continued)
Anti-corruption Measures (Continued)
The Group is striving to provide an integrity business platform
and has continuously implemented the following measures,
including:

1. In 2012, the Group formulated the “Code of Business
Conduct” to which all board members, managers,
employees, agents and representatives must adhere;
the Group announced and implemented the “Employee
Handbook”, which contained the requirements for
prohibition of bribery, and has been signed and
acknowledged by all employees;

2. The Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Supervisory Committee and the Nomination Committee
have been established under the board of directors of the
Group to be responsible for corporate governance;

3. The Group has set up a whistle-blowing hotline through
which suspected cases or incidents of business ethics
violations can be inquired about or reported, and
corrective measures will be formulated to eliminate the
root cause of the established cases;

4. In the employment contract, employees are required to
disclose conflicts of interest, and no relevant reporting
case was received throughout the year;

5. Open tendering policy has been formulated and
"comparison of quotations amongst at least 3 suppliers”
is required, whereby the supplier with competitive price
will be selected;

6.  Starting since 2013, procurement personnel must comply
with the “Revised Code of Self-Discipline Integrity
Conduct for China (including China MRO) Procurement
Personnel”;

7. The Group will appoint independent auditing agency to
proceed auditing and reporting of listed company on
an annual basis, and the content involving the internal
control system will be disclosed separately. Subsidiaries
will appoint the local auditing agencies to proceed
individual auditing and reporting as well as tax calculation
in accordance with the principles of the operating regions
for enhancement of the Group's internal control.

BR - HERERERE

N BREMERERNENR @
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Vill. PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

(5) Business Ethics (Continued)

Anti-corruption Measures (Continued)
8. The Group will provide a training session on anti-
corruption for directors and employees.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
reported case or legal violation relating to corruption.

Community Contribution and Engagement

Being an outstanding corporate citizen in the community, the
Group intends to connect with the community for sending
best wishes and support to the disadvantaged and giving
back to the community. Based on this social responsibility,
the Group has been expecting to reach out to the community
over the years, through volunteer service or participation in
regional activities, and communication with local community
organisations in form of meetings and other means for
understanding their needs and satisfying demands in the
regions to the best of the Group's capabilities.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CMIC Ocean
En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 117 to 242, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
38 M B BT R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BRETEE®

Valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

M- BERRBREVEENGE

Refer to notes 10 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(h), 1(i), 1()(i) and 1(k)(ii).
BREGEE SRR M 10120 R 1(h) ~ 10) ~ 10)0) R 1K) B EFFHEE °

The Key Audit Matter
HEEFEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNETFTNOEEZEE

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets as at 31 December 2019 were allocated to the
cash-generating units (“CGUs") to which they belong.

mE BERREREFEER-_ZE—NFT=ZA=+—8
HIAREER D BECPTERIR SEAE BN -

When it is determined that indicators of impairment of a CGU
exist, management assesses the value in use of the CGU by
preparing a discounted cash flow forecast and that value in use
is compared with the carrying value of the CGU to determine if
any impairment is required.

EEEEA - DeELABNFEREDRR  EEESERITE
RenBH - M EZREEEEUNEREE  ARHE
ZReEABMUMNKRABETEHL  AEESEREELEME
fAAE ©

Assessing the value in use of a CGU is complex and requires
management to make a number of judgemental assumptions,
particularly relating to the revenue growth rates (which drives
future production levels) and future gross margins.
AEE-—ReELEMNEREEREER  BEFEEEE
LEHEHBAERE(ERBRREOEEKTF) RARRERNE
e ZIAFIERER -

These estimates are inherently uncertain due to recent oil price
volatility and the uncertain economic outlook.
HANTERERES RAEER R TH - Z5HARE L FE
THEE M o
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Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets included the following:
HAFHEME  BEERKBEREVEENGENSETEFE
FETHI%IE

e  obtaining an understanding of the Group'’s policies and
procedures to identify impairment indicators of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets;

e BB EEEBIME  BERREREVEERED
FREOBRRIZFT

3 evaluating management’s identification of impairment
indicators, if any, with reference to the internal sources
and external sources of information;

o ZRAMRINEEIRTAERBLRETR(WE)
SEGIE

° engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the methodology adopted by management,
the identification of CGUs and the allocation of assets
to each CGU in the preparation of its discounted cash
flow forecasts and whether these were prepared in a
manner consistent with the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

o ZERNBHEER  UBBEMATERFERTBRER
TRRIREIRERANGE  BeEEBGNHNREE
EDRESRCEESN - WIEABABEAZSERR
HIRTE R —Be AR

° assessing and challenging management'’s impairment
assessment model. This included evaluating the discounted
cash flow forecasts for each CGU where an indicator of
impairment was identified and comparing the resultant
value in use with the carrying values of the relevant assets
and considering whether impairment or a reversal of past
impairment was required;

e MMERBEREEENRENGRE o S EENERE
BEDRNSReELSBMUOFTRBSRIEBAR - WM
SERAEEEEBEEETHERRERBSE T Z5T R
BB EBERE



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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18 M B BT R

HBREETEE®

Valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (Continued)

ME BERRBEREVEENEEGE)

Refer to notes 10 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(h), 1(i), 1()(i) and 1(k)(ii).
BRI E I EIREZ M GE 10 R 120 ZHTAE1(h) ~ 10) ~ 10)0)R 1)) EETBE °

The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REANEHNAEEZSE

We identified the valuation of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets as a key audit matter because determining
the level of impairment, if any, involves a significant degree of
management judgement in forecasting future cash flows and
estimating the value in use of these assets both of which are
inherently uncertain and may be subject to management bias.
BMEYE  BEARGBLETLEEI RBERENFE
REEREKEMWMAB)SRERBHBRKRE S RE R
AREERENCERAEEEHERAM  mAaltmEARE £5
FETHEEY  BgXIERENREMBMTE -

° comparing the most significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts, including the revenue
growth rates and future gross margins, with the historical
performance of each CGU and management’s budgets
and forecasts;

o BIMRARERBAFZERNBASIE(BERAERER
REREME) BB GELEUNBERBELRERERE
AMFDAETTELER

e  evaluating the discount rates used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar companies
in the same industry;

o HEXHMBUARETEHL - FUHFFER SRR
FREVITIR %

3 performing sensitivity analyses of the discount rates,
revenue growth rates, future gross margins and
considering the resulting impact on the impairment
assessment for the year and whether there were any
indicators of management bias; and

o HFHEEK  WARRERRKRENEETEREDN
WERHFAREFENZERTEFEERERRD
ERIFR &

3 considering the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of impairment testing of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, including
the key assumptions and sensitivities to changes in such
assumptions, with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

s REBRTEFEANRTE  ZRESUBHREAFTEY
¥ BERREBREFEENREIANKE  24EF
ZRJZNBEBRIEDHGHRE -

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Loss allowance for trade receivables

B 5 BWRENERRE

BRETEE®

Refer to notes 18 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(k)(i) and 1(n).

BRI G B BN i 18 K32 LA RMTEE 1000 &% 1(n)E) &
The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

n%lB? w o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REANENAEEZSE

The carrying value of the Group's trade receivables as at 31
December 2019 totalled US$43.0 million after deduction of loss
allowance of US$61.0 million.

R B R 61,000,000k T2+ BEEBER_T—NF
TZRA=1+T—H®E S EWHKIEREES $£43,000,000%
JIE, @

The Group’s loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credit loss, which is estimated by taking
into account the historical credit loss experience, ageing of the
receivables and customer profile based on geographical location
or business segment, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecasted
economic conditions at the reporting date. Such assessment
involves a significant degree of judgement.
EEENEERBREENHEREEBENSHENE -
KEERBEEEBELR  BUGRIERE - ERMECES
EB oM EP MM - RS A BHEFANTEREZIA

K% B BRI BEARE A ETRE - BRI RE
RIRE HIE -
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Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for trade
receivables included the following:
BAIEESRRFIENERBEENSEARETF 2 T35
EG

e  obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection, and
estimating the credit loss allowance;

o TENMIHEBGCERZRS  WEREEBEEBMHH
T ENEER B RET - EERBITRR ;

o obtaining an understanding on the key data and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model adopted
by the management, including the basis of the
segmentation of the accounts receivable based on credit
risk characteristics, the historical default data, and the
assumptions involved in management’s estimated loss
rates;

s EBREBERMNTEMEESEEREDNEREIELR
& FJ%EIEE%EAF%I—L&%%&TTH&Z%M}E"“iﬁ
WEE BEENXUREEREEMAGEEE P RHOR
=



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Loss allowance for trade receivables (Continued)

B 5 REENBREEE)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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HBREETEE®

Refer to notes 18 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(k)(i) and 1(n).

BRI A B IRE M i 18 R32L R T 10k)() R 1(n)B E 5T ©

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREEHR REANEHNAEEZSE

We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables as a e

key audit matter because the assessment of loss allowances
is inherently subjective and requires significant management
judgement, which increases the risk of error or potential

management bias. o

MR EEEREEAE LAEIHN  YHFEEREED
BERHE - AfmEMEEREEETRERINERR - #HM
158 S EBGRIR B IR R G R R s SR FIE -

assessing the classification of individual balances in the
trade receivables ageing report by comparing the details
in the trade receivables ageing report with underlying
invoices, on a sample basis;

152 55 & HER T8 AR e i o P A 5 15 B I 3 BE A AT
LEET - A AT S 2 5 R IR BR e ¥R & A Bl 45 R D 9

¥

assessing the reasonableness of management'’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements, including testing
the accuracy of the historical default data and evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information; and

ERREIEERABKERAE N ER (BEAFBEE
WER R AR - FHEBEBREXEEIRE AILE R
RATEUEERMEL EE AR R HEREERREEE
MERME : &

comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent to the
financial year end relating to trade receivable balances at
31 December 2019 with bank statements and relevant
underlying documentation, on a sample basis.

R =T - NFTZA=1T—"HZEZRUFIBELEHR
MHERAREMAEFABBMAR S - EIRI1TAE RAE
R EL AR S HE AT R L 3 o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessing the net realisable value of inventories

FHEFE RN A 2R FE

BRETEE®

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(1).

BRRREE AN 17 R 1) &5 BUR °
The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REANENAEEZSE

The carrying value for inventories as at 31 December 2019 was
US$149.0 million, which represented 42% of the Group’s total
assets. The inventories held at the year-end covered a wide
range of capital equipment and spare parts and the demand for
these in the future may be adversely affected by many factors
including market demand, competitor activities, pricing and the
introduction of substituting products and technologies.
RZZE-NAF+-A=+—H  FENKRE{EA149,000,000
Exc HER BEEEEEEMNA2% FRBANTFERE
BREERREREN  ARRZEREREHOTRATEXE
FEZEREZNTHEE  BEMSHER BREFNEH &
Ko REMHE B RHEL -

The Group’s inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Determination of net realisable value
involves key judgements and estimates made by management,
in particular with regards to the estimation of selling prices and
provisions for slow-moving and obsolete inventories.
SEEENFERAANEZEFEPOREE AR - BEEA
SR FESREREEL OB E XA - BRI E % H
MREFEEERBEBIELMME
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Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
inventories included the following:

B EFENT 2R ENETEFEETIIRE

e assessing whether the inventory provision at the end of
the reporting period was determined on a basis consistent
with the Group’s inventory provisioning policy including
evaluating the accuracy of management'’s prior year
estimation;

o HERBEBRRNEFERBELRE SREFERE
BR-BNELEEE (BRTEEEEREFENMGER

BAERE)

° assessing, on a sample basis, the classification of individual
items in the inventory ageing report by comparing the
details in the inventory ageing report with underlying
documentation, including purchase invoices and goods
receipt notes;

s MMEFMEEFERERERETENEBEENDE  FRABEE
BEREBETHFAEHERBXT (BERBERELE
o W) EL R



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessing the net realisable value of inventories (Continued)
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HBREETEE®

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(1).

BRI E B EIRE M 17 R 1) & 5T E
The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REANEHNAEEZSE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable value of
inventories as a key audit matter because of the significance
of inventories to the consolidated financial statements and
because of the significant judgements made by management in
assessing net realisable value, which increases the risk of error
or potential management bias.

BB EFERNE2RFENGERERBREFFE  REAR
FEHGRAVMBRENEZHREEET G R FEED
BB R HIET - ARG IR E B IR E R A H R o

° assessing the appropriateness of the selling prices
estimated by the management, on a sample basis, by
comparing the estimated selling prices to the recent
transaction prices and our knowledge of the Group’s
business;

o MENMEETEEMIMNEERSRE  TA/SEE
BREMNRZEETLEARERE BEEEE

e engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
assessing management's estimation of net realisable value
for those inventories which are based on external valuation
and evaluating the valuation methodology adopted by the
external valuer;

o ZEHMOABMAEZKTG BTG E R EENRIN
HEHZEFER A Z R FEED /G RaTEIN
BERMERA B E A

e  assessing the experience, competence and objectivity of
the external valuer engaged by the Group; and

o M EREZEMIMAEEENLR  EIREEH
(R

° evaluating the reasonableness of the Group’s inventory
provision balance by comparing, on a sample basis, the
carrying value of inventories with expected selling prices or
net realisable value.

o Mt ESETEBBEKRESSIE  ARAR/MERLR
FEREEEBHE ES A #IFE -

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M B BT R
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Guen Kin Shing.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
nv_\éj:éé’%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in United States dollars) 82 = FE—NF+=-A=+—H1LFE(XETZ5)

2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)\F
Note US$°000 US$'000
Lz FErx F=T
Revenue WA B 70,246 58,839
Cost of sales & BCA (46,210) (48,792)
Gross profit EF 24,036 10,047
Other revenue and net income g RoF A 4 3,916 934
Reversal of provision for customer claims &5 B =85 2 # @ 5(c) 3,030 =
Gain on settlement of trade payables by BRBETHRGEEE FEN
issue of new shares FIA Wz 5(c) 3,281 ~
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAE (4,981) (5,635)
General and administrative expenses —MRITHRAX (23,960) (27,693)
Other operating expenses HEth =z (1,239) (4,164)
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment ‘& 5 & 4 Bk 50 & FE UK =45
losses) on trade debtors and bill HERKRRENEERE
receivables, lease receivables and EEEECREEER)
contract assets 5(c) 4,177 (2,445)
Profit/(loss) from operations "ReEHER(BR) 8,260 (28,956)
Finance costs B SR AN 5(a) (1,727) (2,450)
Share of profits of associates SaK(): /N i | 36 1
Share of profit of joint venture DIEEEREZ A 3,728 =
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELADER (B518) 5 10,297 (31,405)
Income tax PRS2 6(a) (979) (10,381)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREFl (BB 9,318 (41,786)
Attributable to: LU & 75 PB4
Equity shareholders of the Company RN ERER R 9,701 (41,358)
Non-controlling interests SRR (383) (428)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREA(EE) 9,318 (41,786)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRERN(HR) 9
Basic and diluted BERREE US0.35 cent US(2.98) cents
0.353A1l (2.98)ZA1l

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative

information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 124 to 242 form part of these financial statements.

izt : AEBEER-Z-NAF— A BRALETEY

EERBBUBHREENF 165 - RIFUTX -
HUHRBIBETSETES - AR -

FI24AE282BNME B Z FEM BRI — &

N

a5 e

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AERaRkEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in United States dollars) &2 —FE—hF+=-A=1+—HIFFE(AETZ5)

2019 2018
—E-hF - N\F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEr F=rx
Profit/(loss) for the year FERER(FB) 9,318 (41,786)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREME2HEUE :
Items that will not be reclassified to profitor ~ T &E#H P EEEem s HE -
loss:
— Equity investments at FVOC| — net movement — &2/ (B ExT A E fth 2 [ U as 1O i 42
in fair value reserve (non-recycling) ®E - AT EEREENEE)FE
(with nil tax effect) (Pargle) (BREE) (676) (453)
— Share of other comprehensive income of -EiEEE AR HMEEmKA
joint venture (with nil tax effect) (ERBE) (4,214) -
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to K EAEEF D EE B 2 IHA -
profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation of - BT A B R Bk A B A S R P
financial statements of subsidiaries and EECZENRZBEUBHE
associates (with nil tax effect) 479 (2,708)
Other comprehensive income for the year R H fh 2 iz (4,411) (3,161)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2MH W45 4,907 (44,947)
Attributable to: LA & 75 AL
Equity shareholders of the Company KA A RAENRER 5,294 (44,514)
Non-controlling interests SRR A (387) (433)
Total comprehensive income for the year X2 W45 4,907 (44,947)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the [z : ZAEBER=Z—NF—A—BRALETEN

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative EERBBMEREERFE 165 o BRI T% -
information is not restated. See note 1(c). B EBETSHEITEY - R -

124B 2242 B B F W B MR — 88

o

The notes on pages 124 to 242 form part of these financial statements.

D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

At 31 December 2019 (Expressed in United States dollars) R =ZF—NF+=H=+—H(XELZ%)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-NEF
Note Us$'000 USs$'000
F = FEx S
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B &R 10 42,989 40,620
Investment properties wEYZF 10 3,265 3,503
Interest in leasehold land held for own use RBEKLHEFIEGANEE
under operating leases TR 1 - 4,030
Intangible assets BILEE 12 307 382
Interest in associates RN oL F 14 307 274
Interest in joint venture REERa MR 15 42,514 =
Other financial assets HihemEE 16 326 1,002
Prepayments SEENE 18 60 485
Lease receivables THE UG 19 6,044 =
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEE E 27(b) 1,775 2,478
97,587 52,774
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 17 149,028 145,944
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE W% H At fE U IR 18 64,824 56,276
Contract assets BHEE 24(a) 1,268 2,012
Amount due from a related company JE T A BSE X R FRIE 20 101 101
Lease receivables THE FEUBGR 19 3,561 =
Tax recoverable G qEEihE 27(a) 826 132
Pledged bank deposits B RITIER 1,051 802
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 21(a) 35,021 19,805
255,680 225,072
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 238 AEELE 2 IEREEE 22 2,911 2,936
258,591 228,008
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 M R H M e 5/ 23 189,417 201,316
Contract liabilities AHAaE 24(b) 29,034 29,444
Bank loans RITERK 25 5,023 10,277
Lease liabilities HEAaE 26 1,124 18
Tax payable FERI i IE 27(a) 4,191 4,128
228,789 245,183
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (&E)EE 29,802 (17,175)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR &R

At 31 December 2019 (Expressed in United States dollars) R =ZF—NF+=H=+—H(XETLZ%)

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
ih=s FEx SFEETE
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERARBES 127,389 35,599
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans IRITER 25 4,161 7,092
Lease liabilities HEGE 26 2,814 63
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFIE BB 27(b) - 46
6,975 7,201
NET ASSETS BERE 120,414 28,398
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR #HE
Share capital f& A 31(b) 39,191 18,854
Reserves ] 81,865 9,799
Total equity attributable to equity RATRERREGER LR
shareholders of the Company 121,056 28,653
Non-controlling interests eI RS (642) (255)
TOTAL EQUITY XA 120,414 28,398

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March R&EZe@R T -TE£=F -+ + A EREET

2020. o
Lou Dongyang Jiang Bing Hua
EREG BRE
Director Director
BF EE

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the  Mizf: AEBEER =T —NF— A —BRAKEEY

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative EERBBMEREERFE 165 o BIBUL % -
information is not restated. See note 1(c). HERBBETSETES - RHFE1(0) °
The notes on pages 124 to 242 form part of these financial statements. FI24EE 242 E M cE R ZEM B HRER A — 2D
5o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERZEEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in United States dollars) 82 = FE—NF+=-A=+—H1LFE(XETZ5)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARERFEE
Shares held
Employee for share
share-based award Fair value
Share Share Merger ~ Exchange  compensation stheme Capital ~ Revaluation Reserve reserve  Accumulated Non-controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve funds  (non-recydling) losses Total interests equity
HRRE  BERE
ZERN AR MERR
BEx  RBEE  AKRE  EXBRE EESMEHRE  RBEE  KABR  BfER  @E0ES (%)  BEE & FUREE o8&
Us§'000 US§/000 USs$000 US§'000 US§'000 US§/000 USs$000 US§'000 US§000 US§/000 USs$000 US§'000 US§'000  USs'000
Fin TET Tin Fin Fin i 7 Tin Fin TiT TET Tin Fin T TEn
Balance at H=%-N§-5-8
1 January 2018 &8 9,094 121,805 2161 (13317) 3715 (1,285) 5482 627 8,295 (3.207) (130,734) 8,69 178 83874
Changes i equity for 2018 H=%-N\FRELE
Loss for theyear FRER = . ; = ; 5 < - = E (#1,358) (41,358) (49) (41,786
Other comprehensive income Ef2ENE B B ¢ (2703) = i 2 H r (453) i (3156) R EAL)]
Total comprehensive income kLS = = S 2703 P 3 = = = (453) 41,358) (44514) 033 (@)
Isue of new shares HEHR 9,749 54549 3 5 £ 3 ’ s 3 a B 64,298 - 6428
Shares issued under share option - R BT RIERE
schemes ERH 11 9 : i 4) 3 < 3 3 3 7 59 3 59
Equity-setled share-besed WREEENRAAERS
transactions 25 = S T (3730) S 3 & = s 3844 114 e 114
Transferted to resenve funds ARERENES i i - 3 3 N i S 4 [, (214 = 2 E
Balance at 31 December 2018and ~ H=F-NF1=fZ1-BR
1 January 2019 ZB-nE-f-BzEH 18,854 182,447 2161 (16,020) - (1,285) 548 627 8,509 (3,660) (168,462) 28653 (255) 283%
Changes in equity for 2019 H=%-n5RELRE
Proft for the year EREH - - - - - - - - - - 9,701 9,701 (383) 9318
Other comprehensive income Efh2EkE - - - 483 - - - - - (4890) - (4,400 @ @)
Total comprehensive income 2EhELE - - - 483 - - - - - (4,890) 9,701 5294 (387) 4907
Isue of new shares HEHR 037 68,288 - - - - - - - - - 88625 7]
Purchase ofsheres for shareaward  SERGEHEERA
scherme (note 29 (Hiz29) - - - - - (1516) - - - - - (1516) - (s
Transferred to reserve funds SRTRENGD - - - - - - - - 399 - (399) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2019 H=%-A§+=R=t-A2
53 39,191 250,735 2161 (15,531) - (2.801) 5482 627 8,908 (8,550) (159,160) 121,056 (642) 120414

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 124 to 242 form part of these financial statements.

GEE
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

MERIRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in United States dollars) &2 —FE—hF+=-A=1+—HIFFE(AETZ5)

2019 2018
—E-AF ZE—N\F
Note Us$'000 US$'000
B =E FEr FET
Operating activities R
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB A=, (E18) 10,297 (31,405)
Adjustments for: AT EEED AR :
Depreciation e 5(c) 5,946 6,153
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ B F BRI =
impairment losses on trade debtors HERKAREHEE
and bills receivables, leases receivables (REEERR),
and contract assets REEE 5(c) (4,177) 2,445
Impairment losses on property, M - BE RFE
plant and equipment BB E 1S 5(c) - 317
Share of profits of associates DR E N T2 A (36) (1)
Share of profit of joint venture SMEEERELZ @A (3.728) :
Write-down of inventories TFE MR 17(b) 181 3,153
Amortisation of interest in leasehold R EHEFIEBRM
land held for own use under A & b e 2 1 B
operating leases 5(c) - 207
Amortisation of intangible assets B A S 5(c) 380 1,210
Finance costs B TS AR AR 5(a) 1,727 2,450
Interest income B U A 4 (1,186) (175)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BEREEZ
plant and equipment EiE, (as) 5(c) 523 (56)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HESHERFELREZ
classified as held for sale ERBEE 2 W= 5(c) - (13)
(Reversal of provision)/provision for RITAEES N ETBE
estimated loss of incomplete (B2 B ) Bt
construction contract 5(c) (1,602) 1,602
Reversal of provision for customer claims &5 &= B 5 2 # [0 5(c) (3,030) =
Gain on settlement of trade payable by BBREITHREEE RN
issue of new shares I W 5(c) (3,281) =
Equity-settled share-based payment VARR # 45 E B0 AR 19
expenses SRX 5(b) - 114
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) SNEEE(Ras) 688 (273)
Operating profit/(loss) before changes & E&E &S E A
in working capital ESRT (BE) 2,702 (14,272)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories F& (g ), w (3.319) 4,562
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and B 5 FE W K H b UL FRIA
other receivables B ($Ean) 2,542 (1,690)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEERD,(E ) 741 (172)
Increase in lease receivables 0 & FE RGN (9,349) 3
Decrease in trade and other payables B I R H MR RIBR A (4,360) (4,345)
Decrease in contract liabilities EHREERD (370) (545)
Cash used in operations REXEBRMARS (11,413) (16,462)
Income tax (paid)/refunded (B, EEET 5 (961) 122
Net cash used in operating activities REEBMABREFE (12,374) (16,340)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in United States dollars) 82 = FE—NF+=-A=+—H1LFE(XETZ5)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mEREREXR

2019 2018
—E-hF T N\F
Note Us$'000 US$'000
B =E FEr SFEsaL
Investing activities REXE
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE  BEKR
plant and equipment JABTR (1,326) (3,683)
Payments for purchases of intangible assets B & & & 2 7% (307) ¥
Interest received 2R & 1,158 175
Increase in pledged bank BRI T 5L A0
deposits (258) (279)
Subscription of notes included in trade FTAE 5 FE U R H A FE UK
and other receivables MIEZ REZEE (6,385) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WE REE
plant and equipment FTiS50E 1,053 345
Proceeds from disposal of non-current HESBERFIEEE ZIERE
assets classified as held for sale BEMSHIE - 6,095
Capital contribution to joint venture RE &R aIRE R (37,000) 3
Net cash (used in)/generated from RE£XK(FTR)BE
investing activities RE&FE (43,065) 2,653
Financing activities BB
Proceeds from issue of new shares SR TS 7B 83,139 64,298
Interest paid BERFE (1,571) (2,041)
Proceeds from new bank loans FESRITERMSHIEA 21(b) 5,068 5,606
Repayment of bank loans EBERITER 21(b) (13,177) (49,486)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENHEERE 2 EARB MK 21(b) (1,152) (13)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EfNHEERS 2 FEHD 21(b) (218) )
Proceeds from issue of new shares under 1R EFE A IERT ZIFTIL LD <
share option schemes FrSskI8 - 59
Payments for purchaser of shares under BRI 0 SRENFTEIE B IR D 2
share award scheme N (1,516) 5
Net cash generated from financing RMEXBELRS
activities RE 70,573 18,421
Net increase in cash and RERBELZEY
cash equivalents TR BRI N 15,134 4,734
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R— A —RRERBESZEY 19,805 15,287
Effect of foreign exchange ERSFHNTE
rate changes 82 (216)
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt=-A=+—-REER
31 December REeEZEY 21(a) 35,021 19,805

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Previously, cash payments
under operating leases made by the Group as a lessee of $2,069,000 were
classified as operating activities in the consolidated cash flow statement.
Under HKFRS 16, except for short-term lease payments, payments for
leases of low value assets and variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities, all other rentals paid on leases are now split
into capital element and interest element (see note 21(b)) and classified as
financing cash outflows. Under the modified retrospective approach, the
comparative information is not restated. Further details on the impact of the
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 1(c).

The notes on pages 124 to 242 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRHE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

C))

(®)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 comprise the Group and the Group's interest
in associates and joint venture.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$"). Subsidiaries of the Company have their functional
currencies other than HK$, mainly Renminbi (“RMB"),
United States dollars and Pound Sterling (“GBP”). In view
of operations of the Group in various foreign countries, the
directors of the Company consider United States dollars,
being an internationally well-recognised currency, can provide
more meaningful information to the Company’s investors and
meet the needs of the Group’s global customers. Therefore,
the directors choose United States dollars as the presentation
currency of the financial statements.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except for investments
in equity securities which are stated at their fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out in note 1(f).

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

©

(Continued)
Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (see note 1(x)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases, and
a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC) 15, Operating leases
— incentives, and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating the substance of
transactions involving the legal form of a lease. It introduces a
single accounting model for lessees, which requires a lessee to
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases,
except for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) and leases of low-value assets. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17
substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable users
of the financial statements to assess the effect that leases have
on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 January
2019. The Group has elected to use the modified retrospective
approach and has therefore recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance
at 1 January 2019. Comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition options applied
are set out below:

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

a.

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct
the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered into
or changed on or after 1 January 2019. For contracts
entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group has used
the transitional practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are or contain leases. Accordingly, contracts that were
previously assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue to
be accounted for as leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts
previously assessed as non-lease service arrangements
continue to be accounted for as executory contracts.

Lessee accounting and fransitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17. Instead,
the Group is required to capitalise all leases when it
is the lessee, including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other than those short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets which are
exempt. As far as the Group is concerned, these newly
capitalised leases are primarily in relation to the operating
lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 in respect
of leases of properties as disclosed in note 33. For an
explanation of how the Group applies lessee accounting,
see note 1(j)(i).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January
2019), the Group determined the length of the
remaining lease terms and measured the lease liabilities
for the leases previously classified as operating leases
at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the relevant incremental borrowing
rates at 1 January 2019. The weighted average of the
incremental borrowing rates used for determination of
the present value of the remaining lease payments was
4.8%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)
b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)
To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16:

(i)

(ii)

(ifi)

the Group elected not to apply the requirements
of HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets to leases for which
the remaining lease term ends within 12 months
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
i.e. where the lease term ends on or before 31
December 2019;

when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group applied
a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics (such as leases
with a similar remaining lease term for a similar
class of underlying asset in a similar economic
environment); and

when measuring the right-of-use assets at the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group relied
on the previous assessment for onerous contract
provisions as at 31 December 2018 as an alternative
to performing an impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FEETBE#E

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)
b.

Lessee accounting and fransitional impact b.
(Continued)

The following table reconciles the operating lease

commitments as disclosed in note 33 as at 31 December

2018 to the opening balance for lease liabilities

(c) BHEENBE 2
EAMKRELEDE 65 HEE)

BREANBTEERERZE (E)

TRER=-ZF—NE+ZA=+—=
Az &EAERE(RE33EE)
HER T —NF— A —BERZH

recognised as at 1 January 2019: NHEa EESRZEE
Us$'000
F=r
Operating lease commitments at INESE= N2 = B Ear Bl
31 December 2018 ST E AR 3,974
Less: commitments relating to short-term leases & : B BEE 0 & AL s4 T HEEAR
and other leases with remaining lease == H == B ez
term ending on or before 31 December AlfEmA R B E R H A S
2019 exempt from capitalisation ZEIE (45)
Add: lease payments for the additional periods /il : BiIANEBR AL IEEEEAFTT
where the Group considers it reasonably fEEHRE R 2 FHINARAL 2
certain that it will exercise the extension HER
options 1,836
5,765
Less: total future interest expenses R AR F B 42 (822)
Present value of remaining lease payments, BRTIHEENRZEAE  FAZZ—NF
discounted using the incremental borrowing —A—BZESERFI RN
rate at 1 January 2019 4,943
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised as at m:R=F—-—N\EFE+=ZA=1+—H
31 December 2018 EAZRMEEEARE 81
Total lease liabilities recognised at RZZE-—NF—A—B#ER
1 January 2019 HEBEESE 5,024

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously
classified as operating leases have been recognised at
an amount equal to the amount recognised for the
remaining lease liabilities.

HERMDBRREHENTHERH
WEREEECHENHTHEHESR
EFTTER RN SRR o

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
—TE-NEFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 1 FESEBER@#E
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) Bt BERNEE (&)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) ERVKBREEAFI6H  HE(E)
b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact b, FRHEANETEERBEZEE)
(Continued)
So far as the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on BLER 4N B 78 B 75 i 5 2E BI 58 1658 Y
leases previously classified as finance leases is concerned, ERIDBEAMAEMENHENTE
the Group is not required to make any adjustments at ME  RERAERFAXTIN K
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, other than SEEAERVIEEREEM KBRS
changing the captions for the balances. Accordingly, ZBIFE 16552 BIEHEMFARE -
instead of “obligations under finance leases”, these gt - ZERIB L AIEEBE]mIE
amounts are included within “lease liabilities”, and the (MEHRSEME] BHEHEEE
depreciated carrying amount of the corresponding leased KHENEEERSNAERES
assets is identified as right-of-use assets. There is no E o HEm BV R R R X B E M 52
impact on the opening balance of equity. & o
The following table summarises the impacts of the SR T B E BB RS 2L
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated F 1658 H A K BAR G B AR R A
statement of financial position: 2
Carrying
amountat Capitalisation Carrying
31 December of operating amount at
2018 lease contracts 1 January 2019
R-ZE-N\F R-B—h#F
T=EEw=[E RERE —A—H
HEREE EHRERL HEREE
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
T F= F=5T
Line items in the consolidated ZRABBHEREER
statement of financial ER (2=l
position impacted by the RRZFHNIEE :
adoption of HKFRS 16:
Property, plant and equipment Y% -« R KRRE 40,620 8,568 49,188
Interest in leasehold land held for BEEEHER1EE AR
own use under operating leases HE LR 4,030 (4,030) =
Lease receivables (non-current) M E RN GERED) = 285 285
Lease receivables (current) HE RN (R E) = 120 120
Lease liabilities (current) HEAEB(RE) 18 1,070 1,088
Lease liabilities (non-current) HEEEGERE) 63 3,873 3,936
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

C.

Impact on the financial result, segment results
and cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group as a
lessee is required to recognise interest expense accrued
on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and
the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of
the previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. This results in a positive impact
on the reported profit from operations in the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss, as compared to
the results if HKAS 17 had been applied during the year.

In the consolidated cash flow statement, the Group as a
lessee is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their capital element and interest element (see
note 21(b)). These elements are classified as financing
cash outflows, similar to how leases previously classified
as finance leases under HKAS 17 were treated, rather
than as operating cash outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under HKAS 17. Although total cash
flows are unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore
results in a significant change in presentation of cash
flows within the consolidated cash flow statement (see
note 21(c)).

Leasehold investment property

Under HKFRS 16, the Group is required to account for
all leasehold properties as investment properties when
these properties are held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation (“leasehold investment properties”).
The adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
as the Group previously elected to apply HKAS 40,
Investment properties, to account for all of its leasehold
properties that were held for investment purposes as at
31 December 2018. Consequentially, these leasehold
investment properties continue to be carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

1 FESHERR#E

(c) BHEENBE 2
EAMKRELEDE 65 HEE)

oF

HEREEHEEE
ERBRITE
R-F—NF— A BIHRERE
REEERHERER  ~EBE(E
REBAAN)AEAEEABRAN
BREEANANERAIRERAEEE
e MIEREMBRRERANR
ERZEAREMERTELANHA
EHX HEHRFARAEES
FHERIEI7TROER  WBEFHA
SEGABEERMEMNELEN
ELLFEZE -

DEPEARE

REEHEERERA  NEE(E
REBAN)EBREAREHEEETH
BN HFEEAS TS KIS
o (RHaE21(b) - ZFH 2 D8
REBERES L (ERERS 5
ERE17TRENDEARERER
HEZERBERABC  MIFLLER
SR BESFENFEI17RET
MNEEHENA - BREHESR=H
BAIHE HMBBEUHEREE
Al 16 REBHRERERERNR
SREMEY|BEESRES (R M
21(c) ©

HEREYH
BEEBVHRESENE 165 -
REBRFEBEZSWEURRES
WAR/SREREGERARTAR
EMEINAREME(HERLED
2 - KBSV B HREEAE16
FUHAEB R B RRNES

YE G BRRABASBEGCAIRIE
ERABB S ERFLIORREY
® BER-_ZF-—N\F+=_A=+
—BRERERENMEREME
AR - Bt - 25HEREYELE
BIRA AR 25T E RO EE BT
E\E"

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

e. Lessor accounting
In addition to leasing out the investment property
referred to in paragraph d. above, the Group leases out a
number of items of machinery as the lessor of operating
leases. The accounting policies applicable to the Group
as a lessor remain substantially unchanged from those
under HKAS 17.

Under HKFRS 16, when the Group acts as an
intermediate lessor in a sublease arrangement, the Group
is required to classify the sublease as a finance lease or
an operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, instead of by reference to
the underlying asset. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16,
the Group has made adjustments at 1 January 2019
to the opening balances to recognise current portion
of lease receivables and non-current portion of lease
receivables of US$120,000 and US$285,000 respectively.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with notes 1(o) or 1(p)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

©

(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Associates and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate and joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The cost of
the investment includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and any direct
investment into the associate or joint venture that forms part
of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 1(k)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment loss for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investee’'s other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates and joint venture (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group'’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture
(after applying the expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) model to
such other long-term interests where applicable (see note 1(k)

(D).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(f)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment.
The investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL") for
which transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss.
For an explanation of how the Group determines fair value
of financial instruments, see note 16. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification.

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an irrevocable election to designate the investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retain
profits/accumulated losses. It is not recycled through profit
or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policy set out in note 1(u)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

FESHBE#E

®

HtRARSRE
AEBRARREHBEAEFEFREN K
RNMBAR  BMERARARAGLELEZ
REBRINIT

BARBERENAEBAAES HEZ
FIREZ AEER RIETER - ZEFRE
BATENMEERERZEATRIIE
IR A FEFABD((EAFEFAER
@) HEEZRGRABERIBRER °
ERAEBNAETSR T AQNFENH
B RMiaE16 - RS REREDIERER
BHAWAT :

BRABAHIRE R BRLAFERF ABR
FTE - BRIEBRAREBEWIERFEEE A -
BEMGEHERAZERER  AREFELT
ARGHEREAEE RIE A FEF AR MR
e (MRAHEF AR 2E R ]) GEE
BAENRKRE HATENREZHN
Hiv 2 EK R ER - ZHBEDENE R
TAEL  BEEZBERELETANA
ERAREMERB A EH o ME1ED
ZEEE - RIEtEmE R aET RS8R
HRERAFERBEEEE) S - EEX
HREREE - RZRBREHLER - QAF
BERECFEB) TN RFSREBERE G
A,/ REER - M EBREEE - T
=N BREAFEF ABRRIRA FER
AEMEE KRGS ENRAEFRE 2K
B IREMER (WG E B ER N E R
RERSEMBUA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1T SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(9) Investment properties

()

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for
a currently undetermined future use and property that is
being constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties, less their estimate residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives of 20
years. Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 1(u)(ii).

In the comparative period, when the Group held a property
interest under an operating lease and used the property to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the Group
could elect on a property-by-property basis to classify and
account for such interest as an investment property. Any such
property interest which had been classified as an investment
property was accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease (see note 1(j)), and the same accounting policies were
applied to that interest as were applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments were
accounted for as described in note 1()).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(ii)):

—  freehold land and buildings;

— interest in leasehold land and building where the Group
is the registered owner of the property interest;

—  right-of-use assets arising from leases over freehold
or leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner to the property interests; and

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets, arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 1(j)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(w)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated.

—  Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 40 years
after the date of completion.

—  Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.

—  The Group’s interests in buildings situated on leasehold
land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 40 years after the date of completion.

—  Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of the unexpired term of lease or 5 years.

—  Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
= Plant and machinery 3-20 years
—  Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Q)

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete the
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
1(w)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
1(k)(ii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note
1(k)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are
available for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

—  Brand name 20 years
= Computer software 2—10 years
I Cooperation agreement 8 years
—  Customer relationships 10-11 years
= Order backlog 2-6 years
= Patents 5-6 years
=  Technical knowledge 5-10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

(i) Leased assets
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) Asalessee
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(h)
and 1(k)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FEETBE#E

() HEEE®D)
() ERFBAG
(A) BB hE—F—AEEMA

(i) Leased assets (Continued)
() As alessee (Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

(Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property in
"“Property, plant and equipment” and presents lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group. Leases which did not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group were classified as operating
leases, except that land held for own use under
an operating lease, the fair value of which could
not be measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, was accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building was also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease was the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)
() As alessee (Continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

(Continued)

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets were recognised as property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, were recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation was provided at rates
which wrote off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it was
likely the Group would obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(h).
Impairment losses were accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 1(k)
(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
were charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they were incurred.

Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received were recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they were
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FEETHE#E

(j) Leased assets (Continued) () HEEE®)
(i) As alessor (iy fERHEEA

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note 1(u)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases
are classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the group applies the exemption described in
note 1(j)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
() Credit losses from financial instruments, contract

assets and lease receivables
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on the
following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables);

3 contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note
1(m)); and

= lease receivables.

Equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) are
not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

= fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

= lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurements of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

= 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

—  Lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables
and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

() Credit losses from financial instruments, contract

assets and lease receivables (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(u)
(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

®

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

= significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

= the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an

impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

investment properties;

intangible assets;

interest in associates and joint venture; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i

Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(ii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i), and (ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

O

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such sale
or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(m) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(u)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance
with the policy set out in note 1(k)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 1(n)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 1(u)). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
note 1(n)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)
(m) Contract assets and contract liabilities

m

©)

P)

(Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (see note 1(u)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 1(m)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(k)

(D).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs (see note 1(w)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy
set out in note 1(k)(i).

®

Employee benefits

®

@ii)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Share-based payments

Share option scheme and share award scheme
The fair value of share options and awarded shares
granted to employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in employee share-
based compensation reserve within equity. In respect
of share options, the fair value is measured at grant
date using the binomial model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. In respect of awarded shares, the fair value
is based on the closing price at the grant date. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options
and awarded shares, the total estimated fair value of
the share options and awarded shares is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the share options and awarded shares will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 1 FEETBE#E

(r) Employee benefits (Continued) ) EEEFNE
(i) Share-based payments (Continued) (i) ABRGRERIZFHARGE)

Share option scheme and share award scheme
(Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
and awarded shares that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the profit
or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the employee
share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options and awarded
shares that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the employee share-based compensation reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company's shares.

No expense is recognised for share options or awarded
shares that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-
settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon
a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated
as vested irrespective of whether or not the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

The equity amount for the share options is recognised
in the employee share-based compensation reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to accumulated losses).

Shares held for share award scheme

Where the shares of the Company are acquired under the
share award scheme, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented
as “shares held for share award scheme reserve” and
deducted from total equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (Continued)

Shares held for share award scheme (Continued)
When the awarded shares are transferred to the
awardees upon vesting, the related weighted average
costs of the awarded shares vested are credited to
“shares held for share award scheme reserve” and the
related employment costs of the awarded shares vested
are debited to the employee share-based compensation
reserve. The difference between the related weighted
average cost and the related employment costs of the
awarded shares is transferred to accumulated losses.

Where the shares held for share award scheme are
revoked and the revoked shares are disposed of, the
related gain or loss from disposal of revoked shares is
transferred to accumulated losses and not recognised in
profit or loss.

Where cash or non-cash dividend distribution is declared
in respect of the shares held for share award scheme,
such cash dividend or fair value of the non-cash dividend
is transferred to accumulated losses with no gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss.

(s) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

FESHBE®E
(s) FisHi(&®)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(s) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)
(s) Income tax (Continued)

®

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying
products or services are sold. The provision is based on
historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible
outcomes against their associated probabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS
15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing is 12
months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

() Sale of capital equipment and packages and

engineering services fee income

- Sales of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
control over the products which is generally the
point in time when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products. If the products are
a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and/or services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of the
total transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods and services promised under
the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

®

@ii)

(iii)

Sale of capital equipment and packages and

engineering services fee income (Continued)

- Made-to-order construction contfracts
Revenue arising from made-to-order construction
contracts are recognised progressively over time,
with a corresponding contract asset (see note
1(m)), if the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has the right to be paid for work done
to date in case of customer cancellation before the
order was fully completed. Progress is measured
using the cost-to-cost method, i.e. based on the
proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to
the estimated total costs. The contract asset (either
partially or in full) is reclassified to receivables when
the entitlement to payment for that amount has
become unconditional (see note 1(n)).

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customers obtains control over the
products, which generally is when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the products.

- Engineering services fee income
Engineering services fee income is recognised when
the related services are rendered.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 1(k)(i)).

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of the foreign operations are translated into
United States dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into United
States dollars at the closing exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Borrowing costs

)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

)

w

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)
Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the financial statements of the Group and the Company are
concerned are deferred tax assets, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Related parties (Continued)

@)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

(z) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Note 32 contain information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to fair value of financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment,

investment properties and intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation/amortisation charges for the property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and intangible assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and intangible assets of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles. Management will increase the depreciation/
amortisation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(®)

©

Impairment losses on trade debtors and bills
receivables and lease receivables

Loss allowances for trade debtors and bills receivables and
lease receivables are always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which are estimated in accordance with the
Group'’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date. The estimation of ECLs requires the use of
judgement and estimates, where the expectation is different
from the original estimates, such difference will impact
carrying value of trade debtors and bills receivables and lease
receivables and impairment losses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Other impairment losses

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of investments
in subsidiaries, property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, interest in associates and joint venture and
intangible assets may not be recoverable, these assets may
be considered impaired, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets.
The carrying amounts of these assets are reviewed periodically
in order to assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amount may not be
recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and the value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely fair
value less costs of disposal because quoted market prices for
the Group's assets are not readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the assets are
discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of revenue and
amount of operating costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(d) Net realisable value of inventories

©

®

The Group recognises write-down on inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of the inventories. Write-
down is applied to the inventories where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is less
than cost. The determination of net realisable value requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimates, such difference will
impact carrying value of the inventories and write-down on
inventories charged to profit or loss in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for temporary deductible differences and unused tax losses.
As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability
of future taxable profits. Management reassess these estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Additional deferred tax
assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Made-to-order construction contracts

As explained in the accounting policy note 1(u)(i), revenue in
respect of made-to-order construction contracts is recognised
over time or at a point in time depending on a number of
considerations including whether the Group’s performance
creates an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
whether the Group has a right to payment for performance
completed to date in case of customer cancellation. Making
such determination involves judgement about the nature of
the assets created, enforceability of contract terms, and level
of margin that is regarded as sufficiently reasonable given the
circumstances of a particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(f) Made-to-order construction contracts (Continued)

In addition, revenue and profit recognition is dependent on
estimating the total outcome of the contract, as well as the
work done to date. Based on the Group’s recent experience
and the nature of the activity undertaken by the Group, the
Group makes estimates of the point at which it considers the
work is sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete
and revenue can be reliably estimated. Based on the latest
information available in respect of the market environment,
the Group prepares budgets for contracts individually and the
budget, which is used in the Group’s financial reporting, is
reviewed regularly. Onerous contracts are provided for when
identified. Material adjustments to the budgeted costs may
occur in future if there is a significant change in the market
environment.

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the design,
manufacturing, installation and commissioning of capital
equipment and packages on land and offshore rigs; sales
of oilfield expendables and supplies and the provision of
engineering services.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Except for sales of capital equipment of $9,431,000
(2018: $Nil) through finance lease as a manufacturer
lessor in 2019, which is recognised in accordance with
HKFRS 16, Leases, all of the remaining revenue of
$60,815,000 (2018: $58,839,000) for the year ended 31
December 2019 is recognised in accordance with HKFRS
15

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products or service lines is as follows:

2

EEH B R s

®

EFIRER @)

BEAN - e Rom FIERKSE AT R 248
BRIIETEZTKNIE - REAEEN
MHERMARBMETEBNEE - A
SEELGERE - DERITIEEERER
MIBE - BUE AR Z A R M st B AT 58
it c ARBRBEFABSNTSEREER
£ RAEMZERNRE - MZAEAR
AEENTE2H - WEMETERHN - B
HRFAHEBEFHERUE - BREES RN
BRI HEEE - WMISREZFLEEX
28 BERAKSEHEAE -

3 BmEkoWEHE

(a) A

AEETFEXRB AR  ®iE - ZRKRZ
LB AN R M 4 B B vth N e B N BH
JH R R DA B A R AR TAZ AR

(i) WEPDKF

BT - N FEARERLAAR
BREHERNEEARXBEN K
9,431,000 C(ZE—NF : T) (IR
BRI R EERE 165 H ERER
BN 0 EE =S =R 2 =5 —
H L& E 2 Fi A F &4 A 60,815,000
JL(=ZF— )\ & : 58,839,0007T) 7R
B TSRS R B 155 HER o

BEAHWIZEBE RKBREEZ
AT ¢

2019 2018

—E-AF ZE-N\F

UsS$'000 Us$'000

FErx F=7

Sales of capital equipment BARREIHE 39,296 32,724
Sales of expendables and supplies FEM R R & 28,873 24,604
Engineering service fee income TRRBERA 2,077 1,501
70,246 58,839

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (cContinued)
(a) Revenue (Continued)

®

(i

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by geographic markets is disclosed in note 3(b)(iii).

The Group's customer base includes one customer (2018:
Nil) with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue. In 2019, revenues from sales of capital
equipment and packages and oilfield expendables and
supplies to this customer, including sales to entities
which are known to the Group to be under common
control with this customer, amounted to approximately
$10,685,000. Details of concentration of credit risks
arising from customers are set out in note 32(a).

Revenue expected to be recognised in the

future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price related to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts is
$229,597,000 (2018: $236,007,000). This amount
represents revenue expected to be recognised in the
future from pre-completion sales contracts for made-
to-order construction contracts entered into by the
customers with the Group. The Group will recognise
the expected revenue in future when or as the work is
completed, which is expected to occur within the next 12
to 24 months.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its contracts for capital
equipment and expendables and supplies such that the
above information does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it
satisfies the remaining performance obligations under the
contracts for sales of capital equipment and expendables
and supplies that had an original expected duration of
one year or less.

3 WEkaHHEE
(a) WA

0}

(i

Wi (&)
BB MHSEERFEEHKEDN D IF
FAMTEE3(b) (i) FE ©

REENEEHTE BEFRS
SHBBANEBWREMNI0%EE (=
T—\F ) E_T—NF &
BE(BEEASEMAMN  BEFZ
HEZEH O EERIELNEER) HE
BARZBENEBANHBAREM LD
P U #7510,685,0007C ° BF
EENEERR S FBERHNKE
32(a) °

AR ARBRINREBEAHZ
BEEAHNWE

N 22 =R B SR SR 7S
SEREEHNETNRHBEAOREN
R G BI&4E%E /229,597,000 (=&
— \%E : 236,007,0007T) ° % & FA3E
TEHERARERNEBEESEAR
SEITVNEHNEEARMNEES
Wiz - AEEBRBRBRIRET
R TR (FBET i R R 2R 12%
24 A NEEAE) -

AEBEREBMBRELENES
SREN12IRAE A ITRE 2 EAR
BARBREMEMHMEESLN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WKk 7 IPHRE &

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following three reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

—  Capital equipment and  the design, manufacturing,
packages: installation and
commissioning of capital
equipment and packages on
land and offshore rigs

—  Oilfield expendables the manufacturing and
and supplies: trading of oilfield expendables
and supplies
—  Engineering services: the provision of engineering
services

() Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of interest in
associates and joint venture, other financial assets, cash
and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, tax balances
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and provisions attributable to the activities of
the individual segment, with the exception of bank loans,
tax balances and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

®

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“segment results” i.e. “adjusted earnings before finance
costs and taxes” of individual segment. To arrive at
segment results, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for finance costs and items not specifically
attributed to individual segment, such as share of results
of associates and joint venture, directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other head office or corporate income
and expenses.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment results, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
revenue), depreciation and amortisation and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations. Inter-segment revenue is priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for similar
orders.

3 WaEkoBEE@E

(b) AB®/E ()
() DEBEE EERAEGED

WARSHTIR2EZS N EL
AKX HRZE D B RIEHE
ENFEXRBEMEENTHAR
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BHREDE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

() Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 is set out below.

®

3 WERIHHE R
(b) DEHE (@)

DR - ﬁé&ﬁfﬁ(%%’)

BBE_F-NFE_F-N&E+
_H——I—*Eijtiré’]é“ﬁ’“ﬁﬂ&
AN BRAEMAKERSHRITR
EEAERHEBASERE DA
HWER BN TR °

Capital equipment Oilfield expendables Engineering
and packages and supplies services Total
EXRGERER A RAH IRRH &zt
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE | ZEN\E| ZB-AF | 22 N\F | ZB-0F | ZEN\F | ZB-0EF | 2B N\E
US$'000 US$'000|  USS'000|  US$'000|  USS$'000 US$'000|  USS$'000 Us$'000
TER T TR T Tin eI Tin T=r
Revenue from external ~ RENREF
customers KA 39,296 32,724 28,873 24,604 2,077 1,5M 70,246 58,839
Inter-segment revenue AHEBRA 428 525 2,011 2,821 851 890 3,290 4,236
Reportable segment E2HDH
revenue KA 39,724 33,249 30,884 27,425 2,928 2,401 73,536 63,075
Reportable segment E2HHH
results E3 8,233 (15,106) 2,574 (10,216) (751) (1313) 10,056 (26,635)
Depreciation and ERFER
amortisation for the year B 3,563 5,251 1,755 1,887 12 13 5,330 7,151
Impairment losses on n% BER
property, plant and RERE
equipment BB - A - 317 - ~ - 317
Reportable segment E2H5 5
assets B 205,494 187,674 55,965 60,727 3,89 5799 265,355 254,200
Additions to property, plant  FRRENZ »
and equipment during L ES
the year BE 1217 2,078 3 1,102 - 2 1,280 3,180
Reportable segment E2HDH
liabilities 8% (195,553)|  (196,826) (16,359) (30,352) (1,522) (1125)  (213,434)[  (228,303)
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January fE: AKEER-F-h&—A—H
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under KRBT ERNEEREREE
this approach, the comparative information is not restated B iR 2RI E 165 - BRI

(see note 1(c)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved) 3 WKk 7 HWE @)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEHE (&)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) EE2HRIBYA - £&  EERE
results, assets and liabilities B2 EER
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
Us$'000 Us$:000
FEx 2 7
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue &2 W] FHBIA 73,536 63,075
Elimination of inter-segment revenue  ¥f$4%5 ZBE UL A (3,290) (4,236)
Consolidated revenue (note 3(a)) 4R e Wk (FiaE3(@)) 70,246 58,839
Results 4
Segment results DEEE 10,056 (26,635)
Finance costs [ZUR I (1,727) (2,450)
Share of profits of associates SaK(): /N i | 36 1
Share of profit of joint venture PEEE R R Z 5T 3,728 *
Unallocated head office and corporate K7 B4R =5z K 2 Al A K&
income and expenses X (1,796) (2,321)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before B AR S = A (E18)
taxation 10,297 (31,405)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BERDBEE 265,355 254,200
Interest in associates N ANGIIE O =y 307 274
Interest in joint venture RE &R E R 42,514 5
Other financial assets Eith & phE E 326 1,002
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESZED 35,021 19,805
Pledged bank deposits BB ZRITER 1,051 802
Deferred tax assets BEBIHEE 1,755 2,478
Tax recoverable AT E FIE 826 132
Unallocated head office and corporate RO AR R KA A1 B &=
assets 9,023 2,089
Consolidated total assets REBAEMRE 356,178 280,782
Liabilities =Fi
Reportable segment liabilities EE2moyHaE (213,434) (228,303)
Bank loans RITERK (9.184) (17,369)
Tax payable FERT IR (4,191) (4,128)
Deferred tax liabilities REBIEBE - (46)
Unallocated head office and corporate KA AR ER L AR EE
liabilities (8,955) (2,538)
Consolidated total liabilities meBBERE (235,764) (252,384)
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January W : AEEER=ZZE—NLF—HA—A8
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under RAKETEREZERERES
this approach, the comparative information is not restated s mEERF 165 o BIRL
(see note 1(c)). FE - HERBEBEIEETE

(RPFFE())
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(iii) Geographic information

3 WaEKkoBEE@E

(b) HB®/E ()
(i) HEEH

The following table sets out information about the
geographical locations of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, interest in
leasehold land held for own use under operating leases,
intangible assets, interest in associates, interest in joint
venture, other financial asset and non-current portion
of prepayments (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is based on the
location of the customers. The geographical location of
the specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset, in the case of property, plant
and equipment, investment properties and interest in
leasehold land held for own use under operating leases,
the location of the operation to which they are allocated,
in the case of intangible assets, and the location of
operations, in the case of interest in associates and joint
venture, other financial assets and non-current portion of
prepayments.

TRINBERODARERBIAR
PRA - RNVAEENYE - BE
Nkt REWE  RELEEE
FEEANEET R  BFE
E REE2ARRSEQRANE
@ HMEREERIFANSIED 2
BNR(EEIFRBEE]) WM
ENER - BEFMHMEUENER
FMEMNEREE - BEFRBDEE
MBENENEENENNE RE
MGLYE  BEMRE  REDE
EREREHERFERANEEL
wEmmE)  AAORMEEDE
REMGLBTEEM ) RIAEBKH
HAERGIRBE AR RS ERR]
s HttemMEERBENREA
ZIFBNEREE D) -

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMIREFBA EERBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—B-NE | —E-N\F | —B-hE | —BN\F
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 UsS$'000
FTER T FEx F=rx
Hong Kong Special BEBRRTH R
Administrative Region - 7 880 1,148
Mainland China B A 40,615 29,118 45,285 45,299
North America bl 9,562 10,175 1,044 3,590
South America EZES 10,614 11,003 28 32
Europe &M 4,622 5,307 - 200
Singapore Frnig 559 94 2 12
Indonesia ENEE AT 554 48 - =
Middle East R - = 42,514 =
Others HAth 3,720 3,094 15 15
70,246 58,839 89,768 50,296
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 4 HiRZRFHRA
2019 2018
—ZT-hE —ZET-N\EF
US$°000 Us$'000
FEx Sy
Interest income B U A 1,186 175
Finance income from lease receivables T & e R B TS U A 449 =
Rental income e WA 1,004 589
Net foreign exchange loss PE 5 &5 18 (1,287) (860)
Reversal of provision for estimated loss of RIS S A T B RS
incomplete construction contract (note 5(c)) Z 7Bl (P 5E5(c)) 1,602 =
Others HAtb 962 1,030
3,916 934
5 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 5 BRBAERN(&E)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BREAES S (BR)EHNR, G TIE

I8 :
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
US$'000 Us$'000
FER S
(a) Finance costs (a) B #E R AR
Interest on bank loans IRITERAE 1,509 2,448
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 218 2
1,727 2,450
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the iz : AEFEER—_ZE—NE—A—BRALEBE]

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

BWEERER BB ERELERF165E -
RIBUETTE - BHBBEISETES - &

MizE1(c) °
2019 2018
—Z-hEF e
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx ST
(b)  Staff costs® (b) (EEHRE

Contributions to defined contribution )R HEFR IR EIEL A
retirement plans R 2,807 3,564

Equity-settled share-based payment AR ENRMD A
expenses - 114
Salaries, wages and other benefits T& - FREMETR 18,610 17,106
21,417 20,784

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF

T hEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

5 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

5 KRBIADER(BE)®

2019 2018
—E-NEF TR\
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FE=r
(3] Other items Hing
Depreciation charge® (note 10) HEBRO(PTEE10)
— owned property, plant and -BEYE  BER
equipment? B 2,484 3,071
= right-of-use assets" - EREEE" 3,462 3,082
5,946 @153
Cost of inventories® (note 17(b)) RO (HEE17(b))
— Carrying amount of inventories sold -BEEFENKREEAE 45,161 44,796
— Write-down of inventories - FEMUR 181 3,153
45,342 47,949
Total minimum lease payments LA REBER S S ER|E17
for leases previously classified as T AKREHENHEE
operating leases under HKAS 170 2 B (R & R AR ER OO - 2,069
Expenses relating to short-term leases ERARAEE R EMHEER
and other leases with remaining BOBHR=Z—NF+
lease term ending on or before ZA=+—HZRER
31 December 2019¢ ColEEbal 830 =
Amortisation of interest in leasehold REBRGEHEREE D
land held for own use under HE TR
operating leases”” (note 11) BESHOO(BREE1) - 207
Amortisation of intangible assets mREERH
(note 12) (Ffi5E12) 380 1,210
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ B SRR & R R
impairment losses on trade debtors HERKRARENEE
and bills receivables, lease CRER R E),
receivables and contract assets RIEEE
(note 32(a)) (P7E32(a)) 4,177) 2,445
Impairment losses on property, plant ME - WE RFEERE
and equipment (note 10) BB (FiEE10) - 317
Research and development costs MrEKHEEA 3,228 4,883
Net foreign exchange loss ME 5 518 % 5 1,287 860
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEMZE - BB K&
plant and equipment pd 5t VAL &) 523 (56)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HESEARELE 23R
classified as held for sale FEE M= - (13)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R &
— audit services - Z BRI 530 530
— other services — H i AR 75 6 209
Reversal of provision for customer B ERRR R Bmo
claims® (3,030) =
(Reversal of provision)/provision REKEES LHHETERE
for estimated loss of incomplete (B2 #m) /B
construction contract®™ (1,602) 1,602
Gain on settlement of trade payables BBEITMREEE SN
by issue of new shares® RN gl (3,281) =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

5 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The
depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease assets which were
previously included in property, plant and equipment are also identified
as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets
at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise
the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c).

Cost of inventories includes $4,988,000 (2018: $6,859,000) relating
to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses which amount is
also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above
or in note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, a customer of the Group
expressed concerns to the Group for certain products sold with
unsatisfactory quality. Management assessed the possible outcome
of claims and considered that a provision for customer claims
of $3,030,000 was necessary and charged to “Other operating
expenses” in 2017. Having considered the latest communication with
the customer and lapse of time, management considered that, as at
31 December 2019, the provision for customer claims is no longer
necessary. The over-provision of $3,030,000 was credited to profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, provision for estimated
loss of incomplete construction contract of $1,602,000 was charged
to profit or loss and included in “Other operating expenses”.
Management reassessed the expected outcome of the contract as at 31
December 2019 and considered that the provision for estimated loss is
no longer necessary. Consequently, reversal of provision for estimated
loss of $1,602,000 was credited to profit or loss and included in “Other
revenue and net income” for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Pursuant to the deed of settlement dated 29 October 2019 entered
into by the Company and certain of its creditors, the Company agreed
to settle the trade payables to the creditors of $8,767,000 by issuing
122,726,709 ordinary shares of the Company to the creditors’ nominee
at an agreed price of HK$0.56 per share. Upon the issuance of
122,726,709 shares to the creditors’ nominee on 21 November 2019,
the trade payables of $8,767,000 were settled. The share consideration
paid is measured at the quoted market price of the Company on
the share issuance date, at an amount of approximately $5,486,000
rather than the stated consideration of $8,767,000. Therefore, a gain
of $3,281,000 was credited to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2019.

5 BRBiAIER (B8 @)

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

AEBRBEERTEWEVIGEMBE BT BR
SEAFE16H  UFHBER-_F-NF—A—
BMFENER  LERBEREFESER
BRSO BERREEENHERMNERE
BE - AEERERNGAYDE - BEERED
MEHEEENERAETERASEREE
Ee-NR_ZE-NF-A-HEREREREE
Efk > ANREERAEANRERCAEEEN
& URRBEREBANEREERRERL
EHEELENHEERX ZBRE - REBUITA
HBEMIEED - RHFE1O -

FERABRFERENA MERBHEERE
#.24,988,0007T (== —/\4 : 6,859,0007T) °
Z e AR LB RN S EER - X
SEAMTES DM S EZFRX -

BE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE  &&
E—2RFRAASRERETHETERLEET
EREE  EEEWEERRET TG X
RAEFHREM#3,030,000tBNESR -F
—EF[HMEERAT IR - ZREGZAHEER
FREBREBNRYE  ETEERAANR-T—
NE+ZA=1+—H BEFREEZTBEBHSE -
HBRER#53,030,000Cst ABIE =T — N+ =
B=t+—BI-FEmiE2s -

HE_Z-—N\FE+_A=+—HLEE k=
REES LH T EEE 1,602,000t R 1B
BRI AEMEERY - EBEEHTGET
ZAHNR-_ZT-AE+-_A=+—ANTEHE
R URATBREZR AT BEELDRE -
It (hETES IR B 2 B E1,602,000T 5t A B
Yt ABE_T—NAF+_A=+—HILEE
HME b s BRI ©

BEARAREEETERATVMNABRA=S
—NEFETAZTILANEERZE  AREIRE
BBEHEERTRRM.568TREEAN
RIBAZEITARRAR122,726,7090 L BA% » bAKS
HEMNEREAZE S EMNFIBLS,767,0007T ©
RIBE-NF+—A-+—BREEANKE
ANBE1T122,726,70908 /%D 1% - B BB RIAE
8,767,000 tE&H - ENRMARBHIEAR
AIRNIRMHD BT BT TS ERTE - @A
/5,486,000 M FEA) E (K (E8,767,0007T °
I+ W2£3,281,000 it ABE=ZE—NF+=
A=+—HIFEMHEE -

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
—TE-NEFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 ZEBTZRAWNFER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (o) KEBERANBIEE -
or loss represents:
2019 2018
—E-AEF ZE-N\F
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FER F=T
Current tax BIHA® 1R
Provision for the year FRNEE
~ The People’s Republic of China - HEAREME(HE]
(the “PRC") enterprise income tax ETSH 253 171
— Overseas corporation income tax — BIMEEFRISH 289 103
542 274
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFERERE (211) (721)
331 (447)
Deferred tax EEBE
Origination of temporary differences EETREEEE(MEE27(0)
(note 27(b)) 648 10,828
979 10,381

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
current and prior years.

No provision for the United States corporate income tax has
been made as the Group has no taxable profits subject to the
United States corporate income tax for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

Taxation for subsidiaries in other jurisdictions is charged at
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in relevant
jurisdictions. During the year, certain PRC subsidiaries are
subject to tax at a reduced rate of 15% (2018: 15%) under
the relevant PRC tax rules and regulations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 HmEBIXRANAFESH®
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) HIEXHEZERABEFENEEG
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax R (BB WH RSO T
rates:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)\F
UsS$'000 US$'000
FER T
Profit/(loss) before taxation MRS F (E518) 10,297 (31,405)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before BRELADE R, (BB MR
taxation, calculated at the rates TIE RSB RAER
applicable to profits/losses in the wA ERE AN R E
jurisdictions concerned 2,129 (6,166)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT HUR 2 RO T 7 = 2 1,025 BASIO
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEERIMA T 5o 2 (216) (101)
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax RS B IE K A R B A R B
reductions in the PRC (865) (732)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERAEATIBEER
recognised Mg 2 768 3,610
Tax effect of other temporary differences 7R HEFRE b BF | = BB A9 B 75
not recognised e (1,172) 191
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax fE AR FE AR ERA AL A
losses not recognised in prior years R EN R E (479) (259)
Reversal of deferred tax assets recognised 8 [B1 74 & A & JZ fE 3R MO I XE 7 8
in prior years BE - 11,440
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBBEEE 211) (721)
Actual tax expense BERHIBX N 979 10,381

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group assessed
and considered that it was not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses and deductible temporary
differences could be utilised would be available in the relevant
tax jurisdictions and entities where deferred tax assets have
been recognised in prior years. Consequently, deferred tax
assets of $11,440,000 had been reversed and charged to
profit or loss in 2018. No such reversal of deferred tax assets
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2019.

REBEE=ZF2 - NFF=H=F—BFE
o AREBEFHERERE  HRBEFERE
RIBEFRIBEAE + BT KATRER FERAFL TS
AlEREIR R B B B A R R B AR I LA
HEENERTEREER - At BERH
BEE 11,440,000t ER =T — \F &L
RREzER REE-_T—NLF+=A
=+—HLFE  BEBRRECHEEE
B[ o

FHEMSLRN EERERA T
T hEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

7

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation

are as follows:

7 EEM=

I

BIBEEARAGOIE3S3MNERARI(KREE
ENBERDROIE2HNBEENEETMFEN

Salaries, allowances and  Retirement scheme
Directors' fees benefits in kind contributions Total
ik e 2HRENAE BARGEIMR @t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
B-0E | ZE\E | IBAE | ZE\F | 2B | ZB0\F | 2B | B
US$'000 US$'000 |  USS$'000 US$'000 |  USS$'000 US$'000 | USS$'000 US$'000
TEn SE TEn AT TEn R TEn TEL
Executive directors: YrES:
Mr Wang Hongyuan (appointed ~ EStBLA(R-Z—\F
on 9 February 2018 and ZRNBEZER=F
resigned on 19 February 2020) —ZE= A THAE) - g - S - Z - N
Mr Zhang Menggui REELE - 3 333 337 3 34 340
Mr Jiang Bing Hua BRELE - < 297 311 1 3 308 314
MrWang Yong (resignedon ~ EBRAR=ZE—-\F
9 February 2018) ZRANBE) - = - 27 - 1 - 28
Mr Yang Guohui (appointed on B EBEE(R=F—\&F
9February 2018 and resigned A NLAEZRERA =
on 1 April 2018) - \FMA—-AEE) - x - T - o - =
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE:
directors:
Mr Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny BRRELE 15 2 - ¥ - = 15 2
Mr Zou Zhendong (appointed on - PHER £ ER=E—\F
18 May 2018) nRATN\REZH) 15 10 - > - = 15 10
Mr Chen Weidong (appointed on  BEETR £ (RS- &
5 June 2018) ~ALREZA) 15 9 - & - G 15 9
Mr Guan Zhichuan (resigned on BN EERZZF—N\E
18 May 2018) AATNBEED) - 4 - = - = - 4
DrLu Xiaoming (resignedon ~ EEBEL(A=F—N\E
18 May 2018) A T/\REHE) - 6 - - - - - 6
Mr Sun Dongchang (appointed ~ EREEE(R=F-—NE
on 12 November 2019) +—A+-REZ) 2 = - = - o 2 3
Non-executive directors: FHUTES
Mr Jiang Longsheng (resigned on e £ (R=F—\E
9 February 2018) ZRANBEf) - 4 - = - = - 4
Mr Brian Chang (resigned on Brian Chang’t &
9 February 2018) (R=F-N\FZANA
BHT) - 2 - = - = - 2
Mr Wang Jianzhong FRMEE 15 15 - - - = 15 15
Ms Li Rong (appointed on FRET(M=T-N\F
9February 2018 and resigned ~ — ANAEZER
on 7 December 2018) —E-\E+=-AtH
B - 3 - o - - - 2
Mr Lou Dongyang (appointed on ~ ERFGEE(R=F—\E
1 April 2018) MA—REZf) - = - 3 - = - »
Ms Fu Rui (appointed on EHaT(R=F—n%
1 June 2019) ~A—BEER) - . - - - = - 1
Mr Qian Zewei (appointed o~ SFEEEE(R=F-NE
1 October 2019) TA-REZf) - 5 - 5 - v - ¥
62 72 630 675 19 1 m 754
Note: MsE
(i)  Mr. Cong Yongjian was appointed as an executive director on 19 () RZZEZZTFE_A+NB BXREEEZE

February 2020. RAITES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M IERRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2018:
two, excluding a former executive director who resigned from the
position on 9 February 2018) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect
of the other three (2018: three, including the former executive
director) individuals are as follows:

8

REHAL

AEBRNSERHALF @ MEZ(CE—/\F
Wi PEER-_ZE—N\FE-ANLBEETHN—
ZRERITES) AME R F7HRENES -
SHESR=N(CZE—NF : = - BEAEHR
TER)EaF ATHISEEEFBOT ¢

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —ZE-NEF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx =
Salaries and other emoluments S & E AL & 568 710
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEI R 19 40
587 750
The emoluments of the three (2018: three) individuals with the Z=M(ZBE—N\F: Z)RaFALTHHE
highest emoluments are within the following bands: NFLATEE :
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
HK$1,000,001 = HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 2 1,500,000 7t 1 .
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0013% 7t 2,000,000 7 2 3

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF

T hEEH

179



180

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

9 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $9,701,000 (2018: loss of $41,358,000)
and the weighted average number of 2,802,656,000 (2018:
1,386,131,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year
excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Group, calculated

9 BREF(BR)
(0) BRESEF/(KR)

BRERNER (BB IEARRZBER
A% 2 A% 2R FE (& £19,701,000 T (=& — N\
£ : [51841,358,000T) M FREETE
AR (TEEAEEEEN LT BR) /M
#EF15%02,802,656,00008 (= F — )\ 4 ¢
1,386,131,0000%) 5t & « IRETEMAT :

as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares LB R AR F 19 B
2019 2018
—e-nE|  —E )&
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BREETEER 1,473,156 707,120
Effect of purchase of shares held for share & B #51ER (5 2B 81 &9 AR 5 &Y
award scheme TE (20,216) (5,095)
Effect of issue of new shares BRI E 1,349,716 683,426
Effect of share options exercised TR E - 680
Weighted average number of ordinary RTZA=+—HANTEER
shares at 31 December INET 5 8 2,802,656 1,386,131
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b) SRBHERF (F18)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share equals to basic earnings/(loss) RBHBERETEIIBESBER  SEE

per share for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
because there were no potential ordinary shares outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M IERRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

10 9% - BERRBUARRKRENE

(o) BEEZHE

Land and
buildings Office
held for Other  equipment,
ownuse properties furiture
carried  leased for and  Plantand Leasehold  Motor Investment
atcost  ownuse fixtures machinery improvements vehices  Sub-total properties Total
SRR BOERE -
BAkiE,  AMER  GARER HELES
THREe  HEEE RE HEREZ % hE M RENE #;
USS'000  USS'000 US§'000  US$'000 USS'000 USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS000
Tin  fEn Tin  Tin Tin Tin  TEn fEm fEn
Cost: A
At 1 January 2018 RZE-)\5-A-A 32439 3 12,020 2,09 1468 2000 70,046 9,530 79576
Exchange adjustments ERHR (1.908) = (384) (1,037) (15 (76 (342) (290) (3.710)
Additions hE 704 5 49 2,057 418 106 3719 3 3719
Transferred from investment properties  SXA & 4485 = = - = - 4485 (4.485) =
Disposals ik (54) 7 (931) (1223) G 0 N (W58 ) 3 (2.259)
At31 December 2018 R-B-)\E
+ZA=t-H 35,666 - 11,199 21,3% 1871 2000 72,632 4,75 71,381
At31 December 2018 RB-)\E
+-A=1-H 35,666 5 11,199 21,3% 18712000 72,632 4,755 71,387
Impact o inital application of BAERBRNBASE
HKERS 16 (Note) Z168N7E ) 535 4538 . 5 e - 98
At 1 January 2019 R-E-NE-A-H 41,011 4,538 11,199 2189 1871 2000 82515 4,755 87,210
xchange adjustments ER AR (345) 70 (17) (175) ¥ 0B (3% (1) (379)
Additions hE - - 109 1,084 29 104 1,326 - 1,326
Disposals = (439) - (2478) (645) (1) (148)  (3780) - (3.780)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
=R =g 40,227 4,608 8,817 22,160 1862 2049 79723 414 84,431
Accumulated depreciationand ~ EitEREESE:
impairment losses:
At1 January 2018 R=2-\5-A-H 8,136 3 7,509 11311 350 1540 28846 1373 30219
Exchange adjustments EjAR (552) g (327) (451) -G8 (1389 (68 (1456)
Charge for the year Emzi 2653 - 1,760 1,089 91 572 o 6,153
Impairment losses REEE : 5 317 5 = . 317 S 317
Transferred from investment properties B AEER 474 3 = = 2 = 474 (74) =
Wiitten back on disposals EhE @) ; (b66)  (1,208) B G0 (199 - (1,989)
At31 December 2018 RE-)\E
+-A=1-A 10,669 = 8593 10,741 26 1583 3012 1,252 33,264
At31 December 2018 RE-N\E
T-A=1-A 10,669 g 8593 10741 6 1583 3012 1,252 33264
Impact on nita application of ERERERGBASEY
HKFRS 16 (Note) S1me a0z 1315 ; = i z 515 ~ 1315
At lanuary 2019 i g 11,984 - 853 10,741 06 158 BT 1B 3450
Fxchange adjustments Ereg (144) 5 ) (85) p£ I I (1) (13) (138)
Charge for the year Epgi 2216 1,036 931 1,209 157 181 573% 20 5,946
Written back on disposals HEREE (231 - (1077) (528) () () (2209 - 208
At31 December 2019 RENE
t+2A=1-A 13,825 1,041 8,444 11,337 24 1803 36734 1449 38,183
Net book value: REFE:
At31 December 2019 RE-nE
tZA=1-A 26,402 3,567 EJE] 10823 1578 46 42,989 3,265 46,254
At31 December 2018 RE-\&
=R = i El 2,997 3 2,606 11,155 145 47 40620 3503 413
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFPS 16 using the modified P ?’Kﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁu@@a@%%mgﬂgfﬁ%
retrospectriJve method éng%d'usted the openingg balance at 1 g@%ﬁ&%;ﬁﬁj% 165 - - ﬁ%éﬁ(‘:
Jaﬂuahry 2019 to recoglnlseI rlg.ft.s-é)f-use asse%_s rel?tlng to Iecej\se ﬁhﬁ%fﬁ ﬁ?% ;ﬁiﬁﬁéﬂaﬂ”ﬁ 7%&%
\QVK'IACS 1V%/e£geprz(€;\tlle0‘lu(sc)y ClassitTiea as operating leases under gﬁgﬁ@%ﬁ)ﬂ@f E*ﬁ Bﬁ E,MEFH 1:2%\{
o BFTEE1(C) -

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The Group has submitted applications for the issue of
property ownership certificate in respect of buildings
held for own use carried at cost of $1,579,000 (2018:
$1,811,000) to the relevant PRC government authorities.
At 31 December 2019, the certificate has not yet been
issued.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the use of a
premise of the Group has been changed from leasing out
for rental income to owner-occupation. The premise with
carrying amount of $4,011,000 was transferred from
investment properties to property, plant and equipment
at the date of the end of leasing out for rental income.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
assessed that the carrying amounts of certain idle
equipment under the operating segment of oilfield
expendables and supplies may not be recoverable. As a
result, an impairment loss of $317,000 was recognised to
reduce the carrying amount of these equipment to their
recoverable amount of $1,367,000.

The estimates of recoverable amount were based
on these equipment’s fair value less cost of disposal,
using market approach, with reference to the recent
transactions of comparable assets and adjusted for the
estimated cost of disposal. The fair value on which the
recoverable amount is based on is categorised as a Level
3 measurement. These equipment were disposed of
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The above impairment losses were recognised in “Other
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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RNEBE S BFFHER A& 281,579,000
JT(=Z—/)\%F : 1,811,0007T) 7Bk
ZIEF  MABTREBTEERR
EREMEMEREEE - RZZT— N
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FREIERIAE &AW E - Bt - BE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties

0]

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's investment properties (recognised at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses)
disclosed at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

= Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

= Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

10 ¥%  BERREUARKRENE®

(b) REME 2 AFEE

®

DFER 5

TREJNNAKER RS RHRRL
FEERREZREMERKARR
ST ERREBEER) ZATE
PRR=BAFERR(EERER
BB MELERNE1RA FESE) °
NFEF 22 KT 2R HEM
FrEmBANTBEREREE T
EEMT

- FAFHE - EERFE AR
AFtEZRAFE  BENER
HERNEEL R EREED
SR REFHERE

- EA&FME - ERAZE-fKEBA
SRR AYE - AELERS
— WA EBEERBA  RRER
BETAERBA - TAEBRE
BARTIZEE T ANEA

- FZAFME ERBETHE
RBAGEZATE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

10 ¥  BERRXREURBRENE @)

(b) BEWES ATE B

DVERR ()

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2019 categorised into

R=Z-h&+=R=+-H

DAFEFEPEE
Fair value at
31 December
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-B-h#F
t=AH
=+-—H
AVE E— -t E=R
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TER TER TER
Recurring fair value KEMATETE
measurement
Investment properties: REME
- Mainland China - RE A 5,215 - - 5,215
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2018 categorised into
W=
ATEHESRE
Fair value at
31 December
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZT—N\F
+-A
Ear—[E
NSE] E—8 FE_ FEZR
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
T FET = T
Recurring fair value KEMATENE
measurement
Investment properties: REME
= Mainland China - RE N 5,260 = P 5,260

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value

10 V% - BERRBEBURKRENE ®)

(b) BEME> AFEHRE

(i) EAF=QRLTEFEZER

measurements
Valuation Unobservable
techniques input Range
fHE R % TRBEREA gE
Investment properties KEYZE
Commercial [EES Income approach Rental per square $18.8
metre
~ Mainland China — R E A &7~ FEHRMEE 18.87T
B1&
Capitalsation rate 6%
BARfE 6%

The fair value of commercial investment properties
located in the Mainland China is determined using
income approach by reference to rental income of
comparable properties on a price per square metre basis.
The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
rental rate and negatively correlated to the capitalisation
rate.

The valuation of the investment properties was carried
out by an independent valuer, which has staff who hold
recognised and relevant professional qualification and
have experience in the location and category of the
investment properties being valued.

RPBEAREEERENEZ R FE
2RBEBF I ANEREETLR
MEZHESRAER RS AETE -
AFEFERMESA EEERRE
REENMcEREREMBERIE

BREMENGET BB ERE
T HEIRBERTRABER
B YEMBEREMERNBIE
8 NIRRT AR

FHEMSLRN EERERA T
T hEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 10 Y% - BERREURBRENE @
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(c) Right-of-use assets (c) EAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by REERMNS ML AEEENREFE
class of underlying asset is as follows: mE
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-AEF ZE-NF
+=B=+—H — =I5
Note US$'000 Us$'000
P 5 FEx F=T
Ownership interests in leasehold land 3R #E $ Ak 51 BR 2 i EE
and buildings held for own use, RHEE T RIEF A
carried at depreciated cost, with i - RSB A10E
remaining lease term of 10-50 years 504 (i) 26,402 29,027
Other properties leased for own use, AN AN FIBR 2 FAE 51
carried at depreciated cost B Rz By (i) 3,567 4,538
Plant, machinery and equipment, REER AT R 2 R
carried at depreciated cost HES K 5 - 88
29,969 33,653
Ownership interests in leasehold REHA TR 2R E
investment property, carried at WEWEZ A EER
depreciated cost, with remaining FIertHEA A 10Z2 504
lease term of 10-50 years 3,265 3,503
33,234 37,156
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised

10 V% - BERRBEBURKREDNE®)

(c) EREEEE)
HEESTRIANEERRNHEBERED

in profit or loss is as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-AEF = STk
(Note)
(PR 3E)
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FErx Tz
Depreciation/amortisation charge of REERANEONFEREEE
right-of-use assets by class of BITE BB
underlying asset:
Ownership interests in leasehold land and ~ AHE Tt MIEF 2 B
buildings fEx 2,216 2,653
Ownership interests in leasehold investment A ERE Y 2 FiB gz
property 210 421
Interest in leasehold land held for own use RIEBKEHEREFERNES
under operating lease TR - 207
Other properties leased for own use HERRE A EMYE 1,036 =
Plant, machinery and equipment RE - Hes Rk - 8
3,462 3,289
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) HEH /RS FaE5a) 218 2
Expense relating to short-term leases and ~ EAgp NHHEIE T — L&
other leases with remaining lease term +=—A=+—H=xZAER
ending on or before 31 December 2019 FREEBEERAMEE
BHNER 830 o
Total minimum lease payments for leases LA IR IEE B @1 BIFE 1757
previously classified as operating leases DEAKERENHEE
under HKAS 17 REHEENREE - 2,069

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. The depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease
assets which were previously included in property, plant and
equipment is also identified as a right-of-use asset. After initial
recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group
as a lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-
use assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

Rl

AEBERBRETEPENRERE
BB REERE 165 - LRAER -
T-NF—H - BRNFEIEER - LA
RBERBEEBSALAUNFE17HRD
BhAKEHENHERRNERESR
E - REESERFTAYE  BEK
RENBAEEEENERAEIE
RECHAEEE - R-_F—N5—A
—HEREREREEER  ~5E
EREBAREREREEERE
UABR R 38 £ 7O TH EA O DA B AR VA E R AR
BREEHEEENEER ZBUR
RBUT A - LBRERLESS - B
i EE1(c) ©

FHEMSLRN EERERA T
T hEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 21(c) and 26,
respectively.

() Ownership interests in leasehold land and

buildings held for own use

The Group holds several industrial buildings where its
manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The Group
is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the whole or part of undivided share in the
underlying land. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire these property interests from their previous
registered owners, and there are no ongoing payments
to be made under the terms of the land lease, other than
payments based on rateable values set by the relevant
government authorities. These payments vary from time
to time and are payable to the relevant government
authorities.

(ii) Other properties leased for own use
The Group has obtained the right to use other properties
as its office premises and warehouses through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 2 to 10 years.

(d) Assets leased out under operating leases
The Group leases out investment properties and plant and
machinery under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 3 to 10 years, with an option to renew the
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes variable lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating

10 ¥%  BERRKEUARRENR#E

(c) EAEEE®E)
HERSRHABNFELAEAENE
BR 272 BB I 5E21(0)F026 °

®

@i

REFEEAHEELHREFZHE
R

AEBBEFEETIXET  HHEE
REEZURZFLERT - A%
BAzEYFEEDS(BHEHER L
2 E D RO BN NELHER
A REBRHEBEAERTRTYE
a2 R EFEE —RENK - BRR
AR 12 48 B IR A4 18 R E B JE AR A
HEETONR - LERE L
HEGRREEETHONR - ZFN
KA ARARE - e T 18R
Bt o

HERARBE ANEMYE
AEECRBEAERBESERAL
Y ENE R RGP R R B
Mo HEBRERH2E10%F °

(d) EEAEETHAE2EE
ARER SRR EE SR AL RS
RS REHE RS AN=FE T
£ REEETRREE - TS G
SR EFHE - FAEEL RS S
AERH -

TR LM E 2 R B E N B

leases are receivable as follows: N
2019 2018
—E-NF —FT-N\%F
US$'000 Us$'000
FER FErx
Within 1 year 1A 926 502
After 1 year but within 2 years 152245 668 479
After 2 years but within 3 years 2FE3F 350 247
After 3 years but within 4 years 3E4F 245 247
After 4 years but within 5 years 4ESE 245 247
After 5 years 5 937 1,192
3,371 2,914
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

INTEREST IN LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR OWN

11 REKEHERFERNEE L

USE UNDER OPERATING LEASES =
US$'000
FE5x
Cost: AN :
At 1 January 2018 R=ZE—\F—H—H 9,102
Exchange adjustments PE (317)
Transferred to non-current assets classified as HESHSBERFELEZ
held for sale EmBEE (3,440)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-—NF+ZA=+—H 5,345
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\FE+=ZA=+—H 5,345
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 (Note) FER BB SRS RIS 1650 2 2 (Fisk) (5,345)
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF-—A—BE=ZZE—NF
T=EET=F =
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 January 2018 R=2-N\F—A—H 1,550
Exchange adjustments ME H 5 (74)
Charge for the year FRZ M 207
Transferred to non-current assets classified as HEES BB ENEZIERBEE
held for sale (368)
At 31 December 2018 IN=2E=\ESF = BE B 1,315
At 31 December 2018 e \EERE R = JRsE 1,315
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 (Note) FERB AN B HREERZE 1698 2 & (MFh) (1,315)
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF-—A—BERZZE-AHF
e Fl = e gl o
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 December 2019 RZEBE-—AF+-H=+—8 -
At 31 December 2018 e N\ e = S 4,030

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified BT

retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. As a result,
the interest in leasehold land held for own use under operating leases
was reclassified to property, plant and equipment. See note 1(c).

The cost of interest in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases located in the PRC is amortised over the lease term
of not more than 50 years on a straight-line basis.

RNEBD BB EIAE R ERE S
BHREENF 1KY AR —NF—F—
Bz BaEs  UERANEREESSTE
A7 R AKETHE HENBRER
B At  BELCEHEREEANEET
WHESWER S EADE BMERSE - &
FisE1(c) °

REBEEHERIFERNESE L (NP E)
RSP AN Z B R E R N BB 50F M & F 1

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
—TE-NEFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 EFEEE

190

Technical  Customer Order Computer Brand Cooperation
knowledge relationships backlog Patents  software name agreement Total
EGE
H& EFHE AxHIE g7 BERH  GRER AFEE @zt
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Uss$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TEn G Txn TEn Tin Txn TEn Txn
Cost; A
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\F
5= 1) 714 9,640 4,706 2,621 912 660 365 26,045
Exchange adjustments ERREEES (329) (534) (58) (135) (39) = = (1,095)
At 31 December 2018 RIZ-N\E
T A=l 6,812 9,106 4,648 2,486 873 660 365 24,950
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hE-A
=5 6,812 9,106 4,648 2,486 873 660 365 24,950
Exchange adjustments EHAE 153 B3) 38 (21) (12) - - 155
Additions HE - - - - 307 - - 307
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-hE
1ot ) = [ 6,965 9,103 4,686 2,465 1,168 660 365 25,412
Accumulated amortisation Rt K {EE
and impairment losses: -
At 1 January 2018 R_Z-N\F
=Jl= 18 6,943 8,556 4,706 2439 756 660 365 24,425
Exchange adjustments EHRE (329) (521) (58) (131) (28) = = (1,067)
Charge for the year ERTiH 170 873 = 127 40 = = 1210
At 31 December 2018 RIZ-N\E
A = e 6,784 8,908 4,648 2,435 768 660 365 24,568
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hE
=)= 6,784 8,908 4,648 2,435 768 660 365 24,568
Exchange adjustments EHAE 152 3) 38 (21) 9) - - 157
Charge for the year ERXH 29 198 - 51 102 - - 380
At 31 December 2019 RZZ2-h%
+-A=t-H 6,965 9,103 4,686 2,465 861 660 365 25,105
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-h%
TEREE - - - - 307 - - 307
At 31 December 2018 RIZ-N\E
+=A=+-A 28 198 p 51 105 = 5 382
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other operating REENB BT LB AGEEmR AL
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. FZIA °

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

13 RTB AR 2R
TREFHHAEENEE SELREAE
FENHBATERY - BRBAFIBPEN - A
AN RDBR AL B -

Proportion of
ownership interest

FrE R LAl
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of  Group’s
establishment issued and effective Held by a
Name of company and operation paid up capital  interest subsidiary Principal activity
AR BB LR BEITR FEE -HNE FTEXK
R BERENFE BERER OLRES
Emer International Limited Hong Kong 2,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding, trading of rig
shares equipment and provision of rig
turnkey solutions
REERARAR BB 2,000,0008% B {7 100% 100% REZ - BB EHRE KR
EREATR

TSC Qil and Gas Services PRC $29,400,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and trading of
Group Holdings Ltd oilfield expendables and
("TSC (Qingdao)”)#* supplies

BERAREERBEERD T H 29,400,000 100% 100% SUER B Em AN R
BRAR(TSC(ES)))™*

TSC-HHCT (Xian) Control PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and trading of rig
Technologies Limited electrical control system
(“TSC- HHCT")#

BRI (AR EHRME R i AR#50,000,0007T 100% 100% HHiEkEFEHREZERR
A A ([TSC-HHCT])#*

TSC Manufacturing and Supply, United States of $28,529,900 100% 100% Trading of rig equipment and
LLC ("TSC M&S") America (“USA") oilfield expendables and

supplies and provision of rig
turnkey solutions

TSC Manufacturing and Supply, ~ =E([EH ) 28,529,9007T 100% 100% B B EMERE Rom B RN Rk
LLC ([TSC M&S)) RirHERABR AR

Qingdao TSC Offshore Equipment  PRC $46,999,970 100% 100% Manufacturing and trading of rig
Co., Ltd. (“TSCOE")* equipment and provision of rig

turnkey solutions

BERARBFAMEERRAR HE 46,999,9707T 100% 100% EE N EFEMRE MR HtER

([TSCOE])*

BENE

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
—TE-NEFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 RMIE D Bz Rz (5

Proportion of
ownership interest

PR R R L
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of  Group's
establishment issued and effective Held by a
Name of company and operation paid up capital interest subsidiary Principal activity
AR EB SR BETK FEE -HNE TEXK
e E BERENFE BERERZ LRES
Zhengzhou TSC Offshore PRC RMB32,400,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and trading of rig
Equipment Co., Ltd. (“ZZOE")* equipment
HMREBFOHEEERRR AR#32,400,0007T 100% 100% SLEREBERRE
(Tzzoe))*
TSC Offshore China Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Trading of rig equipment and
("TSC China")** oilfield expendables
IERTSCEFARERBERAR  H AR10,000,0007T 100% 100% BB EERME Nom A FEM
(TTSC Chinal)#*
NN Petroleum Engineering (HK) Hong Kong 16,450,000 shares 79% 100% Trading of oilfield expendables
Co., Limited (“NN Petroleum”) and supplies and provision of
engineering services
HEAmIREEE)ARAR e 16,450,0000% i {5 79% 100% EEMFEM RO ER{TE
(TFaraAH ) AR 7%
TSC Offshore (UK) Limited United Kingdom 73,074,952 100% 100% Investment holding
("TSCUK") shares of
0.025 GBP each
TSC Offshore (UK) Limited HE 73,074,952f% 100% 100% &R
(TTSCUKJ) SMRME(E0.025
EHHEERH
TSC Engineering Limited United Kingdom GBP1 100% 100% Design and manufacturing of
mechanical handling
equipment, trading of oilfield
expendables and supplies and
provision of engineering services
TSC Engineering Limited HifF 138 100% 100% et REERMEIESE  BEE

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M IERRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

13 RKE 2R 2 Em @)

Proportion of
ownership interest

*

PR R R L
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of  Group's
establishment issued and effective Held by a
Name of company and operation paid up capital  interest subsidiary Principal activity
NCIEE R BETK FEE —HNE TEXK
e E BERENFE BEREZ LRES
TSC Offshore Pte. Limited Singapore 2 shares of 100% 100% Trading of rig equipment and
1 Singapore Dollar oilfield expendables and
(SG$) each supplies and provision of
engineering services
TSC Offshore Pte. Limited HT I 2R EREE 100% 100% B & # R4 Kom RN RH
1T I3R 7T PA R AR 4t T A2 AR 75
(sl
B (R
TSC Offshore Corporation USA $6,100 100% 100% Design and manufacturing of rig
equipment
TSC Offshore Corporation EJE0 6,1007C 100% 100% &%t K BEHEE R
TSC Offshore Limiteda Brazil Brazil Real 100% 100% Trading of oilfield expendables
1,800,000 and supplies and provision of
engineering services
TSC Offshore Limiteda Ef 1,800,000F T/ 100% 100% & & BN KRR RIRHE
TER%
Alliance Offshore Drilling Singapore $100,000 100% 100% Provision of rig turnkey solutions
Pte Limited
Alliance Offshore Drilling Pte IR 100,0007T 100% 100% REEHEEHR

Limited

Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment enterprises

Unofficial English translation

RIEBFEAREM R BEREDE
BT B

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
—TE-NEFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 13 AMtE AR 2= @)
The following table lists out the information relating to NN NTERNERRBEBASEE —HEFEAE
Petroleum, a subsidiary of the Group which has material non- TR CFEEAM o NIMMBEERBER
controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised financial information RAAlZ EEHATC &5 ©
presented below represents the amounts before any inter-company
elimination.
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)N\F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx S
NCI percentage eIk B L 21% 21%
Current assets mENE B 4,497 6,564
Non-current assets ERBEE 523 540
Current liabilities mENEE (3.642) (4,515)
Net assets BEFE 1,378 2,589
Carrying amount of NC| R S 2 BRE (B 289 544
Revenue & 400 991
Loss for the year FEFE (1,192) (789)
Total comprehensive income 2HNEREE (1,211) (808)
Loss allocated to NCI A E IR S 2 1B (250) (166)
Dividend paid to NCI B IR AR 2 - 5
Cash flows from operating activities RELEHEBRE 2B EN (518) 215
Cash flows from investing activities KREREEBZREN - 3
Cash flows from financing activities BMEXB2EER (15) (42)
14 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 14 REE D EIER
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEr F=rx
Share of net assets Frib & E 307 274
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

14 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 14 REBE QTN ER @
The following list contains the particulars of the associates, which TRF| LS ATREEE BERIELMESE
are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not B AmSREATIA :
available:

Proportion of
ownership interest

B EER LAl
Place of Particulars of  Group’s
Form of business  establishment issued and effective Held by a
Name of associate structure and business paid up capital  interest subsidiary Principal activity
ERARBRE AKE -—-HHE
BENTER ES LSS B K& RANZEE BREZ QFBE TEEK
Guangzhou Interstellar Offshore ~ Establishment PRC RMB5,000,000 25% 25% Professional technical services
Engineering Co., Ltd i A AR 25% 25% EERTRE
5,000,0007T
HREKEDHRKRERDLA  Establshment PRC RMB2,000,000 30% 30% Manufacturing and trading of
machinery parts
i FE ARE 30% 30% BERBEERM ST
2,000,0007C
The above associates are accounted for using the equity method in LA LB & N AR AR R G SRR TR
the consolidated financial statements and do not have a significant WABAEENEE R BARRABERENF
impact on the Group’s results and financial position. The share of Z - REBE_T-NFTA=T—HEFE
profits from their continuing operations and total comprehensive B OERERBECLEE R AR EAE R
income during the year ended 31 December 2019 are $36,000 A9 Bl A&36,0007C (ZZ — )\ F : 1,00070) K&
(2018: $1,000) and loss of $3,000 (2018: $16,000), respectively. 83,0007 (==& —/\4 : 16,0007T) °
15 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE 15 REEQRINER
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FErR F=x
Share of net assets DIEFEE 42,514 =
Amount due to joint venture (included in EREERARFEGAESEMN X
trade and other payables (note 23)) H i B A RE (BT 5E23)) (6,000) =

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF 'I 95
—TE-NEFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

15 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

(a) Details of the Group's interest in the joint venture, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

(a) &

[

15 REEQTINER &)

SERFEEPBRRIIFZAEER
N

BERRMESFBLL

Proportion of

ownership interest

FrE R LBl
Name of joint venture Form of business  Place of Particulars of ~ Group’s Held by a Principal activity
structure incorporation issued and paid effective subsidiary
and business up capital  interest
RENRER SBERES LA L BRTRENR AKE HELE FEXHR
REXHH Exf ERER RAER
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Incorporated The British Virgin $100,000,000 50% 50% Leasing and trading of
Limited Islands jack-up drilling rigs
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises 22V EEERES 100,000,0007% 50% 50% MEBARNERTFE
Limited
Wealthy Marvel Enterprses Limited is a joint venture of the Wealthy Marvel Enterprses Limited /3745
Group with its controlling shareholder, and the only joint N BAE R R & E AR - EE’K%
venture in which the Group participates. It is an unlisted -2ENSGENA c HR—RIFLTR
corporate entity whose quoted market price is not available. AIEEE - MERMIHES -

(i) Subscription of shares in the joint venture

Pursuant to the Subscription and Joint Venture
Agreement dated 23 November 2018 entered into
between Alliance Offshore Group Ltd., (“AOG", a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company), China Merchants &
Great Wall Ocean Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.) (“the
Fund”, the controlling shareholder of the Company)
and the Fund’s then wholly owned subsidiary, Wealthy
Marvel Enterprises Limited (“the JV”, a fellow subsidiary
of the Company), AOG conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, and the Fund will procure the JV to allot and issue,
50,000,000 shares of $1.00 each, representing 50%
of the enlarged issued share capital of the JV after
the completion of the Subscription and Joint Venture
Agreement, at a total subscription price of $50 million.
In addition, the Fund conditionally agreed to contribute
two units of self-elevating drilling unit (“the Rig Assets”)
to the JV at the total consideration of $150 million,
out of which $50 million will be satisfied by the JV by
the allotment and issue of 49,999,999 shares of $1.00
each to the Fund, which together with the one share of
$1.00 each owned by the Fund will represent 50% of
the enlarged share capital of the JV after the completion
of the Subscription and Joint Venture Agreement, and
the balance of the consideration of $100 million will be
satisfied by a shareholder’s loan to be advanced by the
Fund to the JV. The $100 million shareholder’s loan from
the Fund bears interest at a rate of 5.5% per annum and
is repayable in August 2022.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

() WBAEATRE

iR #&Alliance Offshore Group Ltd.
(TAOG] ' RARIZEEMWBAR]) -
China Merchants & Great Wall Ocean
Strategy & Technology Fund (L.P.)
([ZE2]  ARAIZERBRR) &
ZE S E Rz 2 AN B A Bl Wealthy
Marvel Enterprises Limited([ & & %
¥ AXRBIZRAZMB AR
MABHRA-_Z—N\F+—A=+=
HHREREEEEHZE  AOGH
BREREZRBEMZESHRES S
b 2 fig 2 & #1750,000,000 % & J%
HE1.00T2&H (BHEREERE
RAREBREELEHRETHEOL
BAEBITRAZ50%) @ BREBE
#50,000,0007T ° 4N - ZESE
KHEREREEDEEAMEF I
NEHFE(EBHREE]D  BREAR
150,000,0007T, * & 950,000,000
HHEEECEXERAMZESERER
%%1749,999,999% F A% HI{&E 1.007T 2
R ARNEN - ERZESE
B2 —BRERMEET.00TTZRG
HERGELENRREREELE
W& TR EREEARAE FEITRAZ
50% * MR {E£R%E100,000,0007T #
HZESRAECERNIRREE
MER - ZE S #A9100,000,000
TZBRRERIEFHES 5% EH
ER=ZE_—F)\AEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

15 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (continued)
(a) (Continued)

®

(i

Subscription of shares in the joint venture
(Continued)

From January to June 2019, AOG paid up $37 million
capital in cash to the JV. Capital contribution of $7
million was set off against dividend income from the
JV at the same amount during 2019 and the remaining
balance of $6 million has been included in the “amount
due to joint venture”. The Fund transferred the entire
issued share capital of Well Target Five Limited and Well
Target Six Limited to the JV at the total consideration
of $150 million. Both Well Target Five Limited and Well
Target Six Limited were formed for the sole purpose of
holding registered title to the respective Rig Asset. As of
the date of completion, each of Well Target Five Limited
and Well Target Six Limited had a bareboat charter
agreement in place with an independent third party
charter for the respective Rig Assets.

The JV became a 50% owned joint venture of the Group
in January 2019.

Sale and purchase of another two units of self-
elevating drilling units

Pursuant to two memorandum of agreements dated 21
February 2019, the JV agreed to sell two self-elevating
drilling units (the “Vessels”) to two of the subsidiaries of
Shelf Drilling, Ltd (“Shelf Drilling”, a listed company on
the Oslo Stock Exchange and an independent third party)
at a total consideration of $174 million.

On the same date, the JV entered into another
two subscription agreements with Wealthy Marvel
International Limited (“WMI"”, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Fund and a fellow subsidiary of the Company)
and Shelf Drilling whereby the JV and WMI agreed to
subscribe a total of 3,692,308 shares and 23,076,922
shares of Shelf Drilling at a consideration of $24 million
and $150 million respectively. The consideration payable
by the JV to Shelf Drilling will be set off against the
consideration payable by the subsidiaries of Shelf Drilling
to the JV arising from the sale of the above-mentioned
Vessels. The consideration payable by the Fund will be
settled in cash.

15 RE&EATINER &)

(a) #&)

®

i)

WEEEARRKRE (E)

Z—NFEF—AZE/"A ' AOGH
gﬁ¥§zﬁ737§%ﬁiﬁi\ 78
ELERALEUNR=_ZT—NFEE
ERERGHREBAREBERERE
3 - &ﬁﬁ?E’JGEEfEE#)\HTE
NEBRRNIE] - ZEESEREE
m%iqaﬁWell Target Five Limited &%
Well Target Six LimitedZ 232 2%
IIRZA - #8X{E/150,000,0007T °
Well Target Five Limited 2 Well Target
Six Limited DERFAE S EEKE
EZaEMEREmMASL - BETKH
B - Well Target Five Limited & Well
Target Six LimitedEE—Z B E=H
HMAPRINE EBMREETE —

>//
kl\

S

o e s b A e
BEEER-_ZT-NFE-HAXA/R
%%EESO%% VRERE -
BEZIMEAANEHTE
REBHSE_F-HAF_A_+
—EIE’UEWN%%M%EM LA Sk

%@ Z [ Shelf Drilling * Ltd([Shelf
Drilling] » —RRBHEZ SR S5 A
ETHARIAEABYE =)™
XMBRRIEEMA B AR EHF
a(EATE])  BRERI174EE
T

RE—BH - &=&dFEWealthy
Marvel International Limited([WWMI] -
ZESHEZEMB AT RARTIH
7] Z [} & 2 B]) X Shelf Drillingz] 32 5
SN REE - Bl 6EDE
BEWMIRE D BIA248 &7t X% 150
BETHRESD I HEFTREShelf
Drilling#93,692,308% }223,076,922
I o & & {3 FEmShelf Drilling
SATERAE G EShelf DrillingAy Bt &
/‘ﬂ?fﬁ%itfg#ﬂ‘%‘\ﬁﬁﬁgmé
EEEINMRERE ZESE
MEOREBHUNB ST -

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
— T NFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

15 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued) REE QTN ER @)
(a) (Continued) (a) (#&)

(i) Sale and purchase of another two units of self- BEEZ/IMEEARNEHTEGE)

elevating drilling units (Continued)

Subsequently, the JV obtained the Vessels from China
Merchants Industry Holdings Company Limited (“CMIH",
a limited partner of the Fund) through the Fund's
partnership arrangement with CMIH at a consideration
of $150 million. The JV would also pay CMIH a success
fee of $10 million upon acceptance of the Vessels by the
subsidiaries of Shelf Drilling. The sale of the Vessels and
the share subscriptions were completed in May 2019.

The JV has recognised the associated revenue (on
a net basis) and profit from the above transactions
at approximately $6 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The share consideration received is
measured at the quoted market price of Shelf Drilling

Hiz 68 bXBRAZESHER
FRIEEBEARAR(BERI
| ZESZEREEBANNER
THERARIEESERTS -
REABISOEETT - EEETHR
Shelf DrillingHf{ /& 2~ 7] 5g W B HF &
BRABERIESZM10BBITHIK
NE  -BHFALHERROAEE
RZZE—NFRATK °

AELEERRBE-T-AST
SASt—BLEFE RS0
EEONGE TP DI P
W EIBORS {1 B EAShelf Drilling#4 52
REMNTHRES RO RI6E

on the completion date, at an amount of approximately JT MAAHARE24EETHE °
$16 million rather than the stated consideration of $24
million.

(b) Summarised financial information of Wealthy Marvel (b) Wealthy Marvel Enterprises LimitedZ B4 7
ERBEERer RN ENEEELY
AR REGEMBRRPNERESEZ
HERBEENT

Enterprises Limited, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

2019
—ZT-hE
US$°000
FER
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited
Current assets BN EE 28,331
Non-current assets ERBEE 162,562
Current liabilities mEaE (5.865)
Non-current liabilities EmEBE (100,000)
Equity e 85,028
Included in the above assets and liabilities: i EEREBERE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEY 6,932

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

15 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 15 REERRINER B

(b) (Continued) (b) (#&)
2019
ZE-hEF
UsS$'000
FERT
Revenue e 16,607
Profit from continuing operations and profit FRE LS5 T R & i 7
for the year 7,456
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 mE i (8,428)
Total comprehensive income 2R ELARE (972)
Dividend declared by Wealthy Marvel Enterprises ~ Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited
Limited EA=Ji =) 14,000
Included in the above profit: EiEF B E
Depreciation and amortisation e R (3.438)
Interest income AEIA 163
Interest expense AR (4,008)
Income tax expense PS5t 7 S -
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in AE&EERWealthy Marvel Enterprises
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited Limited 2 Bz ¥ BR
Gross amounts of Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited 2
Limited’s net assets BEFEERE 85,028
Group's effective interest REE 2 B 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEEER RHS 42,514

(©) ERAELEQARRBRUALLEARLE
ZRERER D B EER - 28 MERERE

interest-free and repayable on demand. B2

(c) The amount due to joint venture represented the remaining
committed capital contribution to the JV and is unsecured,

FHEMSLRN EERERA T
T hEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

16 Attt EREE

2019 2018
—E-NF T\
Us$'000 Us$'000
FER F=T
Equity securities designated at FVOCI EEREAFEFTAEAM
(non- recycling) EHIKENBRAE S
(GE&IE)
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE ETRIRAE 5 326 1,002

The listed equity securities are shares in Persta Resources Inc., a company
incorporated in Canada and engaged in petroleum and natural gas
production. The Group designated this investment as financial asset at FVOCI
(non-recycling), as the investment is held for strategic purposes. No dividends
were received on this investment during the year (2018: $Nil).

Fair value measurement of equity securities
Fair value hierarchy

BN % & A Persta Resources Inc.Hf% {5 * Persta
Resources Inc. &—FRMERFMKZH AR - S
EHRRRRAEEER - ANZBERFEHEERN - &
EEEZREETAEATESAEMZEAKENE
BEEGESE) - FA - HENZREREERRE
(—B—N\%F: B -

BRAF"S 2 A FEFTE
DFERE

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2019 categorised into

R-ZB-hFE+=ZA=+—H

AT EHESEE
Fair value at
31 December
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=ZB-NF
+=A
=t+—8H

AFE F—® EHR E=R
USs$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000
FEx FEx FEx FEx

Recurring fair value BEMRNTEGTE
measurement
Equity securities designated 8 E AR A FERT
at FVOCI (non-recycling): AEMEERE
B AR AR 75 75
(GESIEE)
- Listed in Hong Kong -RBEBLT

326 326 - -

2 0 0 CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M IERRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Fair value measurement of equity securities
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

16 HittSmEE @)
RAEES 2N FEFEE

DR ERE ()

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2018 categorised into
REZE-NF+=HA=+—8
AFEFENREE
Fair value at
31 December
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=ZT—\F
+=A
=R,
NEE FE— =<l B=H
US$'000 Us$'000 US$’'000 US$'000
FEx FET F=T F=T

Recurring fair value KEMAFEFE
measurement
Equity securities designated at FVOCI  $55& A& AFET
(non-recycling) AE M2
MR AN B 5
(GEZlH) :
— Listed in Hong Kong -REE LM

1,002 1,002 B T

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

REBEZE-_ZE-NFT+_A=+—HBFEF " &
—REE R EMEER  KEBHE=R -
AEBZERDNBERRAFERIZER
3% A B A AR o

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
—TE-NEFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

17 INVENTORIES 17 78
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of

financial position comprise:

(@) BAMBRREH T EEIE

2019 2018

—E-hE|  —T-AE

US$°000 US$'000

FEx STt

Raw materials A 4,678 3,285
Work in progress fEEMm 126,598 125,387
Finished goods EERK fn 17,752 17,272
149,028 145,944

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

(b) ERZSMTLAENEBRNEES

recognised as an expense and included in EOMMT :
profit or loss is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E—N\F
UsS$’000 Us$'000
FER F=
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFENREE 45,161 44,796
Write-down of inventories 17 &MU 181 3,153
45,342 47,949
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 ESEWR HAEWFRIE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NEF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx F=r
Trade debtors and bills receivables B 5 W R R R R R & 103,986 107,099
Less: loss allowance W SRR (61,032) (65,795)
42,954 41,304
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits H A EWFKTE BN ZE N IZE 15,517 15,457

Notes receivables carried at amortised cost  FEUXZE 1R AR S5 5 7 I AR B i U
and related interest receivables A 251 AR 6,413 =
64,884 56,761
Less: Non-current portion of prepayments R SERNEAEE 2 RS K (60) (485)
64,824 56,276

Except for the prepayments of $60,000 (2018: $485,000) as at
31 December 2019, all of the other receivables, prepayments and
deposits are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year.

2 0 2 CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

All of the trade debtors and bills receivables from contracts with
customers within this scope of HKFRS 15.

Notes receivables of $6,413,000 as at 31 December 2019 are
interests-bearing at 5.3% per annum and due in June 2020.

Except for prepayments and deposits of $9,507,000 (2018:
$10,496,000) as at 31 December 2019, all of the trade and other
receivables are classified as financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and bills
receivables (net of loss allowance) with the following ageing analysis
as of the end of the reporting period:

18 ESZEKKR EEE

N IE (&
i B S EBGRIE R EWEIE BN E S 5HR
HERFISHRBERNNEREZS G LIFIAE -

R-ZZE—NE+=-_A=+—8H * 6,413,0007C/E
WEBIRFERR5 3%t B RN T _TFEXA
ZI|H -

BR=ZZF-—NF+-_A=+—HZBEMNFEK
% \ﬁ9,507,0007z<ff-ﬂ¢ : 10,496,000
To)ON - B B SRR H A EWCRIEE D R
REEKATENSREE °

ARiR 2 AT

RBEPRREER - BEEE S BRI EAME
WRIA N E 5 8 KRR K e W AR R B & 18
BE) < REATMAT

2019 2018

—E-NF =t

US$'000 US$'000

FEx SFESTE

Current LT 15,093 12,779

Less than 1 month past due AR —1EA 4,889 2,313

More than 1 month but within 3 months mE—==1@A

past due 3,085 4,704
More than 3 months but within 12 months  #BHIZA=EABLR+ (@A

past due 7,700 5,100

More than 12 months past due mEZE N+ =EA 12,187 16,408

Amounts past due A S 27,861 28,525

42,954 41,304

The credit terms offered by the Group to its customers differ with
each product/service. The credit terms offered to customers of
oilfield expendables and supplies and engineering services are
normally 30 to 90 days. The credit terms offered to customers of
capital equipment and packages are negotiated on a case-by-case
basis. Deposits ranging from 10% to 30% of the contract sum are
usually required. The balance of 60% to 85% would be payable
in 1 to 2 months after delivery and acceptance of products. The
remaining 5% to 10% of the contract sum represents the retention
money and is payable within up to 18 months after delivery of the
products or 1 year after completion of the onsite testing, whichever
is earlier.

AEEMERFRENGEEHEER RET
[® A TR o i EFEM RZE R TRREH
ERERENEER KR AB30E90K - MEAR
BERBEHEFPERNEEBHANRERIBER
%Pﬁ:ﬁ *ﬂﬁztj:)l B ,\q$§E’|O°A):¢30%E}]uT
& ENEBRERE - %@¢m%i%%%
AR—EMEAAZN GHSREBTH5%
Z10%BREBE - Fﬁﬁimémmmﬂﬁ@
REMAFRZ —FUUAREEBE) NI o

EHEREE ml?ﬂﬁ?“ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ Gl
T-NEER

203



204

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

19 LEASE RECEIVABLES

The Group leases out certain equipment under finance leases
expiring in 3 years. In addition, at the end of the lease term the
underlying equipment will be transferred to the lessee. None of
these leases includes variable payments.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of

19 AEEYK
AEEAZFHREREHAETRE - 1t
5h - REEERRE - MR EREET AR

A HEREHTBE TR -

TRINFAEEBERUKNHEAROAT

The amount due from Katy International Inc., which is classified
as financial assets measured at amortised cost, is unsecured, non-
interest-bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms.
Mr Zhang Menggui and Mr Jiang Bing Hua are directors of the
Company and each of them has a 50% beneficial interest in Katy
International Inc..

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

the Group's lease receivables at the end of the current reporting S HVEBR
period:
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-REF —E-NF
+=A=+—H —B=E
US$'000 Us$'000
FErx F=1
Within 1 year 1A 4,673 131
After 1 year but within 2 years 1224 4,273 131
After 2 years but within 3 years 2E3F 3,377 131
After 3 years but within 4 years 3E4F - 85
12,323 426
Less: total future interest income W AR RABTF SN (2,656) (21)
9,667 405
Less: loss allowance on lease receivables B HE R EIERE (62) =
9,605 405
Less: non-current portion of lease receivables 5 : & B K IEREZBH (6,044) (120)
3,561 285
20 AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY 20 Bl —EEAEE D BIFKIE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
US$’000 Us$'000
FErx F=x
Katy International Inc.: Katy International Inc. :
Balance at 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRI+ZA=+—H#&%#% 101 101
Maximum balance outstanding during FAxmAEREER
the year 101 101
FEUKaty International Inc.ZUIE (5 48 A 35

KA EMEMEE) AERR  RSREEE
BRY  REEAEREFELAERARAE
= - D RI#EBKaty International Inc.F950% & 25

iR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M IERRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

21 RERBESEEY
(@) BERBESENEE

2019 2018

—E-hF el VAR

Us$'000 Us$'000

FEx ST

Cash at bank and on hand IRIT M FEERS 35,021 19,805

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

(b) MEXBELE ZRBYR

TRHALAEEREXRBELCABE
B ERASRIRSED - BEXKE
Er 8BRAEREIRKRSRE MR
AEEGERERERTOERRERS

in the Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows ZRERIBE-
from financing activities.
Bank loans Lease liabilities Total
RITER HEAE a5t
(Note 25) (Note 26)
(BfFsF25) (Bff 5 26)
US$'000 Us$'000 US$°000
FE5x FEx FEx
At 1 January 2018 R=2-N\F¥-—HF—H 61,922 & 61,922
Changes from financing ReRMEZ2
cash flows
Proceeds from new bank loans ¥ EKRITERFTE
HIA 5,606 T 5,606
Repayment of bank loans EEIRITER (49,486) = (49,486)
Capital element of finance EffREHERES 2
lease rentals paid =N r (15) (15)
Interest paid 2RFE (2,041) = (2,041)
(45,921) (15) (45,936)
Other changes Hith & 5
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) A 25 32 (fi 5E5(a)) 2,448 2 2,450
New finance leases TR R EHEE = 98 98
2,448 100 2,548
Exchange adjustments E 5 % (1,080) (4) (1,084)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N\&F
F=E=ET=E 17,369 81 17,450

FHEMSLRN EERERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

21 RERBELEEYE)

financing activities (Continued)

(b) MEEBEL > 8 HYEE)

Bank loans Lease liabilities Total
RITER HEAE a5t
(Note 25) (Note 26)
(FftzE25) (Ff¥=¥26)
Us$’000 US$’000 Us$'000
SPEow e SEESn
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZ—N\F
F=EEF=T 17,369 81 17,450
Impact on initial application of  FEREH B I #5528
HKFRS 16 (Note) FE165% 2 2 (M) = 4,943 4,943
At 1 January 2019 S e el 17,369 5,024 22,393
Changes from financing RERMEZRE
cash flows
Proceeds from new bank loans ~ #ESRITERE
RIE 5,068 = 5,068
Repayment of bank loans BERIFITER (13,177) = (13,177)
Capital element of lease rentals RSS2
paid BARE D = (1,152) (1,152)
Interest element of lease rentals BEfHEHR S 2
paid M EZ D a3 (218) (218)
Interest paid BRFIE (1,571) = (1,571)
(9,680) (1,370) (11,050)
Other change Hith & 5
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) 8 X (f5E5(a)) 1,509 218 1,727
Exchange adjustments ELAR (14) 66 52
At 31 December 2019 R=-ZE-I%F
T=E=ar— 9,184 3,938 13,122
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified Mizk : AEBERBLEITEHEIERNER

retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.

See notes 1(c).

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

BEMBREENF16RL AR _F
—NE-A-BZHNER - AER
NERBEBEAERENTRDER
REHE HAERBBEERE - AW

FE1(0) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M IERRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

21 RERBEFED @

(C) *H.EIR%I)IL ;':H :‘i@%ﬁ

Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement for FAEHERERERTEENSEREN
leases comprise the following: AN
2019 2018
ZE-NF T N\F
(Note)
()
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FE=rx
Within operating cash flows KEBEERE 830 2,069
Within financing cash flows BMERESME 1,370 15
2,200 2,084
Note: As explained in the note to note 21(b), the adoption of HKFRS BIEE :  BAPHEE21(0) R B EERTIL - FRAEE
16 introduces a change in classification of cash flows of certain S mELRE 165 5| AR HEE T
rentals paid on leases. The comparative amounts have not been ETHeNBReRESENES - b
restated. REFRAREL o
These amounts relate to the following: ZEREEN T RIBEM
2019 2018
—E-hE =N
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FERT FET
Lease rentals paid EfEERS 2,200 2,084

(d) Major non-cash transactions
(i) In November 2019, the Company allotted 122,726,709
shares to a supplier for the settlement of trade payables
of $8,767,000 (see notes 5(c)(v) and 31(b)(iv)).

(i) In September 2019, Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited,
the joint venture, declared dividend of $14,000,000, of
which $7,000,000 was attributable to the Group. The
dividend income from the joint venture of $7,000,000
was set off against the Group’s unpaid capital
contribution to the joint venture.

(d) TEXRERH

(i)

(ii)

RZZE-—NFE+—A  AEEM—
G RERE AL 3£122,726, 7098 B 19
LA E B 5 e 5IES,767,0007T (R,
B EE5(c)(v) K23 1(b)(iv)) °

RZZE—-—NENLA - &% QA
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited
FIRAE 14,000,000 @ HAF
7,000,000TCFBRALE - KB A
&N R F AR B U A 7,000,000t B 3K
HAEBRBNHNHEEE AT
= o

EHEBSF mﬁﬂﬁ}""ﬂ’iﬁﬁﬁ" A
T NFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

22 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD 22 PHEABELHENERBEE

FOR SALE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group committed
to a plan to sell certain interest in leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases in Qingdao, the PRC, within the capital
equipment and packages and oilfield expendables and supplies
segments. In the opinion of the directors, the disposal of these
assets was expected to be completed within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period.

As a result, the assets with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB20,282,000 (equivalent to US$3,072,000) had been classified
as non-current assets classified as held for sale during the prior
year. No impairment losses have been recognised prior to this
classification as the carrying amount of these assets was lower than
the respective fair value less cost to sell. These assets remained
undisposed as at 31 December 2019 and the balance has been re-
translated to $2,911,000 (2018: $2,936,000) in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note 1(v) as at 31 December 2019.

BE-T-\F+-A=t+—RILEE A%
EAENEAREREDLER LB Ry
BRI E S TR B S S AT E T
ARHBE L BRSNS BEFRA - 2E
B E TSR s Bk AR s+ — A
2B -

At - AR E A R%20,282,0007T (HHE R
3,072,000 D) MEER L FLEARBELE
MIERDEE - AR ZFTEEMNRAEBERR
ZEMATERBEENE @ RILERZDE
AERREEE #E-_T—NAE+-A=
+—HB ZEBEENAREE BR=ZT—AN
F+-A=+—HHBRBEREMHFIVAHE
SHECR EHEHR 42,911,000 (22— \F :
2,936,0007T) °

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 ESENGREMENSKIE
2019 2018
—E-hF —T—N\F
US$'000 Us$'000
FERx St
Trade creditors and bills payables B SR RIERENEE 175,093 188,833
Other payables and accrued charges H i E AT 501 R RETF X 8,324 12,483
Amount due to joint venture (note 15(c)) FERTE &2 BIRE (B EE15(c) 6,000 =
189,417 201,316

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or repayable on demand.

All of the trade and other payables are classified as financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 23 BESREMGREMENSRIE®R
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RWER BSENRERERERGIAE
creditors and bills payables (which are included in trade and other Z I R H A PR 5B 1R B R B I BRER D AT
payables), based on invoice date, is as follows: W
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)\F
UsS$'000 US$'000
FER T35
Within 1 month —f@A R 160,767 163,591
More than 1 month but within 3 months BRA—EAER=EANR 3,745 3,900
More than 3 months but within 12 months B8 =1E AER+ =& AR 4,742 5,194
More than 12 months but within 24 months @+ @A ER —+MH@EA R 2,615 3,308
More than 24 months #E3% — +ra{E A 3,224 12,840
175,093 188,833
24 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 24 SHNEEREGHNEE
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets (o) EHEE
2019 2018
—E-NE —T-)N\F
US$'000 US$'000
FErx F=r
Contract assets BREE
Made-to-order construction contracts TEHIEEE L
— Arising from performance under made- — JB177E #l A LT
to- order construction contracts EBE4E 1,268 240} 72
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of HHERNANEESRAZEN —MRINK
contract assets recognised are disclosed in note 18. All contract R EE 184558 - TREAFT B & NEE K
assets are expected to be recovered within one year. R—FAE o

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
—TE-NEFFER
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e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

24 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contract liabilities

(b) BHEE

24 EHEERGHNEG®)

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —T-)\F
Note UsS$'000 US$'000
FE FEr SHEEIE
Contract liabilities EHEE
Billings in advance of performance BITEBHIRAIAE (ii) 29,034 29,444

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are disclosed in note 18.

The amount of revenue recognised in the year ended
31 December 2019 that was included in the contract
liability balance at 1 January 2019 was $1,731,000 (2018:
$3,021,000).

The amount of billings in advance of performance expected
to be recognised as income after more than one year is
$24,066,000 (2018: $24,349,000).

25 BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2019, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

HREANBNABSRATEN—RER
TR EE 184K B -

FARZE—NF—A—BHAYAEBES
BREE—E—NE+t—_HA=+—HIF
EERNNZEEEA1,731,000L (= —
J\%E : 3,021,0007T) °

FEHE R B B — U EERBREHNEIT
EIEHIRAI & E ©58/524,066,0007T (=
ZT— \4F : 24,349,0007T) °

25 RITER

R=F-NFET--A=+—R8  REERER

AT EARR AR -
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FER F=T
Within 1 year or on demand 1FAFIZEKER 5,023 10,277
After 1 year but within 2 years 1224 3,013 4,776
After 2 years but within 5 years PSS = 1,148 2,316
4,161 7,092
9,184 17,369

At 31 December 2019, the bank loans were secured as follows:

RZZE—NFTZA=+—8H  RITEFHEN

BT

2019 2018
—E-NF =T - E
Us$'000 Us$'000
FER ST

Bank loans RITER
- secured - HE R 9,184 13,606
- unsecured — IR - 3,763
9,184 17,369
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25 BANK LOANS (continued)

(a)

(b)

The bank loans carried interest at rates ranging from 5.00% to
5.46% per annum (2018: 4.57% to 5.46% per annum) and
were secured/guaranteed by:

(i) Lands and buildings and plant and machinery with
aggregate net book value of $18,884,000 (2018: interest
in leasehold land held for own use under operating
leases, buildings, inventories, trade receivables and
plant and machinery with aggregate net book value of
$19,694,000).

(i) Corporate guarantees given by the Company to the
extent of banking facilities outstanding of $2,153,000
(2018: $3,619,000) as at 31 December 2019.

Certain bank loans of the Group are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to statement of financial position ratios
of certain subsidiaries, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. The drawn down loan
balances would become payable on demand if the covenants
are breached. The Group regularly monitors its compliance
with these covenants. Further details of the Group's
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 32(b). As at 31
December 2019, none of the covenants relating to the Group’s
bank loans had been breached.

Bank loans of $3,619,000 outstanding as at 31 December
2018 which the Group did not meet certain covenants had
been fully settled during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company issued two HK$ denominated unsecured
notes with principal amounts of HK$144,000,000 and
HK$73,000,000 on 3 October 2014 and 25 November 2014
respectively. The unsecured notes beared interest at 5% per
annum and were repayable on a quarterly basis in arrears. The
effective interest rates of the unsecured notes were 8.6% and
8.5% per annum respectively. The unsecured notes had been
fully repaid during the year ended 31 December 2018.

25 RITER®)

(a)

(b)

RITEFIRFFZ5.00%E5.46%(—F—
J\E : FFRL457%ZFE5.46%)515 0 W
AT PR -

() LH - BFEREEREREDFE
4A%E 518,884,000 (ZZ— )\ F :
BELEHEREEANEE L
#m - EFGFEH- BHREKFE
REE RS2 REFEBELESE
7/%19,694,0007T) °

(@) &S 7 mA E = amar = 5| S
—HARAEERTREFLES
2,153,000 A RIER (ZE—N
£ :3,619,0007T) °

AEBETRITERAZAHETHER
AR R L KR EITEARR -
ZERNNEMBBNEELHTER
R WERRL - BIR IR E KA
ARERER - AEREEYEEELTET
HERY - FEAKERBESAREE
ZE—FRHBERME20) c R=F— 1
Ft+-A=t—R AKEALEEREM
RITERE L -

R-_E—N\E+_A=+—BAEEXH
BETHAR3,619,000 K EZRTE
RERBE-_ZT—NFE+=-_A=+—HL
FEBHLEE -

ARBIR—_E—WME+A=ZAR=_F—
WME+—A=-+HB DRI TR
B ILETEAR£58/5144,000,000/%8 T &
73,000,000/ 7T 2 EE IR o MIXIF R
BREFRS%:TE  WEARSZHARE
BRR - BERERCEEFNES A
8.6%K85% REBE=ZT—N\F+=AH
T—BEEY BERAZREBHRE

a1
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26 LEASE LIABILITIES 26 HEAE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRIIFRAEEREES BN AR RE AR E—3k
the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the current and previous HEHRERBEZE BN BREERF 1652
reporting periods and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16: HEIBR T & 4 EARR -
31 December 2019 1 January 2019 (Note) 31 December 2018 (Note)
T e i o e ]
R-E-AF+=A=+-H R=F-n&F—A—B ) (Pl =E)
Present value Present value Present value
of the lease Total lease of the lease Total lease of the lease Total lease
payments payments payments payments payments payments
HEMREE HESRLE | BEMFCE HEAHREE HBENFRE BEMHES
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TER TER eI T=n T T
Within 1 year —FR 1,124 1,296 1,088 1,309 18 22
After 1 year but within 1226
2 years 889 1,015 1,137 1,309 19 22
After 2 years but within 2254
5 years 1,925 2,251 2,799 3,238 44 47
2,814 3,266 3,936 4,547 63 69
3,938 4,562 5,024 5,856 81 91
Less: total future interest 35 : AKFI &
expenses Fx s (624) (832) (10)
Present value of lease HERREREA
obligations 3,938 5,024 81
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified MisE : AEEFEBLETRPEVRERTBYE
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 WEERFE 165 - WABR_Z—NFE—A
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were —HEFEVER  UERBERBEES S
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. These liabilities ERIFN TR EREEHENHEEEMNAE
have been aggregated with the brought forward balances relating to EafE - ZFEEEEEHLISBREE
leases previously classified as finance leases. Comparative information THENHENSEEEHRNE - RZT—N\F
as at 31 December 2018 has not been restated and relates solely to +TZA=+t—HOLRERWESS - BE
leases previously classified as finance leases. Further details on the AR EARMERENHERE - BB
impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 1(c). EERANEREEF16HNTENE—

BRI ©
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

27 REMBRRRANFED

(Q) BABIHRE T HEEHIEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\FE
US$'000 Us$:000
FER =75
Provision for the year FARE 542 274
Provisional income tax paid EREEMREH (66) (150)
476 124
Balance of income tax provision relating to & 838 & E A FTEH
prior years B 2,889 3,872
3,365 3,996
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E—N\F
US$°000 US$'000
FEx SE=r
Reconciliation to the consolidated FEMBEMRREROEER
statement of financial position:
Tax recoverable AT [ 756 18 (826) (132)
Tax payable FERIBIIE 4,191 4,128
3,365 3,996
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27 ZRERBRRERANAES @
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERANWEERREERKE :
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised %%%éﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ}ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&i@%@}ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ(ﬁ
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the &)/ BEMEKEBERFREEHWT :

movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances  Impairment
in excess losses Write-down Unrealised
of related  on trade on Intangible profits on Lease
depreciation receivables inventories assets  Tax losses inventories receivables Total
BA EZEN
BREN  SERE FERER

hERR BR HEME EVEE HEER mh  BEEW At
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Tin e S Tin i S Tin i

Deferred tax arising  REMTEE i

from: 125
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\§-A
=g 270 (3,250) (3,430) 259 (6,823) (415) v (13,389)
Exchange adjustments [ 5§ = 70 57 2 2 2 = 129

(Credited)/ charged to T A)/HK#B%

profit or loss (note (PizE6(a))

6(a)) (270) 2,023 2,514 211 6,821 (49) = 10,828
At31 December 2018 R=Z—/\F

and 1January 2019  TZA=+—H

E=E-NE
~iSE = (1,157) (859) 46 5 (462) = (2,432)
Exchange adjustments & 3 s - 5 7 - - - (3) 9
Charged/(credited) to 415 /(s A)
profit or loss B
(note 6(a)) (F326(a)) - 142 69 (46) - 216 267 648
At31 December 2019 R=F—-AF+=
B=+-A - (1,010) (783) - - (246) 264 (1,775)
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

27 GZEMBRRERANFAEHR @

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERANELEHBEEREE | (@)
(Continued)
2019 2018
—E-AEF ZE-)N\F
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FERT F=x
Reconciliation to the consolidated RE ISR R AV E AR
statement of financial position:
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the — B FAR L R AER Z IELE TR E
statement of financial position BESE (1,775) (2,478)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in R R TR ER ZIELETE
the statement of financial position AEFE - 46
(1,775) (2,432)

At 31 December 2019, the Group had temporary
differences arising from undistributed profits of subsidiaries
of $44,138,000 (2018: $42,386,000). No provision for
deferred tax liabilities have been made as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses and other temporary differences of
$219,489,000 (2018: $229,399,000) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. Except for tax loss of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries of
$42,458,000 (2018: $47,681,000) which will expire within five
years, the tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

RIZB-NAFE+-A=+—H  ~&EHK
BRAZADRGEMEEZ EREERS
44,138,0007T (=& — )\ £ : 42,386,000
7o) ° ARARBEHZENEB A R 2k
BERRADREAENBRBEKAIED
M A - B LR AR IR B fE
o

F
e
8

EFEBMzHMERAEZ#R R E H
M E c TAAEARRERT &
R A S AT (B A 2 B IE S 1B - iR
SEYWERN 2 HIEEE R TR
ME%E219,489,000 L (=& — )\ 4F :
229,399,0007) FERIEEFIIBE E © IRIE
WMITHBHAG - BRASEFBENE A A
BT 75 E538 42,458,000 7T (—F — )\ 4 ¢
47,681,00070) A AFREMIN - B
BRI AR -

e
A
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28

29

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the municipal and provincial governments for its
employees in the PRC. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement plans at rates ranging from 20% to 25% of the
eligible employees’ salaries.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group also operates defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes for all qualifying employees in jurisdictions other than the
PRC and Hong Kong with contributions to the schemes at 3% —
10% of the gross salaries.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of the
employees’ retirement and other post-retirement benefits other
than the contributions described above.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(a) Share Award Plan
Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the shareholders on 16
January 2015 and 31 Octorber 2019 (“Adoption Date of Share
Award Scheme”), the Company has adopted a share award
scheme (“Share Award Plan”).

The purpose of the Share Award Plan is to recognise and
reward the contribution of the Eligible Persons (as defined
below) to the growth and development of the Group through
an award of the Group’s shares. The Share Award Plan
shall be subject to the administration of the administrative
committee in accordance with the rules of the Share Award
Plan (“Administrative Committee”). A trustee (“the Trustee”)
is appointed by the board of directors (“the Board”) to
independently manage the Share Award Plan and declared in
the trust deed entered into between the Company and the
Trustee.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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EERRABRERFSM20%E25%HEE
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29 SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)
(a) Share Award Plan (Continued)

The Administrative Committee may, in its absolute discretion,
make an award to an employee (whether full time or part
time) of the Group (the “Eligible Person”), including directors,
senior management and any other connected persons of the
Company and any consultant of the Group. The eligibility of
any of the Eligible Persons to an award shall be determined by
the Administrative Committee from time to time on the basis
of its opinion as to the Eligible Persons’ contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

The Administration Committee shall, subject to and in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Plan, be
entitled (but shall not be bound) to, at any time during the
continuation of the Share Award Plan, make an award to any
of the Eligible Persons of such number of issued shares, fully
paid or credited as fully paid, as the Administration Committee
shall determine pursuant to the Share Award Plan. Vesting of
an award to any Eligible Persons shall be subject to the consent
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

In the event that a selected person or his/her associate is a
member of the Board and/or the Administration Committee,
such person will abstain from voting on any approval by the
Board and/or Administration Committee of an award of shares
to such selected person. The directors may by resolutions
appoint any one or more senior management of the Company
as authorised representative(s) to give instructions or notices to
the trustee on all matters in connection with the Share Award
Plan and other matters in the routine administration of the
trust.

Upon the receipt of an award notice, the trustee shall set
aside the awarded shares provisionally awarded to an Eligible
Person (the “Selected Person”) to whom such award notice
relates pending the transfer and vesting of the awarded shares
to which such award notice relates. The trustee shall hold the
awarded shares so set aside during the vesting period on the
terms of the trust deed. The trustee may, at any time during
the continuation of the Share Award Plan and the trust deed,
purchase awarded shares from the stock market and/or set
aside the appropriate number of shares out of a pool of issued
shares held by the trustee pursuant to the trust Deed.

29 BRSBTS (2
(o) RGO EBEB(2)

TREBZEGAUANBEARAER TAEE
MEFREE (BEnEt2BERRB) (4
BALD  LEBEARNES  SRERE
ABMEAEMEEALTHER - EAF
BRALTREFAESER  BHTRE
BZEeREBEEHHREMNERMK KM
H B B B R MHEE

BT ZRTERENARET » TX
ZESRE(BETRAOR) EREANTRD
REFTEHHE  MAEBALR TR -
BITHZ B RERG BB EEECH
RHARIIBBRNDETROBE - [
EAIEEMALE T REE D B AERFAK
RAFMEZEENRE -

IMRETNEEBALHEBBRARES
R/ FITHREEEKRE REEEKE
REEEER HTBREEGHETRG
THRIREANERSR - EZQAERBE
BABRRREARRE A —EBREESR
EEABEARERE  RBEBTEZM
BEERGERAMTEREB EMERR
HFEATERRIEA -

WEIREBANR ARSI BEEER
THEREBNEANAEBALTEEA
TDRERBRD - AFEEMNE B ERE
BAEANERRN - IREARZRER
ZHHMETR - 7257 B B A FF A ANt BB E
RER - RFEARERD R EMNE
RN FERENEMESRE - KRETS
BERBRON, IR TEARBET
ZOBENBRNERELZHENRD
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29 SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)
(a) Share Award Plan (Continued)

No award shall be made or vested by the Administrative
Committee and no instructions to acquire shares shall be made
after a price sensitive event has occurred or a price sensitive
matter has been the subject of a decision until such price
sensitive information has been made available to the public
domain in accordance with the requirements under the Listing
Rules.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the
Share Award Plan, the Share Award Plan will remain in force
for a period commencing on the Adoption Date and ending on
30 October 2029.

In the event that any selected person ceases to be an Eligible
Person by reason of his death, resignation or summary
dismissal for misconduct, committing of a criminal offence or
other breach of his term of employment, an award made to
such Selected Person shall forthwith lapse and be cancelled.

The board of directors may by resolution at any time terminate
the operation of the Share Award Plan and in such event no
further awards shall be made provided that such termination
shall not affect any subsisting rights of any Selected Person in
respect of any award made to him prior to such termination.
Any surplus shares held by the Trustee will be sold on
the market with the proceeds (after making appropriate
deductions in respect of stamp duty and other costs, liabilities
and expenses in accordance with the trust deed) together with
such unutilised funds returned to the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total
consideration paid for the purchases of 31,905,000 shares
(2018: Nil) was $1,516,000 (2018: $Nil). Up to 31 December
2019, the total consideration paid for the purchases of
37,000,000 shares was $2,801,000. No shares under Share
Award Plan have been granted during the current or prior
years.
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29 SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share Award Incentive Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the shareholders on
27 May 2016 (“Adoption Date of Share Award Incentive
Scheme”), the Company has adopted a share award incentive
scheme (“Share Award Incentive Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Award Incentive Scheme is to align
the interests of the Eligible Persons of Share Award Incentive
Scheme, which is defined as any individual, being an employee,
officer, consultant or advisor of any member of the Group or
any affiliate who is not a connected person of the Company
and who the board of directors considers, in its sole discretion,
to have contributed or will contribute to the Group, with those
of the Group through ownership of shares, dividends and
other distributions paid on shares and/or the increase in value
of the shares and to encourage and retain Eligible Persons to
make contributions to the long-term growth and profits of the
Group.

The Share Award Incentive Scheme is a separate scheme from
the Share Award Plan adopted by the Company on 16 January
2015, which is specifically for granting share awards sourced
from existing shares purchased from the stock market. The
Share Award Incentive Scheme will give the Company flexibility
in granting Awards of new Shares. The Share Award Incentive
Scheme will be effective for a period until 26 May 2026 (“the
Award Period”) unless terminated at the discretion of the
board of directors at an earlier date.

On the assumption that all the awards granted under the
Share Award Incentive Scheme shall be satisfied by the
allotment and issue of new shares by the Company, an
ordinary resolution has been proposed at the annual general
meeting for the Share Award Incentive Scheme to be adopted
by the Company in accordance with the scheme rules and to
grant a mandate to the directors to allot and issue up to not
more than 3% of the total number of issued shares as at the
date of passing such resolution, in connection with the Share
Award Incentive Scheme (subject to adjustment in the event of
sub-division or consolidation of Shares in accordance with the
rules of the Share Award Incentive Scheme).

29 BRSBTS (2
(b) R BB S

BRERER-_Z-—R"EFAA-TLH(R
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29 SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 29 R RBEE =

(b) Share Award Incentive Scheme (Continued)

During the Award Period, the board of directors may, from
time to time, at their absolute discretion, select any Eligible
Person of Share Award Incentive Scheme (“the Selected
Participant”) and grant an Award to such Selected Participant
by way of issuing an award letter. The award letter will specify
the grant date, the number of award shares underlying the
award, the vesting criteria and conditions, the vesting date
and such other details as the board of directors may consider
necessary. Announcements on the allotment and issue of new
shares under the Share Award Incentive Scheme will be made
in accordance with the applicable requirements of the Listing
Rules when the grants are made.

In the event that any Selected Participant ceases to be an
Eligible Person of Share Award Incentive Scheme by reason
of his death, resignation, summary dismissal for misconduct,
committing of a criminal offence or other breach of his term
of employment or becoming a director or a connected person
of the Company, the directors may at their absolute discretion
determine either that any outstanding award shares and
related income not yet vested shall vest in such manner as it
thinks fit or that they shall be forfeited.

The directors may by resolution at any time terminate the
operation of the Share Award Incentive Scheme and in such
event no further awards shall be made provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any
Selected Participant in respect of any award granted to him
prior to such termination.

No issues, purchases or grants of shares under Share Award
Incentive Scheme were made during the current or prior years.

(b) B E MBI ()
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BB BIR TR BELAE -

WEMERES2EERGY  BE - BTR
NE - BIRMEFRTIE R EEEGKN
AN R ERK SN AR ERHEAEAL
i~ AR RE B EIR A BB A
T EFEEENBEEETREARREE
TR - RSO BRI EITHEIME R R
57 B B0 2R A 10 S AR R -

EEREERZ RN LI () 2B
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30 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 30 UUREEEURGAEBRZIAHNRS

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by all the shareholders on 20
October 2005 and 20 August 2009, the Company had adopted a
share option scheme (”Share Option Scheme”).

Other than the Share Option Scheme as mentioned above, pursuant
to written resolutions of all shareholders of the Company on 19
October 2005, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share option
scheme.
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30 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the board of directors
on 15 March 2018, all of the outstanding share options had been
cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2018.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
prior year were as follows, whereby all options were settled by
physical delivery of shares:

30 UREGEURDR/RERITNRS

(&)

BRESE(2)
REEFEEN T - N\F=ZATHERRBNE
HRZRR  RBE-_FT-/\Ft+-_A=1+—H
FER - BRETENBEEE RN

() LEREOBHERRESEOT - FEH
BRI LA B W A R A3 Yt A

Number of Vesting Contractual life
instruments conditions of options
IE#E BEGRYE BRESOSH
Options granted to BT EEMNERE :
employees:

—on 15 January 2008 -R=ZZEEN\F—HA+HH 1,000,000 Note 10 years
k=3 106
—on 12 August 2008 -R=ZZEZENFNA+=H 1,700,000 Note 10 years
B eE 104F
—on 29 December 2008 -RZEZEN\F+ZA=+NAH 1,730,000 Note 10 years
B aE 104F
- on 18 September 2009 -RZEZNFNATNB 7,288,000 Note 10 years
B EE 104F
—on 1 September 2010 -RZE—ZTFhLA—H 2,320,000 Note 10 years
B E 104F
- on 4 September 2012 -R-—ZE——FHAMH 7,065,000 Note 10 years
BisE 106
—on 30 August 2013 -RZE—=FN\A=+H 4,105,000 Note 10 years
B eE 104F
= on 2 September 2014 -RZE-—MFENA=H 2,250,000 Note 10 years
Bt 5 104
- on 24 December 2014 -RZE-—WOF+-A=+WmAH 600,000 Note 10 years
B sE 104F

Total share options HE AR AR AT 28,058,000

Note: Prior to the cancellation of all of the outstanding share options Mizk: R E—T—N\F+_A=T—HEEH

during the year ended 31 December 2018, the vesting period
of the options was 5 years, starting from the date of grant and
becomes vested at stepped semi-annual increments of 10% of
the total options originally granted for a period of 5 years from
the date of grant.

AT E AR RERT - BREN RS
HASF  ARHAMERGES - KR
RHBRECHTFFEIZ10% IR
R BHESFARHRE -

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
—TE-NEFFER

221



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

30 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 30 URBEEEURAAEBRIZFANRS

(Continued) (%)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BREL S
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) ERRERZE RiNEFETEERT -
options were as follows:
2019 2018
—EB-NF —T-N\F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
IEFITHEE BREZE | METHIRE BEREsE
Outstanding at the beginning FE#A&IT{E N/A - HK$2.06 28,058,000
of the year TEA 2.0687T
Exercised during the year FREITE N/A - HK$0.54 (850,000)
TEH 0.54% 7T
Forfeited during the year FARERK N/A - HK$5.23 (1,000,000)
TEH 5.2387C
Cancelled during the year FREEH N/A - HK$1.99 (26,208,000)
TE M 1.998 7T
Outstanding at the end of FRARITE N/A - N/A =
the year TEA N
Exercisable at the end of FRA TR N/A - N/A =
the year TEA TiEA

2 2 2 CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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30 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 30 URBELEEURAHAEBRIZANRS

(Continued) (%)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BREE 2
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BRENAFERRR
The fair value of services received in return for share options BLA HA P A HH B AR A R AR 75 9 A 18
granted was measured by reference to the fair value of T2ERREBREN AT ETE - BT
share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the LSRR EAFENGEE DER ZEAER
share options granted was measured based on the Binomial A= o BIRENE QT AN E A LR
Model. The contractual life of the share option was used as N o REPITEMEHREAZEAER o
an input into this model. Expectation of early exercise were
incorporated into the Binomial Model.
28 2 30 4 1 18 29 12 15
December  September August ~ September  September  September  December August January
Grant date 2014 2014 2013 2012 2010 2009 2008 2008 2008
“E-QF 2 J)¢:3
t=B Z=%-m§ Z%-Zf <ZB-ZF ZB-BF CERAF t-R ZBENF Z—BENE
RipH “tmE  AAZB NA=tH  AARA AA-B AATAR ZthB  NAt=R -At3EER
Fair value at HEREMATE S0 §0.28 $0.24 $0.08 $0.07 §0.12 §0.03 §0.12 §0.27
measurement date 0.147c 0.287 0247 0.0870 0077 01271 0.031 0121 0277
Share price RE HK$2.11 HK$4.16 HK$2.90 HK$1.01 HK$1.20 HK$2.06 HK$0.54 HK$2.32 HK$5.22
LUAT 416%T 29087 10187 1207 20677 05477 23057 528
Exercise price il HK$2.11 HK$4.16 HK$2.90 HK$1.02 HK$1.27 HK$2.06 HKS$0.54 HK$2.32 HK$5.23
L1ET 41637 29057 10287 12787 2067 05487 23287 5357
Expected volatilty SEEU 68% 69% 72% 76% 50% 50% 45% 41% 42%
Option life RREED 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
0% 10% 10% 0% 10% 0% 10% 0% 10%
Expected dividends L) Nl Nil N Nil N Nil N Nil Nl
! i ! i e & E & it
Risk-free interestrate ~ EEAFE
(based on Exchange (HEESER
Fund Notes) BEE) 1.96% 1.96% 234% 0.65% 1.93% 2.36% 1.245% 338% 28%

The expected volatility was based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on public available information. Expected
dividends were based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition had not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.

B HRR IR D E B 1 IR 1R (R B A A2 pn
FHFGFRFE) ARBAFRAIES
BB 3 AR RO 1 B AE e TE B B 1 11 39
o BHRBTINBER B REE - T8
BWABRREDASHATFEBFEESEAN

B2 488
4 =3

BRI RB RIS IR o I IRA
B AMGRENFE L AR 2 A FER
B o BRI B TS R

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
—TE-NEFFER
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31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details

31 EXRfEE
(o) #EmBD 228
AEBGAEER BN 2 MR BRER
ZHERERGEEERBR - NRQARFE
REKZERNEZROBBDFHBHIIW

of the changes in the Company’s individual components of IS E
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
Company ARAF
Employee
share-based
Share Share Exchange compensation  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
WRG A
ERXA
EEEE
e RPEE Bt e ZiER a3t
Us$'000 USs§'000 Us§'000 US§'000 Uss'000 USs$'000
S Tin Tin Tin iR Tin
Balance at 1 January 2018 R=Z-NE-H-A
k3] 9,094 127,805 250 3,775 (12,824) 128,100
Changes in equity for 2018 R-E-NEzfER
28
Total comprehensive income for FREENEEE
the year = = (308) = (147,455) (147,763)
lssue of new shares RiTHiRis 9,749 54,549 F 7 i 64,298
Shares issued under share option RERRET2ZTN
schemes &3 11 93 = (45) = 59
Equity-settled share-based RS E RN A
transactions BRSNS i P = (3,730) 3,844 114
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=2-NFtZA
and 1 January 2019 =1+-Ak
“B-NE
-A-H2&R 18,854 182,447 (58) - (156,435) 44,808
Changes in equity for 2019: RZB-NEER
25
Total comprehensive income for ER2EYRER
the year - - 209 - (5,539) (5,330)
Issue of new shares BBt 20,337 68,288 - - - 88,625
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZB-NE+2A
=t-HZ&R 39,191 250,735 151 - (161,974) 128,103

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

31 EXKREER

(b) Share capital (b) A
2019 2018
—E-RF —T-N\#F
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
BRAEHE ] BB G
‘000 USs$'000 ‘000 US$'000
Fi FEn Fh SR
Authorised: EE
Ordinary share of SREECIETH
HK$0.1 each AR 10,000,000 128,730 10,000,000 128,730
Ordinary shares, issued ERTRARH
and fully paid: TER
At 1 January A=z ]g] 1,473,156 18,854 707,120 9,094
Issue of new shares BATHRD 1,595,883 20,337 765,186 9,749
Shares issued under share BRI B RE AT 81351 T
option scheme RIRR 19 - - 850 11
At 31 December Wre2AE—<E 3,069,039 39,191 1,473,156 18,854

(i)

(i)

(iif)

In February 2018, the Group allotted 765,186,000 new
shares to the nominee of China Merchants & Great
Wall Ocean Strategy & Technology Fund, Prime Force
Investment Corporation, with net proceeds amounting to
HK$504,739,000 (equivalent to $64,298,000).

Pursuant to a board resolution dated 8 November
2018, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$200 million divided into
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$1,000
million divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10
each by the creation of an additional 8,000,000,000 new
shares, all of which will rank pari passu with all existing
shares in all respects.

Pursuant to a board resolution dated 8 November 2018,
the Company proposed to raise capital by way of the
rights issue. In February 2019, the Company allotted and
issued 1,473,156,204 rights shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.45 per right share on the basis of one
right share for every one existing share held on 10
January 2019. The net proceeds from the rights issue
was approximately HK$652,476,000 (equivalent to
$83,139,000).

i) RZTE-—NEFZA AEHEHM
China Marchants & Great Wall Ocean
Strategy & Technology Fund&J#2 4 A
Prime Force Investment Corporation
il 3£765,186,0000% #T AR 5 + FT15 K
TH 558 A504,739,000% T (FB &R
64,298,0007T) °

iy BLEEBHA-_ZT—N\FE+—ANAR
ZEESRER  BBILREIH
8,000,000,0008% %1 §% (F & % A% #5172
SATEEMBERERNZ=EHERM
fir) » ARABEERANH2008 &8
7L (% /42,000,000,0008 B (7 - EAL
HE{E0.10%7T)#EE1,0008 BT
(% 410,000,000,0008% f% 17 * &A%
ME{E0.10/87T) °

(i) REEHBHA-_Z=E—NF+—A/\H
LEEERZAR  ARAEBBHE
BRE RZFT—NLEFEZH ' &
ARAER=ZFT—NLF—AT+HERE
— BB R HEE —RERRDZ
HE  DREESRHERKRRKRMDO.45
BT AL g K B971,473,156,204 %
MR D - HRAABRIEFELN B
652,476,000/ 7T (A8 = 783,139,000
JL) °

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
—TE-NEFFER
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31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Share capital (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

In November 2019, the Group allotted 122,726,709
shares to a supplier to settle trade payables of $8,767,000
(see note 5(c)).

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

®

@ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the fund in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired as a result of the restructuring exercise in 2004
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 1(v).

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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31 EXRREEE
(b) B (%)

(iv)

(v)

R=ZF—hF+—H A5BE—
G ERE B 35122,726, 70988 8% 15
LA EE 5 e~ 50I88,767,0007C (R
B4 3E5(0) °

=R AT RS B S R
WS - LEERAARMAR b
MERBEOHIE—F - AL BB
AAREBEEMSZERASH

{575

(c) RENHEERBRN

®

@i

(iii)

IR AD B
RIERSHSRARERER) - AR
AEMEERANESAHEIET
ARRIBR - HEREERZZIRES A S
% ARBADBEAIRBERS
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31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

@v)

)

(vi)

Employee share-based compensation reserve
The employee share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 1(r)(ii).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess of capital
contribution over the nominal value of the registered
capital of TSC (Qingdao).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, TSC (Qingdao)
was transformed into a company limited by shares. As a
result, its net assets value in excess of share capital was
transferred to capital reserve as a capital contribution.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the fair value
adjustment to the interest previously held by the Group
as an associate upon the acquisition of TSCUK.

(vii) Reserve funds

The Articles of Association of certain PRC subsidiaries
require the appropriation of 10% of their profit after
tax each year, based on their statutory audited financial
statements, to the reserve funds until the balance reaches
50% of the registered capital of the respective PRC
subsidiaries. The reserve funds may be capitalised as the
paid-in capital of these subsidiaries.

(viii) Shares held for share award scheme reserve

(CY)

The shares held for share award scheme reserve
represents purchase costs of shares held for share award
scheme as disclosed in note 29.

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net charge in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are
held at the end of the reporting period (see note 1(f)).

31 EXxRREESE
(c) BREMHERE K

@iv)

)

(vi)

URGAERINESHERE
B RERXNERMEREE
RYASEREENERSA A
B HARITEBRENAFE - IR
R AP EE 1 ()i PABR 0 B E B ST AT EY
3R BRAN B & 5T BURERR

N
BEAFERERIEBETC(ES)
BEMERNEENEZR -

REE—F-—NF+=—H=+-—H
FEFR  TSC(EB) AHSBRMHER
AE e Bt EBERANZEER
BRI EBRE EARGHE

B
AR B TSCUKIS A S Bl
B % A 56 BT BT HERS 1R H 0 2
FEBE -

(vii) REDES

ETHERMNBLRANEZEZMAA
REARBHEERLERY B HRER
5 5 6 R 5 12088 FI B9 10 % B A i 1
REd  BEERHBREHRESTHE
MB AR EMEARS0%RIE ° FHE
NI A EREEREH B AR

(vili) SE4E B2 52 D 5t 1 60 PR 49 B 4%

(@)

Fr el 0 SRENGH IR R B 36 5
TER D BB A B R BB E K
7 - KT EE29FT R EE -

DN PERECEEE)
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31 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Distributability of reserves

O

®

The Company's reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2019, as
computed in accordance with the Companies Law (Revised)
of the Cayman Islands amounted to $88,761,000 (2018:
$26,012,000).

Dividend
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: $Nil).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis and
considers the cost of capital and the associated risks. Based
on recommendations of the board of directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through adjusting the
amount of dividends payable to shareholders, new shares
issues or new debt financing. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt position.
The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio, being
the Group's total liabilities to total assets, under 100%. The
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2019,
the date of transition to HKFRS 16, were 66% and 90%,
respectively (31 December 2018: 90%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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RZB-AF+ZA=+—8  REH
SHERARDEEEDFE - ARFH
H R A 2 A B 4 R AE 2 R B 6 1 2
88,761,0007T(=ZF —/\4 : 26,012,000
JE)

9=
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group's business. The Group’s exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, lease receivables and contract assets.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on cash at bank and pledged bank deposits
is limited as the counterparties are banks with sound credit
standing.

Trade receivables, lease receivables and contract
assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 21% (2018:
1%) and 38% (2018: 30%) of the total trade debtors and bills
receivables, lease receivables and contract assets was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Credit terms
offered by the Group to its customers are set out in note 18.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade debtors and bills
receivables, lease receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates
different loss patterns for different customer geographical
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
further distinguished between the Group's different customer
bases.

32 ERIEAMEEREMIAZATE

AEBEREBBRETELER  RBES
MERE R o A5 B FE R R AE
B A& R E R W R R ERESIT o

(o) EERE
AEENEERREEREESREKRE
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TRERCERARTERZEERRES
bR

BEZRWNE HEERKRRANEE

AEENEERREEZEFHNERIER
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FEREKREE HERERKRRANEE
RED RGNS EE 5 W IE RE K E
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 sRiEREEREMIA 2 ATE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (o) EERK#E)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) EZBEUREREGHNEE(E)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TREI AN EE L E 5 FEWRIE R EKE
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade debtors and bills & HERKRHKEEHNEENEERR KX
receivables, lease receivables and contract assets: FEHEEBEZER
2019
—E-hF
Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
BEHEEE IRE#E EiERE
% Us$'000 US$'000
% FEx FER
Trade debtors and bills B ZEW AR
receivables: JEW R -
Current (not past due) BIVER (R EA) 0.37%-6.24% 15,364 (271)
Less than 1 month past due BER DR —1E A 1.38%-34.55% 5,749 (860)
More than 1 month but within ~ BHIZ R —1EA
3 months past due BLR=EA 1.38%-34.55% 3,463 (378)
More than 3 months but within ~ BHEIZ A =1EH
12 months past due BLR+=@A 1.38%-34.55% 8,708 (1,008)
More than 12 months but within  #EHIZ R+ — @ B
24 months past due BALR=+MEEA 2.24%-100% 2,639 (1,607)
More than 24 months past due  #HIZ W = +PO1E A 5.47%-100% 68,063 (56,908)
103,986 (61,032)
Lease receivables (not past due) & fEUR (GR#ELH) 0.59% 9,667 (62)
Contract assets BREE 1.34% 1,275 7)
114,928 (61,101)

2 30 CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 sRiEREEREMIAECATE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (o) EERKE#E)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) EZRRREREGHNEE(E
2018
—E-N\F
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
T8 AR e 18 = BRERE BB
% Us$'000 US$'000
Tz T
Trade debtors and bills Z 5 WA KB
receivables: ES
Current (not past due) BUER (AR 61 ER) 0.49%~4.21% 13,100 (321)
Less than 1 month past due B —1{E A 6.98%-10.01% 2,537 (224)
More than 1 month but within ~ #HZ R —E A ELDR
3 months past due ={@A 6.98%-10.01% 5151 (447)
More than 3 months but within ~ BHEIZR ={E A B R
12 months past due +=f@A 6.98%-10.01% G, 155! (1,053)
More than 12 months but within ~ #1HiZ A+ — (& {84
24 months past due R=-+HE@EA 13.95%-100% 19,117 (11,426)
More than 24 months past due  #HIZ A — PO 1{E A 27.45%-100% 61,041 (52,324)
107,099 (65,795)
Contract assets BREE 2.33% 2,030 (18)
109,129 (65,813)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over TEEAEE R ER B AMNF R B EBL
the past 4 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences BSH - ZSLRBEFABRURBINE R
between economic conditions during the period over which T HHR R AR MBI - B AR B
the historic data has been collected, current conditions and the &= B3 FE R IE TR A7 48 AR B0 A8 B AR 0 B9
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives BRZER -

of the receivables.

FSHERSHOANEERARLT | 93]
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

@

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
debtors and bills receivables, lease receivables and contract
assets during the year is as follows:

32 ERIEAREEREMIAZATE

(%)

@

EERR@E
RAEE  ARESERFARERE
5 HERKRBARSNEENERE
REREEMT :

2019 2018
“E-nE —2-)\F
Trade Trade
debtors debtors
and bills Llease  Contract and bills Lease Contract
receivables receivables assets Total | receivables  receivables assets Total
ESEY Bk
HER g FER g
EWEE EhE  SHEE & | EUER s AHEE &3
US$'000  USS'000  US$'000  US$'000 US§'000  US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
Tin Tin Txn Txn TEL TEL TET TEL
Balance at 1 January R—R—BzE& 65,795 - 18 65,813 71,091 = = 71,091
Exchange adjustments B AR (535) - - (535) (3,071) = S (3,071)
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ A2 (RERE
impairment losses recognised ~ 0@) /B & 1B
during the year (4,229) 62 (11) (177) 2,427 3 18 2,445
Amounts written off during the ERHi#Z £ %
year - - - - (,652) = = (4.652)
Balance at 31 December Rt-A=t+—Hz#&
% 61,032 62 7 61,101 65,795 = 18 65,813

There were no significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade debtors and bills receivables and contract
assets, accordingly, the loss allowance did not change
significantly during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2019

(®)

BB RUGRIA M ERRIB AR A EER
FREAELYBERNES - Fitt - BHIEEE
RBE_Z-—NER-ZE-—N\FT-_A=
T RFETUEEAZE -

REBETRERE
AEERNERNEECXARTARREE
B BEEREBREFEHREREEE
RAENER 2 REFROEEEEBB
ATHREREKFAAESARAESS
BB ARBHRAEHRESHR
BEeRERETEERN - UEERLER
RABRTFEENRIRE B HHEE 2 &E
BeBE  UWENEREHZADHESS
Bl e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32 sEEREEREMTIAZAYE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (#&)

(b) Liquidity risk(Continued) (b) REBEZRRE)
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities TRINTAEERFERRENRE D
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non- AT ESRBEREBEEORUE
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual AenE(BREEONIN(NEZR)
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments RIBIRE R E B AR RFEROR B &
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates H) URAKEAEEREBERENRET
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest B

date the Group can be required to pay:

2019 2018
“E-nf 2-)\f
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BTAERERNR SR BiTAERER ARSI
More More
than than
Within Tyear  2years Carrying Within -~ Morethan ~ More than Carying
1 year but but amount Tyear 1 yearbut 2 years amount
oron within within at31 oron within-~ but within at31
demand ~ 2years  Syears Total  December |  demand 2 years 5 years Total  December
-Eps  -F0E RENAL RT=R | —#Rs  —#0E  RELE R+ A
RER B B St-8 | BEX i E)iy =t

EX  mEM BEA gt HEEE g% mER 1R it WREE
USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS000 | USF00  USF00  US§000  US§000  US$'000
i TER in in fEx | TR fRr TRr AL TAR

Trade and other BHEARAL
payables JEfT30E 189417 - - 189417 189417 | 201316 5 - 201316 201316
Bank loans HIEH 5301 3,409 1,150 9,860 9,184 10,837 5177 2318 18332 17,369
Lease liabiities relating to ~ WAEREE B &3
leases previously BEIEITEDE
dassiied under HKAS 17~ BRATE A
s finance leases BREREEE - - - - - 2 pJi 47 91 81
Other lease liabiities ~ EbAEAE
(Note) (k) 1,29 1015 2251 45 3938 3 — ; 7 S
196,014 4,424 3,401 203839 202,539 212,175 5199 2365 29,739 218,766
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified Mz : AEEERALETERAERER
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at BAEMBHRELENF16RYFHE—F
1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases —hE-A—BZHUEER - AR
which were previously classified as operating leases under NERBEBETERE1THRIER
HKAS 17. Other lease liabilities include amounts recognised REME MERBHEERE - Hib
at the date of transition to HKFRS 16 in respect of leases HERABEEERNBREERRYBRE
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17 and ERIF 165 B RN ERIBEE B S5t
amounts relating to new leases entered into during the year. ERFN7HEDERKEERE AT
Under this approach, the comparative information is not RZEBELFAMTHERBEHE
restated. See note 1(c). BB FE  BRERTESS - R

MiEE1() »

FHEMSLRN EERERA T
P hean | 233



234

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group's
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, bank loans
and lease liabilities. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group does not
use financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (i) below.

®

Interest rate profile

32 ERIEAREEREMIAZATE

(%)

(c) FEE
AEBNFEZRREERBEASERES K
ReFEY  BEBRITER - RITER
IREEEE o RFEFIE RIRE E =
SENEESIBASEEKESREN
EREkRATFENERR o ANEEIER
e miTAE T A SR AR E R o ~3()
EHIEBEEEE THASBEFEFS -

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group's net borrowings/(deposits) (being interest-bearing
financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits and notes receivables) at the end of the
reporting period.

®

MZFHE

TREINASERBEEHRNE
B/ (FRFROFEREREER
RekBReFEY CEPRTE
AERRRE) MM ERFE -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
Effective Effective
interest rate US$'000 interest rate US$'000
BRFI= FEx BERA=E T=
Fixed rate borrowings/ EEEE/ (7R :
(deposits):

Bank loans RITER 5.0% 2,153 4.57% 3,619

Lease liabilities (note) HEAEMF) 3.0%-5.9% 3,938 5.89% 31
Less: Notes receivables o USRI 5.3% (6,413) N/A =

NiE A
(322) 3,700
Variable rate borrowings/ FEEE/(FR)
(deposits):
Bank loans RITER 5.39%-5.46% 7,031 |5.39%5.46% 13,750
Less: Pledged bank R BERIRITIER 0.35% (1,051) 1.3% (802)
deposits
Cash and cash BehBeE 0.1%-0.8% (35,021) | 0.1%-0.8% (19,805)
equivalents (X

(29,041) (6,857)

Total net deposits FIF B (29,363) (3,157)
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Mz - AEBEBRERALEITEREER

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated.

See note 1(c).

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2019

JERBERMBHRELERFE 1657
WHE-ZT—-—NF—A—HBZH
MEEs - UERUERETSS
FTEAFITRSEAKENE
ZTHEEBEEAE - BEILA
% LRERIWEES o B
1(c) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (- 7F5 B &85 » AT %K)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase of one percentage point in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have increased the
Group's profit before taxation by approximately $290,000
(2018: decreased the Group's loss before taxation by
approximately $69,000). A general decrease of one
percentage point in interest rates would had the equal
amount but opposite effect, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit/loss before taxation that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting period. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group's profit/loss before taxation is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
or income of such a change interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.

(d) Currency risk

0]

Forecast transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. Most
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC carried out
production locally with RMB as functional currency while
over 50% of the Group’s revenue was denominated in
United States dollars. At 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no related hedges were made by the Group.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign currencies.
The exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand.

32 ERIEAMEEREMIAZATE

(c) FEEBE)
(i) WMBEI

RET=JE = A== Bl 7E
FTEEMBHERTENELT
B AE—REN—EE DI -
2 Bl 3 00 AN & B /9 B B OAT s A 49
290,000 (=ZF—/\F : BPAE
& BB B AT B 4969,0007T) © RE%
FIEEMESBITIE  FE—R
WL —EEDE  BELARSEE
ZRAFE -

VA = BURK 23 A ) 71 AN 5% 1B Bk A5 A
A ERERRAN RSN RE
IR EAENERTAELR BN
2 AKBRFAFEHFITE
TARBEHRARZNR R K
RBmE  BARERBEEN,
BERNZETIAZ SN R E 8 HH
B EFERZBIEME - AW
BT \FHRRMNEEET -

(d) B AR
(i BAXRZS

AEEEE EERKREEREE
MEWIE - BNFERE &R
ZEE  ZESEENELEEBZ
NEEHEEBUINEBE - A5EE
K EB 5 A BB A R E AT
NEEESTIAARB AEEE
B MRS BB IB50% 2 Y as Th BA
ENLFAE RZTE—NFERZZT—
NE+=ZA=+—8 " x5BT E
YEL AR -

AR BB LBEKINE - FTE
BRARBOINER 5B RBIBF
BARBITREMEREEEINE
HHIEETT - INER ZE XK F
BARBITAMAERETT - %
FERXFRIRHEKRETE -
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

32 ERIEAREEREMIAZATE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)y Exposure to currency risk

(%)

(d) E% R
(i) EHERHE¥ER

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in United States dollars,
translated using the spot rate at the year end date.
Differences resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

TR AKER H®E AR KR Z A
ERAMEER NIz BEFHE
EREREEXABEEH ZEER
BB E2FTME  FRARBRESEMN
EHE - LR F 4 B ABHE =
i TEERBIINEEMBHRRK
BERAEEZFER 2 ZR -

Exposure to United States dollars

(expressed in United States dollars)

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group'’s profit/loss before taxation that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.

EnRk
(AETL275)
2019 2018
—E-NF =Rk
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx =
Trade and other receivables B 5 Fe M o e W R IE 8,290 7,251
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEY 23,096 11,323
Trade and other payables B 5 M RE M FER FRIE (249) (186)
Net exposure arising from recognised DHEREERBEEL 2
assets and liabilities [\ B R 31,137 18,388
(iii) Sensitivity analysis (i) BBREDH

TRHAMAEERN RS HREY
EARABRZINEEERZAR DL
5 38 FT 7 A LB R 2 4 5 T B
A E 2 B BADE R BB A E
7 BB EE -

2019 2018

—E-hF =Sl
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Decrease/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (increase)
in foreign in profit in foreign in loss
exchange rates before tax | exchange rates before tax
HEER BB AR F GV i BREAEE
#in/0h)  ®mSGED) | B 0RL)  md (g
US$'000 Us$'000
FER FEx
United States dollars ETT 5% 1,557 5% 919
(5)% (1,557) (5)% (919)

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(iii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit/loss before taxation
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into United States dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2018.

(e) Estimation of fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments
carried at amortised cost were not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

32 ERIEAMEEREMIAZATE

(d) E¥EE@E)
(i) BBRED W (#E)

EREIZOMBEREARBRE
BBRBAGEN,BIEAZTEZY)
EEEEFERA/ZIBNMEBRRE
HIRZPE RN PR TTIR 2 BB &7
LHE -

FRESMBREIINEEXZEDE
REEHHEAKRETAZEHMT
B MmMZzEemITACREERR
SHREEINERR - BEAER
AHBERAZIEEE R AN 2 B ¥
FHEZ RSB AR B E &R
REWFE - ST BEHREFIH
XU BBRREAKEZINEEE
MRERERZEE - AMNR_-_T—
NERRR R ELEHETT o

(e) AFEMEH
AREB B HERAT NSRBI A ZRE
BERFER_ZE—NEFR_ZT-—NF+=
A=1+—HBZ2AFEITESAEE -

EHEBRSTFRRNREZERERARF
—TE-NEFFER
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)

33

34

COMMITMENTS 33 &iE
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum RZZE—N\E+ZA=+—8 ' RETH
lease payments under non-cancellable operating B REHEN R RREBE S RETEN
leases were payable as follows: g3
Us$'000
St
Within 1 year 1A 1,281
After 1 year but within 5 years 1254 2,693
3,974
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties held AEERATRBEE S ENE17TRDER
under leases which were previously classified as operating leases KEMHEZHEETNE TMENABA « XE
under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the EERALETEREERERE M BRE
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group ERIZE165% - BEBEUTE  AKBERAERTZZ
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise —NFE—A— Bz UERZSHE
lease liabilities relating to these leases (see note 1(c)). From 1 Az HEAERNEN) BT —hF—
January 2019 onwards, future lease payments are recognised as A—Ri « RRBEENFAREH ()T SBUER
lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position HZEMBERAARBERAEERRE  BBER
in accordance with the policies set out in note 1(j), and the details SEARREENRZ F BRI 264K o
regarding the Group's future lease payments are disclosed in note
26.
MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EXBEALRS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
related party transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

BREVBHRREME O MRENR S MEH
Gh + REBIRFI LA TEEALRS -

(o) TEEEASHS
TEBSIAREIEEEASMS - A5
TR TA R B AL 78 F RAES
FRENETRSHEENSS

2019 2018

—E-NE —T—N\F

US$’000 US$'000

FEx SFES T

Salaries and other emoluments i R E A < 1,664 2,201
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIE R 50 73
1,714 2,274

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related companies

©

The Group entered into the following related party transactions
with fellow subsidiaries:

34 EXBEALRZ#®

(b) EFEBLARZRS

REE R R B ARG LA TEAEATLR
5

2019 2018

—E-AEF T N\F

UsS$'000 Us$'000

FErR F=r

Sales of capital equipment and packages & AZE KA HE 4,877 =

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
subscribed for the shares in Wealthy Marvel Enterprises
Limited, which was previously wholly-owned by the Fund.
This company has become a joint venture of the Group upon
the completion of subscription of shares, details of which are
disclosed in note 15 to these consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the above
transactions were carried out on normal commercial terms and
in the ordinary course of business.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Among the sales of capital equipment and packages to fellow
subsidiaries disclosed in note 34(b) above, $935,000 constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

©

IR 30 28 R 2Rt e R Sl = N
IEFE » NEERBEWealthy Marvel
Enterprises Limited(Z RIHZE® 2 & %
BIHRD - RIRDRBETHE - Z AT
BEXRAAER ZEENT - FFIERZEL
B BImMRMETISHEE -

ARBEERE @ LR ZTIRNIEFEES
BIRPIE — R FEIRTETT -
ERBERSG 2 EmBRA2EAM
LAk E34b)FEEARRRKE A A

MERNLERBEHEEF 935,000
B EMHRABLAASIAREZH@ERS °

FHEMSLRN EERERA T
T hEEH
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35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

35 DNARMBARRER

POSITION
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
BisE FEx SEESTT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB K& 298 428
Intangible assets ML EE 284 =
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z®RE 5,486 o
Amounts due from subsidiaries =N PR 95,129 35,892
Prepayments TR 3B - 424
101,197 36,744
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments and E M ERGRIE « TRISFIE R
deposits b7 6,560 756
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREEEY 22,317 10,064
28,877 10,820
Current liabilities REBERE
Other payables and accrued charges — E b 78 K Bt 5 5% 1,307 2,090
Amounts due to subsidiaries e B A R IE 664 666
1,971 2,756
Net current assets RBEEFE 26,906 8,064
NET ASSETS EERE 128,103 44,808
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERR G 31(a)
Share capital &N 39,191 18,854
Reserves T 88,912 25,954
TOTAL EQUITY S 128,103 44,808

* The balance represents amount less than $1,000.

CMIC Ocean En-tech Holding Co., Ltd.
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e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (x5 G &8 » LAZEIL K T)

36 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

37

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated except for reclassification
of certain comparative figures to conform with current year
presentation. Further details of the changes in accounting policies
are disclosed in note 1(c).

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER REPORTING
PERIOD

The coronavirus outbreak since early 2020 has brought uncertainties
in the Group’s operating environment. The Group has been
closely monitoring the impact of the developments on the Group's
businesses and has put in place contingency measures. These
contingency measures include temporary suspension of productions
and deferral of delivery of products.

As far as the Group'’s businesses are concerned, the management
estimated that this would result a negative impact to the revenue
due to the above contingency measures. These impacts have not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 5 &4 55 » AT #R)
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IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2019, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Prime Force
Investment Corporation and China Merchants Group Limited,
which are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the PRC,
respectively. None of them produce financial statements available
for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard, HKFRS
17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and which have not been adopted in the
consolidated financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.
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Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business 1 January 2020
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Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material 1 January 2020
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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